2021-2024

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE

EUCLID BOARD OF EDUCATION

AND THE

EUCLID TEACHERS ASSOCIATION

EUCLID BOARD OF EDUCATION

Kathy DeAngelis, President Donna Sudar, Vice President Pamela Turos Selina Wright Gabrielle Kelly

ADMINISTRATION

Christopher Papouras, Superintendent Stephen Vasek, Treasurer

> 711 E. 222nd Street Euclid, OH 44123-2000 216/261-2900

EUCLID TEACHERS ASSOCIATION

OFFICE	NAME	SCHOOL	SCHOOL/BUILDING PHONE
Co-President Co -President	Sue Amato Cindy DeLong	High School High School	(216) 797-7965/(216) 797-7900 (216) 797-6827/(216) 797-7900
Co-Vice President Co-Vice President	Melisa Norton Ben Beukman	Middle School Middle School	(216) 797-5300/(216) 797-5300 (216) 797-5300/(216) 797-5300
Secretary	Darlene Puljic	High School	(216) 797-7891/(216) 797-7900
Treasurer	Ron Zucca	High School	(216) 797-7935/(216) 797-7900
Professional Rights and Responsibilities	Sue Amato	High School	(216) 797-7965/(216) 797-7900

Euclid Teachers Association Niles Cortland Road, S.E., Suite 101 Howland, OH 44484 (330) 726-3250 or (800) 637-1659

Chad Stephenson, Labor Relations Consultant

2021-2024

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE EUCLID BOARD OF EDUCATION AND THE EUCLID TEACHERS ASSOCIATION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	RECO	DGNITION	
	1.1	Bargaining Unit	. 1
	1.2	Duration of Recognition	. 1
	1.3	Subjects of Negotiations	. 1
	1.4	Requests for Negotiations	
	1.5	Meetings	2
	1.6	Representation	2
	1.7	Information	
	1.8	Agreement	. 3
	1.9	Disagreement	
	1.10	Exclusivity of Procedure	
	1.11	Term	4
	1.12	Final Form	4
	1.13	"In-Term" Bargaining	4
2.	PROF	ESSIONAL OBLIGATIONS	
	2.1	Teacher's Year	5
	2.2	Teacher's Day	7
	2.3	School Nurse	17
	2.4	Additional Responsibilities	18
	2.5	Open House	20
	2.6	Parent-Teacher Conference Days	20
	2.7	Digital Learning	21
	2.8	EMIS	22
	2.9	Credit Flexibility	22
	2.10	College Credit Plus	22
	2.11	Advance Mediation Course Instructor	23
	2.12	Third Grade Guarantee	24
	2.13	Calamity Days	24
	2.14	Lesson Plans	25
	2.15	Teacher Dress	25
	2.16	Weekly Office Hours	25

3.	EVAL	.UATION	
	3.1	Standards-Based Teacher Evaluation	28
	3.2	Assessment of Teacher Performance	
	3.3	Professional Growth and Improvement Plans (Goal-Setting)	29
	3.4	Formal Observation and Classroom Walkthrough Sequence	30
	3.5	Formal Observation Procedure	31
	3.6	Walkthroughs/Informal Observation	34
	3.7	High Quality Student Data ("HQSD")	
	3.8	Improvement Plan Guidance	
	3.9	Retention and Promotion Decisions/Removal of	
		Poorly Performing Teacher	38
	3.10	Removal of Poorly Performing Teachers	
	3.11	General	
4.	PERS	SONNEL FILES	41
5.	TRAN	ISFER AND ASSIGNMENT	
	5.1	Vacancies	43
	5.2	Teacher Initiated Transfers	46
	5.3	Administrative Initiated Transfers	48
	5.4	Teacher Swap/Trade	49
	5.5	Assignment to Open Position	49
	5.6	Definitions	49
	5.7		
	5.8	Supplemental Postings	50
	5.9	Grants	51
6.	TEAC	CHER CONTRACTS	
		Termination of Employment	52
	6.2	Limited Contracts	
	6.3	Continuing Contracts	
	6.4	Employees Hired Under Temporary Teaching License	53
	6.5	Reduction in Force	
	6.6	Ohio Criminal Background Check	59
7.	SENI	ORITY	
•	7.1	Seniority Lists	60
	7.2	Seniority Definition	
	7.3	Availability of Lists	

8.	COM	PENSATION AND FRINGE BENEFITS	
	8.1	Salary Schedule	
	8.2	Salary Schedule Applications	
	8.3	Professional Development Training Compensation	
	8.4	In-Service Credit	
	8.5	Extra Duty Assignments	
	8.6	Satisfactory Work Required	
	8.7	Filing of Credits	
	8.8	Salary Payments and Deductions	
	8.9	Medical Benefits	
	8.10	Severance Pay	
	8.11	Early Retirement Notification Payment	
	8.12	Term Life Insurance	79
	8.13	Mileage	
	8.14	Summer School Staff	
	8.15	Extended Time Contracts	79
9.	ABSE	ENCES AND LEAVES	
	9.1	Leaves of Absence – General Provision	81
	9.2	Child Rearing Leave	
	9.3	Sabbatical Leave	
	9.4	Disability or Illness Leave	
	9.5	Cumulative Sick Leave	
	9.6	Personal Leave	
	9.7	Special Leave	
	9.8	Assault Leave	
	9.9	Jury Duty/Court Leave	
	9.10	Bereavement Leave	
	9.11	Other Leaves	
40	CUD		00
10.	3003	STITUTE TEACHERS	93
11.		FESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	
		Professional Growth	
		Curriculum Committees	
		Local Professional Development Committee	
	11.4	Resident Educator Program	99
12.	STUD	DENTS	
	12.1	Class Size	104
	12.2	Special Education Teachers	108
	12.3	Co-teaching	
	12.4		111

	12.5	Student Discipline	1	11
	12.6	Assault on a Teacher	1	13
	12.7	Deliberate Action and/or Reckless Conduct	1	15
13.	ASSO	CIATION RIGHTS	1	17
		ETA Consultation		
	13.11-			
	13.14	Legacy Agency Fee	1	18
	13.15	ETA-Superintendent Meetings	1	19
		Association Release Time		
	13.17	Teacher Professional Organization	12	20
	13.18	Laptop Insurance	12	20
14.	GRIE\	ANCE PROCEDURE		
	14.1	Definition	12	21
	14.2	Procedure	12	21
15.	TEAC	HER RIGHTS	12	24
	15.1-2		12	24
	15.3-1	1	12	25
	15.12-	13	12	26
		Safety Committee		
		Academic Freedom		
	15.16			
		Certified Staff Support		
	15.18-	15.20	12	27
16.	MANA	GEMENT RIGHTS	12	28
17.	HOUR	LY TUTORS AND MEDIA SPECIALISTS		
	17.1	Hourly "Tutors"	1:	30
	17.2	Regularly Employed Tutors		
	17.3	Benefits and Salary		
	17.4	Vacancies		
	17.5	Contracts		
	17.6	Compensation		
	17.7	Probationary Period		
	17.8	Reduction in Force (RIF)		
	17.9	Termination		
	17.10	Evaluation	1;	33
	17.11	Media Specialists	13	33

18.	JOB S	HARING	
	18.1	Definition	
	18.2	Right to Share	
	18.3	Seniority and Benefits	134
	18.4	Bidding	
	18.5	Day	
	18.6	Approval/Denial of Job Share Position	
	18.7	Evaluation of Program	137
19.	DURA	TION	138
		* * * *	
APP	ENDIX A	A TEACHERS' SALARY SCHEDULE	140
		SCHOOL NURSES' SALARY SCHEDULE	143
		TUTOR SALARY SCHEDULE	145
APP	ENDIX I	B SUPPLEMENTAL SALARY SCHEDULES, 2021-2024	146
APP	ENDIX (C GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	167
APP	ENDIX I	D OBSERVATION/EVALUATION OF BUILDING SUBSTITUTE TEACHERS	168
APP	ENDIX I		
		RELIGIOUS HOLIDAY MAKE-UP FORM E1	170
APP	ENDIX I	F REQUEST FOR PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	
		TRAINING COMPENSATION	171
APP	ENDIX (G SUMMARY OF MENTORING ACTIVITIES	172
APP	ENDIX I	H CONTINUING CONTRACT PROFILE	173
APP	ENDIX I	PROFESSIONAL GROWTH PLAN	179
		THO EGGIONAL GROWITT LAN	170
		OTES 2.0 RUBRIC	180
		WALKTHROUGH/INFORMAL OBSERVATIONS	188
		FINAL HOLISTIC RATING – ACCOMPLISHED	
		OR SKILLED CARRY FOWARD	190

	IMPROVEMENT PLAN	191
	CRITERIA FOR HQSD	194
APPENDIX J	SUPPLMENTAL CONRACT EVALUATION FORMS	195
APPENDIX K	LEGACY AGENCY FEE	199

1. RECOGNITION

1.1 Bargaining Unit

The Euclid City School District Board of Education ("Board") shall continue to recognize the Euclid Teachers Association ("ETA"), affiliated with the Ohio Education Association (OEA) and the National Education Association (NEA), as the exclusive representative for a bargaining unit composed of all regularly employed full-time and regularly employed part-time certificated/licensed who work not less than fifteen (15) hours per week for the adopted school calendar (including occupational therapists and social workers) (hereinafter referred to as "bargaining unit members" or "teachers"); provided, however, that all supervisors and management level employees as defined in Section 4117.01 of the Ohio Revised Code, paraprofessionals, casual day-to-day/hour-to-hour tutors (see separate "Tutor" Section 17.1) and casual day-to-day substitutes shall be excluded from the bargaining unit.

The bargaining unit shall also include building substitutes who are defined as certificated/licensed personnel employed and paid on a daily rate basis to take the place of members of the bargaining unit absent due to personal illness, personal leave, fulfillment of other professional responsibilities, or other short-term absences.

If or when a bargaining unit position no longer requires a certificate or license, all current employees shall be grandfathered. The parties shall negotiate for the terms and conditions of employment for future non-certificated employees in professional positions, e.g., nurses and librarians.

1.2 Duration of Recognition

The Board's recognition of the ETA as provided in Section 1.1 of this Article shall continue unless and until such recognition is validly withdrawn consistent with Chapter 4117 of the Ohio Revised Code.

1.3 Subjects of Negotiations

Representatives of the Board and the ETA shall bargain in good faith on wages, fringe benefits, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment and the continuation, modification, or deletion of an existing provision of this Agreement.

1.4 Requests for Negotiations

- 1.4.1 If either of the parties desires to open negotiations for a successor agreement, it shall notify the other party in writing not earlier than the first (1st) day of February and not later than the first (1st) day of March of the year in which this Agreement expires, or between the one-hundred twentieth (120th) and ninetieth (90th) day before the expiration date of this Agreement, whichever comes sooner. Written notice from the ETA shall be served on the Superintendent; written notice from the Board shall be addressed to the President of the ETA. The party giving notice shall also serve a copy of the written notice, together with a copy of the Agreement, on the State Employment Relations Board (SERB).
- 1.4.2 Within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice, but not later than the first (1st) day of May of the year in which this Agreement expires, or sixty (60) days before the Contract expiration date, whichever comes sooner, an initial negotiations meeting will be held. At this first meeting, the party that served notice under subsection 1.4.1 of this Section shall submit in writing all its bargaining proposals for a successor agreement. At that time, the other party shall submit in writing all of its bargaining proposals for a successor agreement. Thereafter, neither party shall be entitled to submit additional items for bargaining except with consent of the other party.
- **1.4.3** The next bargaining session shall be held no later than fifteen (15) days after the initial meeting at which proposals are exchanged or a different date by mutual consent.

1.5 Meetings

Meetings shall be scheduled at reasonable intervals and mutually convenient places and times. Unless otherwise mutually agreed, negotiating sessions will be scheduled so as not to interfere with the regular work schedule of any member of the bargaining unit. All bargaining meetings between the Board and the Association are private. If any cost is incurred, it shall be shared equally by both parties.

1.6 Representation

The Board and ETA shall each be represented by a negotiation team not to exceed six (6) in number and may have up to two (2) observers.

1.7 Information

Each party agrees to furnish, upon request, information relevant to bargaining in reasonable time and fashion.

1.8 Agreement

- **1.8.1** Tentative agreements on negotiated items shall be reduced to writing and initialed by a representative of each party.
- 1.8.2 The final agreement reached through negotiations shall, without delay, be reduced to writing and submitted to the bargaining unit represented by ETA and the Board for ratification within fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of final tentative agreement on all items. If the tentative agreement is not rejected by either the bargaining unit or the Board within fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of final tentative agreement, the agreement shall be deemed ratified. When ratified, the Agreement shall be properly signed, dated, and implemented. When the Agreement is printed, the Superintendent will forward a copy of the Agreement to SERB.

1.9 Disagreement

If agreement is not reached within forty (40) days after the first negotiating session held pursuant to Section 1.4, subsection 1.4.2 hereof, or forty-five (45) days before the Agreement expires, whichever comes sooner, either party may declare a bargaining impasse whereupon the parties shall jointly request the services of a mediator from the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. This section shall not be construed as prohibiting the parties, by mutual agreement, from selecting some alternative impasse procedure; unless otherwise mutually agreed, mediation shall constitute the parties' final and exclusive dispute settlement procedure, as more fully explained in Section 1.10 of this Article. The mediation period shall continue until agreement is reached on all issues. While impasse proceedings are in progress or until the expiration date of this Agreement, whichever comes later, the rights and benefits covered by this Agreement will remain in effect.

The time lines and ratification procedures in 1.8.2 shall be used for any agreement or any written neutral recommendation resulting from the Mutually Agreed Dispute resolution (MAD) procedures used in this section.

1.10 Exclusivity of Procedure

The negotiating procedure set forth in this Article supersedes and takes precedence over any inconsistent time limits or procedure set forth in Section 4117.14 of the Ohio Revised Code, which statutory time limits and procedure are hereby mutually waived. Mediation, as described in Section 1.9 of this Article, constitutes the parties' mutually agreed upon, final, and exclusive dispute settlement procedure and shall operate in lieu of any and all of the settlement procedures set forth in Section 4117.14 of the Ohio Revised Code. This Article does not diminish or preclude the legal right to strike provided that the procedures herein have been followed, the collective bargaining agreement has expired, and the Association has given the Board a ten (10) day prior written notice of an intent to strike, with a copy to SERB.

1.11 Term

If this Agreement expires, the parties will continue bargaining for a successor agreement unless recognition of the ETA by the Board has validly been withdrawn pursuant to Section 1.2 of this Article.

1.12 Final Form

As soon as practicable, a committee composed of an ETA representative and the Superintendent's designee will proofread and submit the document for publication but not later than forty-five (45) days after ratification, the new Agreement shall be available in an agreed upon format by ETA and the Board, with a table of contents including all appendices, and distributed to all members of the bargaining unit. Any additional cost of producing the contract shall be shared equally by the Board and the ETA.

1.13 "In-Term" Bargaining

Whenever the parties engage in "in-term" bargaining—either by mutual agreement or by Association demand in accordance with its rights under O.R.C. 4117, the bargaining procedures contained in Article 1 shall be controlling except as follows:

- **1.13.1** Requests by ETA shall be submitted to the Superintendent within thirty (30) days of notice to ETA that there is a proper subject for "in-term" bargaining.
- **1.13.2** Disagreement procedures may be initiated by either party within thirty (30) days after first bargaining session.

1.13.3 Unilateral action by the Board/Administration on a mandatory subject of bargaining shall give ETA the right to strike after a two (2) week notice to the Board and ten (10) day notice to SERB.

2. PROFESSIONAL OBLIGATIONS

2.1 Teacher's Year

- 2.1.1 The teachers' year shall consist of 184 days of regularly scheduled service as prescribed in the official calendar adopted by the Board of Education. There shall be no more than four district professional development days included in the 184-day academic calendar, unless mutually agreed by the Parties.
- 2.1.2 In developing a school calendar for recommendation to the Board, the first contact day with students shall not occur before August 15 and the last day for teachers shall be no later than May 31, unless required by (Extraordinary circumstances in this extraordinary circumstances. section shall be defined as beyond what is usual, ordinary, regular, or established, e.g., calamity days or construction.) The Superintendent will seek input from officers of the ETA and discuss alternatives with them. The administration will provide a draft of the calendar recommendation to the Association five (5) weeks or more in advance of the Board meeting where the calendar will be adopted, unless both parties agree another timeline is required by extraordinary circumstances. This input is not a mandate, but the Board's recognition of the Association's concern. The calendar for the succeeding year must be adopted prior to the close of the current school year, unless both parties agree another timeline is required by extraordinary circumstances.
- 2.1.3 In addition to the regular school year and extended time, three (3) additional pre-school workshop days shall be provided. Bargaining unit members in attendance shall be paid at the rate of .0050 times the base salary applicable to the immediately succeeding regular school year per day.
 - Two (2) workshop days scheduled by the administration to be used for administrative meetings and/or inservice. One (1) day shall be teacher directed. At least two weeks prior to the opening of school, teachers may come into the building to ready their rooms on a voluntary basis. All buildings shall remain open until 11:00 p.m. for the day before the start of school for students.

2.1.4 Teachers newly employed by the district shall be required to attend a mandatory three-day workshop program, prior to the start of the regular teacher work year and shall be paid a stipend of .0039 times the base salary applicable to the immediately succeeding regular school year per day for such attendance.

The workshop program on day one (i.e., New Teacher Camp) shall be developed by the Euclid Professional Development Committee, whose members shall be eligible for professional development credit for their development, attendance, and active participation in the workshop day program. Days two and three of the workshop program shall be developed by the administration, in consultation with the Euclid Professional Development Committee. New hires during the school year may attend, if necessary as determined by the administration, the following school year's workshop program for new hires.

ETA shall be granted a one (1) hour lunch on the first day of the new teacher workshop to meet with new teachers separately.

The new teacher workshop shall begin two (2) days prior to the special education professional development days in Article 12.2.2. For clarity purposes, the schedule of new teacher workshop, special education and teacher workshop will follow the chart below.

New Teacher Camp Day 1 (0.0039)	New Teacher Camp Day 2 (0.0039)	New Teacher Camp Day 3 Required new special	Special Education Required Day 1	Special Education Required Day 2
5 days prior to Teacher Workshop		education teacher (0.0039), & Returning special education teacher voluntary day	Returning teachers (per diem); & New teachers (0.0039)	Returning teachers (per diem); & New teachers (0.0039)
		(0.0050)		Day before workshop

2.1.5 In-Service

School will not be in session on NEOEA Day, which is a non-paid regional in-service day sponsored by the Ohio Education Association. Attendance is voluntary.

2.2 Teacher's Day

General

The regular full-time teacher's schedule day shall be no longer than seven (7) hours and thirty (30) minutes. The regularly scheduled day will begin no sooner than fifteen (15) minutes before the arrival time of students in the elementary schools and fifteen (15) minutes before the start of homeroom and/or start of the first assignment in the high school. (At a minimum, attendance at the high school will be taken during the first scheduled period of each school day.) At the middle school, all teachers will arrive forty (40) minutes before homeroom, the first thirty (30) minutes of which will be used for team preparation. If the team preparation period is not feasible, the middle school teacher's schedule will revert to the same guidelines as at the high school. The regularly scheduled day shall end five (5) minutes after student dismissal for teachers to assist in an orderly movement of students through the building for dismissal and to be available to students.

Teachers may leave the building at any time they do not have direct responsibility for students. If a teacher leaves the building during his/her preparation period, he will sign out and sign in on a form provided in the principals' office unless it is at the end of the day. The teacher is held responsible to return to his/her next assignment within the daily schedule, and to be present to greet and dismiss his/her respective classes at the beginning and end of each day, unless prior permission is obtained from the principal.

Teachers who are assigned to title program assignments or non-public school remedial assistance program assignments are assured all rights and privileges under this contract as bargaining unit employees of the Euclid City Schools. Where the peculiarities of the programs require a different annual calendar or daily report times, the number of paid days and hours shall be equal to a regular assignment and the number of days and hours actually worked may not exceed the regular assignment hours. All other benefits and conditions shall be identical to the Contract.

2.2.1 Pre-School Instructional Day at the Early Learning Village

2.2.1.1 Teachers shall arrive to school at 8:15 a.m., Monday through Friday. Teachers' dismissal shall be at 3:45 p.m., Monday through Thursday. Friday shall be a non-student contact day. The work day on Friday is 8:15 - 3:45 p.m., but teachers may leave at 2:15 pm on Friday. Administration may schedule professional development and/or a staff meeting for two hours and five minutes each Friday.

Teachers may use the remainder of this day for a sixty (60)-minute lunch and for preparation.

For reasons involving operational necessity (i.e. busing) the District may adjust the ELV teacher arrival time and its commensurate dismissal time no more than ten (10) minutes earlier or later than the above times for the following school year.

Teachers shall have a sixty (60) minute lunch period each day, Monday through Friday.

- 2.2.1.2 An additional professional development day will be incorporated into the regular school calendar at the start of the school year for professional development and training required to maintain state licensure and/or Step Up to Quality mandates (i.e., one regular contract day will be scheduled as a professional development day). To the extent possible, all other coursework, professional development, and testing required to maintain state licensure and/or Step Up to Quality mandates shall be provided within the teacher work day.
- **2.2.1.3** For ELV Head Start teachers, if he/she conducts home visits consistent with Head Start federal guidelines he/she shall be excused from night conferences.
- **2.2.1.4** Should a new student schedule at the ELV become necessary, this Article 2.2.1 will be reviewed by the Parties and modified accordingly via a Memorandum of Understanding.

2.2.2 PROFESSIONAL COLLABORATION SCHEDULE

2.2.2.1 <u>Elementary</u>

- Teachers in each grade level shall collaborate one morning per week for up to one hour, but no less than 30 minutes, or, if determined by consensus within the grade level TBT, collaboration can occur after school.
- For morning collaboration the teachers shall begin their day thirty (30) minutes prior to students' arrival.
- Teachers shall receive fifteen (15) minutes of Professional Development for each collaboration meeting that is attended in the morning.

2.2.2.2 Middle School

- Teachers shall have Team meetings on Monday and Wednesday from 7:45 a.m. 8:10 a.m.
- On the first and third Fridays of the month teachers shall have Team meetings/Special Ed meetings from 7:45 a.m. – 8:10 a.m.
- On Tuesdays, teachers shall have TBT/Department time from 7:30 a.m. – 8:10 a.m.
- On the second and fourth Friday of each month, teachers shall have TBT/Department time from 7:45 a.m. 8:10 a.m. In any month in which there is a fifth Friday, the building administrator shall determine the meeting agenda.
- On Thursdays, teachers shall report to work at 8:05 a.m. (This is twenty [20] minutes after the contractual arrival time.)

2.2.2.3 High School

Teachers will have Professional Collaboration each Monday for up to one hour, but no less than thirty (30) minutes, as determined by the principal.

Staff meetings at the High School also will be held on Mondays. One Monday per month, the teacher day may be extended to 3:45 p.m. (or the commensurate time in the event of a schedule change) to accommodate having up to 30 minutes of collaboration and an up to a one-hour staff meeting.

Until changed and/or adjusted in accordance with this negotiated agreement, the Bell Schedule: 1 through 7 are regular class periods.

1st Period	7:30-8:23 (53 minutes)
2nd period	8:28-9:25 (57 minutes, 4 minutes of
which are morning	ng announcements)
3rd period	9:30-10:23 (53 minutes)
4th period	10:28-11:21 (53 minutes)
5th period	11:26-12:19 (53 minutes)
6th period	12:24-1:17 (53 minutes)
7th period	1:22-2:15 (53 minutes)

No later than February 15, 2022, the parties agree to convene a committee to explore potential changes and/or adjustments to the

high school schedule with the goal of improving student achievement and growth, decreasing student discipline, improving student engagement, and meeting student needs.

The committee will be made up of the high school department chairs, the ETA president/designee, and three ETA members selected by the ETA president following consultation with the high school principal.

The superintendent/designee will select no more than seven (7) District members (including the building principal) to serve on the committee. The Superintendent will not be a part of the committee.

The committee will be co-chaired by a superintendent selected administrator and an ETA selected teacher. In the event a department chair cannot participate in the committee, the committee co-chairs will select an alternative committee member from that department after consultation with the department chair.

Committee members will seek input from and update their representative groups throughout the process. Additionally, the committee shall seek input from and consider feedback from stakeholder groups.

EHS administration will provide, and other committee members may provide, specific examples for possible schedule adjustments for consideration. Exploration of options will include IE period within parameters of 15-16 IE schedule.

The committee will convene for two days in February 2022 (days to be selected by committee members). Committee work will count toward professional development hours per Article 8.3. After the February sessions, committee meetings will be bi-monthly for no greater than 1.5 hours per meeting, unless otherwise agreed by the committee. The committee may also meet in subcommittees.

The committee will study the effect of schedule adjustments on the various departments and programs prior to making any recommendations to building administration. Recommended schedule adjustments will maintain the current length (as of the 2021-22 school year) of the teacher day, including the office hours per Article 2.16, unless otherwise mutually agreed upon. The school start/end times will be no more than one (1) hour earlier or later than the 2021-22 scheduled times.

Teachers will maintain a minimum of 45 minutes uninterrupted lunch and no fewer than 45 minutes of uninterrupted prep daily. No new schedule option shall result in a reduction in the number of high school teachers.

The committee will present its findings to the EHS staff, administration and ETA leadership in March 2022 and February 2023, and solicit input before making a final written recommendation to the building administration.

Committee recommendations will be made by consensus.

The committee recommended schedule will be followed for the 2022-2023 school year if it does not require significant changes in instructional practices (such as block schedule or blended learning). Otherwise, the committee will continue to work to study feasible schedule adjustments for the 2023-2024 school year. Should a recommended schedule require significant changes in instructional practice (such as block schedule or blended learning), the district will provide committee release time for planning and building-wide professional development so that the new schedule can be implemented in the 2023-2024 school year.

If the committee fails to reach consensus on one recommended schedule by March 1, 2023, two (2) written recommendation(s) shall be made to the Superintendent/designee by the committee co-chairs by March 15, 2023. The recommendation(s) must include pros and cons of the schedules. Co-chairs shall determine the method for identifying the two written recommendations in the event consensus is not reached. The two recommendations sent to the Superintendent/designee shall have the support of the majority of the committee, including support from both teachers and administrators.

After seeking input from the ETA President / designee, the Superintendent/designee may implement only one of the recommended schedule(s) for the following school year. The District will provide committee release time for planning, as well

as building-wide professional development before the schedule is implemented.

Following consultation with high school teachers, the committee, will meet in March 2024 to review and evaluate the new schedule. Any changes to the schedule must follow the procedures set forth in this Article. Either party can reconvene the committee after March of 2024. No changes to the high school schedule shall be implemented absent this committee process.

2.2.3 Within the scheduled day:

- 2.2.3.1 Teachers are expected to remain in the building at least five (5) minutes after student dismissal and/or until such time as all of their pre-arranged student and/or parent conferences, faculty meetings, committee meetings, and all other on-site student-related duties of that particular day are fulfilled. No teacher may be assigned additional routine duties which require the teacher to remain in the building after student dismissal. Teachers shall have access to student attendance by period through the District's electronic reporting system.
- 2.2.3.2 Each secondary teacher employed by the Board of Education shall be guaranteed no less than a forty-five (45) minute non-interrupted duty free lunch period each school day, and each elementary teacher shall be guaranteed no less than a one hour (60 minute) non-interrupted duty free lunch period each school day. No certified elementary teacher will be assigned a lunch duty during any system-wide elementary lunch period.

2.2.3.3 Secondary Assignment

No secondary teacher, including specialists, will be assigned more than the equivalent of thirty (30) periods per week within the school's master schedule exclusive of homeroom periods, of which only twenty-five (25) periods will require instructional duties, except where in the judgment of the administration the scheduling necessities or peculiarities of particular courses such as (but not limited to) physical education, industrial arts, home economics, etc., require additional instructional period assignments.

- 2.2.3.3.1 No secondary teacher may be assigned more than three (3) preparations unless a greater load is voluntarily accepted. Courses will be considered to have a single preparation if the subject matter taught is essentially the same for each course. For example, course 9A and 9B assigned in a year shall be considered one preparation in the same year. If a teacher is assigned course 9A and 9B in a semester, this shall be considered two preparations.
- 2.2.3.3.2 No high school bargaining unit member may be scheduled for more than the equivalent of three (3) instructional periods in a row without either his/her continuous duty free lunch or a full preparation period break-except by the mutual agreement of the affected member. Preparation time shall be the equivalent of one classroom period. An exception may occur during special schedules (i.e., exam week, shortened days) (This provision is based on a seven (7) period student day, which may be adjusted in the event the high school no longer has a 7-period day.) Three (3) periods shall comprise a half day.

The scheduling process in all secondary (6-12) buildings will be opened up for all teachers to have input. All secondary teachers will have an opportunity to discuss within their departments the assignment of courses for the next academic year. Teachers shall complete schedule preference sheets per current department practice.

Each department chair shall meet with the building administrator and ETA to review department preference sheets in a collaborative conversation. If, during the review of the preference sheets, the administrator has a different preference for a teacher than the one requested, the administrator shall make that recommendation to the department chair and ETA during the collaborative conversation.

The department chair shall meet with the affected teacher(s) to share the recommendations of the administrator. If the affected teacher agrees, and the change is to an open course assignment, the department schedule will reflect that change. If the administrator's recommendation involves a change in another teacher(s) preferences to switch course

assignments, and all teachers agree, the department schedule shall reflect that change.

If, after the conversation with the department chair, the affected teacher(s) does not agree to the administrator's recommendation, the administrator shall meet with affected teacher(s), department chair, and ETA to have further conversation, including the reason for the administrator's recommendation for a change in course assignment outside the teacher's preference sheet. If the change in course assignment is made by the administration after the conversation, then the teacher(s) will be provided needed and ongoing support as requested. This process shall not be used to move teachers outside of their department or building.

Teachers who are assigned through administrator initiation shall not have more than one course outside the teacher's preference sheet administratively assigned in a school year.

No more than a total of 15% of the teacher(s) shall be subject to a change in his/her course assignment(s) outside their preference sheet by the administration. This limit includes teachers who agree to course assignment(s) outside their preference sheet, and teachers who do not agree.

If due to an administrator-initiated reassignment a teacher is reassigned outside of his/her preference sheet, and, as a result, another teacher(s) is reassigned outside their preference sheet, that reassignment(s) will be calculated as part of 15% administrative reassignment limit.

The most senior twenty (20) percent of tenured teachers at the high school have the right to refuse an administrative reassignment. Such teacher(s) and administrator may mutually agree to an administrative reassignment.

The following teachers will be bypassed if they are part of the top twenty (20%) calculation: Teachers who put in a retirement/resignation notice by March 1, high school counselors, high school social workers, teachers who are solely responsible for a course (e.g., Mandarin language teacher), and career tech teachers. The next most senior tenured teacher(s) will have the right of refusal in place of any of the teachers who fall into these categories within the top 20%.

Teachers assigned through this process will maintain the assignment(s) for two school years (unless mutually agreed with the building administrator), and will not be assigned through administrator initiation for a period of three (3) school years. (Year one is the year the assignment is implemented.)

The Department chair(s) shall then review with the department the decisions made.

Teacher(s) whose assignment(s) are changed based on the administrator's recommendation will be evaluated by said administrator unless affected teacher(s) requests a different evaluator.

In reviewing department recommendations, the administration will make a reasonable attempt to see that the schedule of each teacher includes a variety of course levels, e.g., 2, 4, 6. When Department Chairs apportion duties they shall take seniority into consideration.

- 2.2.3.3.3 Teachers may be assigned "academic help" assignments instead of other duty period assignments. Said assignments may not involve required pre-duty preparation or post-duty follow-up work, e.g., paper grading.
- 2.2.3.3.4 The selection of duty period assignments will be rotated among volunteers or, if none, among non-volunteers. Teachers who receive a preparation period instead of a duty period as all or part of their compensation for the completion of extra-duty assignments, e.g., some department chairpersons, may be exempted from this provision based on a legitimate need for the extra preparation time.

2.2.3.4 Progress Reporting

Teachers are expected to keep the electronic gradebook updated once every two weeks, absent extenuating circumstances. A final quarter entry must be entered into the electronic gradebook by the end of each quarter for access by students/parents/guardians.

The requirement for interim progress reports will be satisfied through the use of the electronic gradebook. However, if a student is failing, or has dropped two or more letter grades from one quarter to the next, and the student was present in class at least 80 percent of the quarter, parents of such students shall be contacted directly by the teacher and provided with the student's grade. Parent contact is satisfied by actual contact or making an attempt to contact the parent. The teacher will make two (2) attempts to contact the parent. The contact or attempt will be documented in the student information system. Once per quarter teachers will be provided with a minimum of 45 minutes during collaboration time for this work.

2.2.3.5 Elementary Assignment

Elementary teachers (K-5) shall have no more than 1575 minutes per week of pupil contact time which may include up to 1405 minutes of pupil instruction. Time that pupils spend with specialists is considered preparation time and does not count in the above total. Each elementary bargaining unit member shall have at least two hundred (200) minutes per week of preparation time.

In the elementary level, the fifteen (15) minute block of scheduled student supervision time immediately prior to morning start of student instructional time, the five (5) minute block of scheduled student supervision time immediately prior to the afternoon start of student instructional time, and the ten minute block of scheduled student supervision time immediately prior to student dismissal are scheduled student supervision time.

Neither the time before the first scheduled block of time in the morning, nor the time after student dismissal, shall be counted as preparation time nor any time used for student supervision.

2.2.3.6 Middle School

2.2.3.6.1 Middle school teachers who teach subject specific secondary classes in Grades 6-8 shall be subject to the provisions of Section 2.2.2.4 – Secondary.

2.2.3.7 Special Teachers/Encore Teachers

Special teachers including secondary media specialists will be insured all rights and privileges of other teachers.

Elementary Special teachers shall have uninterrupted preparation time scheduled each day in the same fashion as is provided to elementary classroom teachers in the grade level building where the special teacher spends more than half of her/his assignment.

A specialist will not be required to teach more than the equivalent of four (4) instructional periods in a row without a ten (10) minute break except by the mutual agreement between the affected member and the administrator.

Scheduling for special teachers must take into consideration location and intra-building travel time for those teaching from a cart.

Encore teachers may meet each spring with the building principal to discuss the most effective rotation of specials.

2.2.4 Preparation time up to the required minutes (e.g., 200 minutes for elementary teachers) will not be used for trainings. Trainings will occur during professional development days/time, faculty meetings or during other non-scheduled time during the workday.

2.3 School Nurse

- **2.3.1** A School nurse employed by the Board of Education shall be guaranteed no less than a forty-five (45) minutes non-interrupted duty free lunch period each school day.
- **2.3.2** The School nurse shall be provided no less than a forty-five (45) minute period of time per day in which to complete documentation, charting and

other clerical work. The school nurse will assist in emergency medical situations regardless of such period or their lunch period.

2.4 Additional Responsibilities

2.4.1 This includes a proportionate share of building responsibilities identified in Sections 2.4, Open House, and 2.5, Parent-Teacher Conferences. Teacher coverage shall be at the ratio of one (1) teacher to not more than twenty (20) students. Commencement will occur prior to the completion of the final exam schedule at the high school. At the middle schools commencement/promotion ceremony attendance by faculty members will not be required. Administration shall publish a commencement attendance schedule each year prior to September 30. The teachers will be on a rotation list and will participate every fourth year.

Each bargaining unit member is expected to attend up to two (2) after school/evening/weekend school or school-related activities per year on a voluntary basis, e.g., attending athletic or other student events where no duty, student supervision, or other school expectation is involved.

When activities involve supplemental duties such as ticket taking or student supervision, they shall be offered to teachers on a voluntary rotating basis. Volunteers shall be compensated at the rate of .00042 ratio of the BA base per hour. The Board may combine five (5) to ten (10) activities into a single supplemental contract using an average of three (3) hours per event. Such contracts shall be offered on a seniority preference basis to the teachers within the appropriate building. The yellow card will be provided to the teacher on the day of assignment.

Volunteers may be used to supplement, but not supplant bargaining unit members performing supplemental contract duties that should be compensated.

2.4.2 Each member is expected to attend necessary staff, departmental, committee. and other professional meetings called by Superintendent, principal, or department chairperson. Administrators and supervisors will terminate building meetings within one hour of the commencement of the meeting, which shall commence promptly [no more than ten minutes following after student dismissal. Meetings called by the administration shall end within one hour of the start of the meeting. Notice of time and place and agendas for all such meetings shall be presented to the participants at least one school day in advance of the meetings, except in emergency situations. No meetings will be scheduled

- on Tuesday. If no ETA meeting is scheduled, upon permission of ETA, an administrator may schedule a meeting on the third or fourth Tuesday of the month.
- **2.4.3** Voluntary participation in curriculum studies, in-service courses and/or workshops constitutes consent to an extension of the normal meeting termination time.
- 2.4.4 If a substitute is not available or not feasible due to the emergency of the absence, a bargaining unit member may be required to forego his/her preparation period by substituting for or assisting another teacher during such preparation. The teacher substituting or assisting shall be compensated at .00060 ratio to the BA Base per period with payment made at least on a quarterly basis. This includes covering a class in lieu of a specialist or adding the students assigned to another teacher to his/her assigned load. The blue card will be provided to the teacher on the day of assignment. The first priority for substitute use will be for illness or pre-arranged personal days. The second priority will be for in-service. If no substitute is available, coverage shall be rotated using all certified staff in the building, including specialists. When creating the master schedule, the administration will make a good faith effort to provide equity in the number of personnel available for period coverages.
 - **2.4.4.1** When additional students are added to the regular class load of a teacher in lieu of a substitute, the rate of blue card compensation will be .00060 ratio to the BA base for one (1) to three (3) additional students and .00120 ratio to the BA base for four (4) to six (6) additional students.
 - 2.4.4.2 When additional students are added to a specialist's class, the rate of compensation will be .00060 ratio to the BA base for every five (5) class periods in which additional students are added. A new card will be developed for specialists to keep track of the five (5) class periods.
 - **2.4.4.3**. Teacher absences for department, content area and grade level training shall be reported by the administrator responsible for setting up the training so that efforts can be made to secure substitutes.
 - **2.4.4.4.** Access to computer labs shall not be denied due to TRT absences.

2.5 Open House

All members of the bargaining unit will be required to attend one (1) open house scheduled for their buildings. Teachers will receive compensatory time for attendance in accordance with Section 2.5. In each building a committee shall be formed to plan the open house. Volunteers shall be solicited for participation in the planning process.

Open House is a way to showcase the school building and the children's classroom, along with providing general information and expectations of the class. Open House is not intended to be a parent-teacher conference.

2.6 Parent-Teacher Conference Days

- 2.6.1 Two (2) parent-teacher conferences will be held in all buildings scheduled in the evenings for three hours each. One (1) parent-teacher conference shall be held at the end of the first grading period, and one (1) parent-teacher conference shall be held during the third grading period for grades K-8 and during February for the high school. The schedule will be coordinated among the buildings in accordance with the current contract provision. Conferences will not be held before grades are available for distribution or pickup.
- 2.6.2 Teachers will receive compensatory time for attendance at two (2) evening parent-teacher conferences and one open house. Compensatory time will be provided on the Wednesday before Thanksgiving and the Friday before the Presidents' Day Holiday. Kindergarten teachers will receive an extra conference day as long as they are on one-half day classes.

Teachers, building substitutes, and Regularly Employed Tutors will attend one mandatory session on the second to last work day prior to the start of winter break for the purpose of grading (or, in the case of substitutes and Regularly Employed Tutors, for a purpose designated by the building administrator) that will begin immediately after the student day (one three (3) hour session). In lieu of this mandatory session, the District may alternatively schedule a parent engagement evening during the school year that shall last no longer than three (3) hours and shall be without preparation by the teacher.

2.6.3 All teachers will be expected to complete a telephone conference log along with their regular parent-teacher conference log, with the telephone

conference log indicating those parents whom they have attempted to (or succeeded) in contacting by the telephone where the parent did not attend the conference.

- **2.6.3.1** At the middle school, contact will be made with parents who do not attend the parent-teacher conferences by one of the members of the team.
- **2.6.3.2** High school and middle school teachers must call the parents of students who are failing in any of their classes where the parent has failed to attend either the first or second parent-teacher conference.
- **2.6.4** No parent-teacher conferences in the evenings will be scheduled on the first or second Tuesday of the month or on a Friday.
- **2.6.5** Teachers must be notified one (1) day in advance of any classroom visitation by a parent.

2.7 Digital Learning

Where a digital learning class is offered and run in any Euclid School District building during the student day, a bargaining unit member (referred to as facilitator) will be assigned to facilitate the program and supervise the students. A bargaining unit member (referred to as facilitator) will be assigned to facilitate the program and supervise no more than one hundred fifty (150) students. Facilitator will be responsible for the registration of students into selected courses using the adopted online system. The facilitator will be expected to provide students with their usernames and passwords and provide them an orientation on their first day of class. The facilitator will be expected to monitor student progress daily, using the approved on-line system, contacting students and parents if the need arises outside of the school day, and manage the operations of the classroom activities. The classroom may consist of special education students, credit recovery students, transfer credit students, flex credit students, students with health issues, and/or students with behavior issues. Students will be assigned to the facilitator as the "teacher of record" for reporting purposes. All other students will be assigned to the general education content area or the course will be recorded online for reporting purposes.

In addition to a facilitator, content area teachers awarded the supplemental contract will provide tutoring assistance. Supplemental contract awarded will be compensated at .0767 of the BA base for tutoring each content area assigned. There shall be an additional .0256 of the BA base supplemental

contract for grading in each of the content areas. The duties for the grading supplemental will be an average of one hour per week after school grading. The teacher awarded the supplemental to tutor in a content area shall also be offered the grading supplemental. Should the teacher decline the grading supplemental, it shall be posted separately. The teachers currently tutoring in each content area shall be offered the supplemental prior to posting.

All non-core content assignments will be monitored and graded by the facilitator. Facilitator will receive a supplemental contract for .0256 of the BA base for this additional responsibility.

A digital learning class shall be considered a preparation where the teacher is serving as the teacher of record (excludes teachers with a supplemental contract for digital learning). Student supervision only will be a duty assignment. Digital learning shall not result in the layoff of bargaining unit members under Article 6, Section 6.5.

2.8 EMIS

EMIS data shall be submitted to ITC by the administration. The case manager shall submit the required EMIS information to the administrator using the District adopted form and deadlines.

2.9 Credit Flexibility

- **2.9.1** Any students seeking flex class shall complete a Project Application to be reviewed by the Flexible Credit Committee.
- **2.9.2** After review and approval by the Flexible Credit Committee of the Project Applications, students shall receive the credit approved by the Committee for completion of the project.
- **2.9.3** As per the district Credit Flex Policy, a teacher of record shall be assigned to the students with a non-bargaining unit member continuing to facilitate the project for the students.
- **2.9.4** Courses offered for credit on Euclid City School property shall be taught only by certified bargaining unit members.

2.10 College Credit Plus

2.10.1 The opportunity to teach any course offered by the school district

- through College Credit plus shall be posted in accordance with Article 5. No outside applicants shall be considered until all members of the bargaining unit who have applied and are qualified are considered.
- **2.10.2** No teacher shall be forced to meet the requirements to teach the course. In the event no bargaining unit member expresses interest in a College Credit Plus course, the lowest senior qualified teacher may be assigned the course.
- 2.10.3 Any teacher who teaches a course or courses that qualify for College Credit Plus shall be provided a day to visit the participating institution of higher education to engage in planning with the cooperating college instructor. If this visit occurs during the summer months, the teacher shall be paid at the summer curriculum rate for the day. If this visit occurs during the school year, the teacher shall be released from duties as an assignment day. Any additional assignment days or necessary training must be approved by the building principal and superintendent. The teacher shall be reimbursed mileage expenses at the district rate for this day(s).
- **2.10.4** A bargaining unit member may not be reduced as a result of the District's participation in the College Credit Plus unless:
 - 1. A college credit plus teacher leaves the District; and
 - 2. No other remaining teacher in the department meets the requirements to teach the course; and
 - 3. The District is executing a Reduction in Force under the provisions of this Agreement.

2.11 Advance Mediation Course Instructor

- **2.11.1** Each school year if the Board determines they shall provide an Advance Mediation course at the high school for students, the Board shall agree to renew the instructor's temporary license for that course.
- 2.11.2 There shall be only one course of Advance Mediation taught each day for one period at the high school. Should the schedule at the high school return to one that includes study hall, this course shall not be offered for credit.
- **2.11.3** The instructor for the Advance Mediation course shall be required to become part of the blue card coverage rotation.

- **2.11.3.1** The Advance Mediation course may be offered for credit for as long as the instructor is licensed by the ODE.
- **2.11.3.2** The instructor for the Advance Mediation Course is not eligible to become a bargaining unit member in ETA.
- **2.11.4.** Advance mediation shall be considered a "flex credit" unless the instructor is a licensed, certified teacher/ETA bargaining unit member.

2.12 Third Grade Guarantee

Each current and newly hired third grade teacher will be required to become credentialed to teach children "not on track" or retained in compliance with the law for the Third Grade Reading Guarantee. The Board shall reimburse teachers on passing of test up to \$150.

2.13 Calamity Days

On days when, District-wide, schools are closed due to public calamity such as snow, floods, heat, power outage, or for any calamity reason set forth in the Ohio Revised Code, the following procedures shall apply:

For PreK-12, the first six (6) calamity days of any school year will not be made up, unless prior to August 1 of a school year, the Board adopts a plan to make up three or fewer school days by completing classroom lessons posted on the district's web portal or website, for calamity days four, five, and six, which shall be accomplished in accordance with state law. Teachers will not be required to teach remotely using live lessons on the first six (6) calamity days. Teachers in grades PreK-12 are not required to report to school on calamity days. After the third (3rd) calamity day, the ETA and administration will meet to discuss a mutually agreeable procedure for making up time in the event there are more than six (6) calamity days.

There shall be no change to Section 2.1.1 of the Agreement which states, the teachers' year shall consist of 184 days of regularly scheduled service as prescribed in the official calendar adopted by the Board of Education.

All buildings shall retain the same start and end time and the school day for each building shall be defined as the same number of minutes as currently worked in each building, unless mutually agreed upon by the Association and Administration.

In no event will this Calamity Day language cause the District to provide fewer hours of instruction as required by law.

2.14 Lesson Plans

Teachers are to keep lesson plans on their desk, on a work table or in electronic format and available to the building administrator each Monday morning. Teachers must have a minimum of three (3) days plans available at the time the building administrator checks them. Any teacher who does not have plans available more than once will have to turn in a copy of their lesson plans to the building administrator each week for the remainder of the year. If the teacher is absent, she/he may email the plans to the building administrator.

2.15 Teacher Dress

Appropriate and professional dress includes Euclid City School District spirit wear but not spirit wear for other schools serving one or more of the grades PreK-12.

2.16 Weekly Office Hours

For K-12 teachers, each teacher shall have office hours 20 minutes per week. Teachers have discretion on the time-of-day office hours are held, so long as the time is when students would typically be available to participate (e.g., immediately after school, in the evening after students would arrive home but prior to bedtime).

The office hours' time will be scheduled/published to families and the building principal, and posted within the first week of each quarter. Absent extenuating circumstances, office hours will remain consistent during the quarter. Teachers will notify the principal, students and families of any office hour change during the quarter.

Office hours may be in person or virtual. For kindergarten teachers, so long as the kindergarten teachers' schedule is aligned to the preschool schedule at the ELV, kindergarten will be excluded from the 20-minute office hours.

At the middle school, twenty (20) minutes of one morning team meeting time weekly will be eliminated in order to allow for office hours at the teacher's discretion as implemented for K-12 teachers.

Office hours cannot be used for the purpose of an OTES 2.0 walkthrough.

3. EVALUATION

The Board of Education is responsible for a standards-based teacher evaluation policy and related practices that conform to the framework for evaluation of teachers as approved by the State Board of Education and aligns with the "Standards for the Teaching Profession" as set forth in State law.

The Board has adopted the Ohio Teacher Evaluation System 2.0 ("OTES 2.0").

Given the dynamic nature of the mandated teacher evaluation process, the Board authorizes the Superintendent to establish and maintain an ongoing Evaluation Policy Consultation committee, with continuing participation by District teachers represented by the Euclid Teachers Association. The committee is for the express purpose of recommending necessary changes to the Board: 1) for the appropriate revision of Board policy, 2) creation and revision of forms relevant to the evaluation process, 3) the determinations of HQSD for the evaluation of teachers in the district, and 4) participate in the selection and review of vendor assessments or other instruments used to gather HQSD.

The committee shall be comprised of up to twelve (12) Association members and shall be appointed by the Association President or designee after consultation with the Superintendent or designee, and comprised of up to eight (8) individuals appointed by the Superintendent or designee after consultation with the Association President or designee. Association committee members shall serve on staggered terms of not more than three (3) years, and may be reappointed for additional terms. Committee members will be identified by opening day of the school year.

Association committee members must have been rated accomplished and no more than five (5) of the twelve (12) members rated skilled within the last three (3) years. Association members shall be representative of Pre-K, elementary, middle school, secondary and specialty areas (i.e. music, art, special education) and programs (i.e. career tech) within the District. The committee may establish subcommittees to assist with its work.

Committee members shall receive training regarding OTES 2.0. Training fees, if any, shall be paid by the Board. If training is scheduled by the administration during the work day, committee members will receive release time for such scheduled training.

The committee shall be chaired jointly by a committee member from the Association and a committee member appointed by the Superintendent, for example, in order to develop the agendas for the meetings, review data related to OTES, and to communicate with committee members.

Committee work shall count as "professional development training" for Article 8.3; however, committee members may submit an additional five-hour increment under Article 8.3 (up to a total of twenty-five hours for all professional development training) for committee work done outside the regular work day.

All committee recommendations shall be achieved by consensus.

3.1 Standards-Based Teacher Evaluation

Teacher evaluations will utilize multiple factors, with the intent of providing meaningful feedback to each teacher and assigning an effectiveness rating. OTES 2.0 is a professional growth model and is intended to be used to continually assist educators in enhancing teacher performance. An effective professional growth model considers a teacher's instructional strengths, while supporting identified areas for improvement and focus areas, as well as acknowledging performance deficiencies.

Each teacher will be evaluated according to the Ohio Revised Code 3319.112 and the Ohio Teacher Evaluation Framework, which is aligned with the Ohio Standards for the Teaching Profession. The final holistic evaluation rating shall be assessed in a holistic manner, meaning the evaluator will assess which performance level provides the best overall description of the teacher's practice considering evidence gathered during any preconferences, the formal observations, the post-conference(s), classroom walkthroughs, and evidence of practice and professionalism

Each teacher evaluation will result in a final holistic rating of:

- a) Accomplished;
- b) Skilled;
- c) Developing; or
- d) Ineffective

The specific standards and criteria for distinguishing between these ratings/levels of performance shall be the same as those developed by the State Board of Education.

No teacher shall be evaluated on his or her classroom performance except

based on the observation of the teacher by their assigned evaluator and the informal evaluations that are set forth in this agreement, unless any identified concern is followed by a meeting between the evaluator or supervisor and the teacher to address questions arising from the concern.

A teacher shall not be formally evaluated where he/she submits a notice of retirement that was accepted by the Board no later than December 1st of the year the teacher was scheduled to be evaluated.

To the extent allowable by law, the teacher being evaluated, ETA, and Board/designee may mutually agree not to evaluate a teacher due to unusual circumstances or extenuating circumstances on a case-by-case basis.

3.2 Assessment of Teacher Performance

Teacher performance will be evaluated by an assigned OTES 2.0 Euclid credentialed administrator during formal observations and periodic informal observations also known as "classroom walkthroughs." Such performance will be assessed through a holistic process by trained and credentialed evaluators based upon the *Ohio Standards for the Teaching Profession*.

3.3 Professional Growth and Improvement Plans (Goal-Setting)

Annually the credentialed Euclid administrators responsible for observation and evaluations shall meet with teachers to discuss and develop Professional Growth Plans or Improvement Plans.

- 1. Teachers with a final holistic rating of Accomplished annually develop a self-directed Professional Growth Plan.
- 2. Teachers with a final holistic rating of Skilled and for teachers new to the District annually develop a Professional Growth Plan initiated by the teacher and completed collaboratively with the evaluator.
- 3. Teachers with a final holistic rating of Developing annually develop a Professional Growth Plan with their evaluator who will grant final approval of the plan.
- 4. Teachers with a final holistic rating of Ineffective will be placed on an improvement plan which will be developed with input from the teacher, with the evaluator granting final approval (OhioES requires the evaluator to initiate the Improvement Plan.)

This process shall be completed by September 30. Any goal revisions after September 30 shall follow the process described in this Article 3.3. For teachers with a Professional Growth Plan, revisions shall be teacher initiated. See Form – Appendix "I."-Improvement plans are also developed in accordance with Article 3.8.1. The Professional Growth Plan should be individualized to address the needs of the teacher.

The Euclid credentialed administrator and/or district should provide for professional development opportunities that support the professional growth of the teacher.

Teachers will be required to have two goals that address an element of a standard of the Ohio Standards for the Teaching Profession and/or components of the observation domains. At least one of the goals must address the teacher's contribution to the achievement of a District goal and/or building goal.

The District will post electronically the Ohio Standards for the Teaching Profession, the OTES 2.0 rubric (which is also contained in Appendix I), and information regarding the District and building achievement goals.

The use of any self-reflection form for goal setting is optional.

The teacher and the evaluator will have a conference at least once a year to discuss the teacher's progress on the teacher's Professional Growth Plan.

3.4 Formal Observation and Classroom Walkthrough Sequence

- 3.4.1 All instructors who meet the definition of "teacher" under R.C. 3319.111 and this policy shall be evaluated based on two formal observations and periodic classroom walkthroughs each school year. The first formal holistic observation will be completed by the last teacher work day of the first semester, absent extenuating circumstances. A minimum of one (1) walkthrough/informal observation shall be included in each evaluation cycle, absent extenuating circumstances.
- 3.4.2 Teachers who are employed under a limited contract and who are under consideration for nonrenewal shall receive at least three formal observations in addition to periodic classroom walkthroughs. The second and third observations will concentrate on identified focus area(s) from the first holistic formal observation. An administrator will inform the teacher that she or he is under consideration for nonrenewal.

Evaluations will be completed by May 1st and each teacher will be provided a written report of the results of his/her evaluation by May 10th. Written notice of nonrenewal will be provided by June 1st.

Each teacher evaluated under this policy may annually complete The Ohio Department of Education's "Self-Assessment," for purposes of goal-setting.

3.5 Formal Observation Procedure

3.5.1 Formal holistic observations shall be preceded by a conference between the evaluator and the employee prior to the observation in order for the employee to explain plans and objectives for the classroom situation to be observed. The preconference shall typically be between 20 and 40 minutes in duration. The parties may mutually waive the written preconference questions for the second formal observation. Formal observations (holistic and focused formal observations) will be announced.

The pre-conference shall be scheduled at a mutually agreeable day and time no more than five (5) school days prior to the scheduled observation, absent extenuating circumstances, with the evaluator setting a date should a mutually agreeable day be unattainable. Cancellation/rescheduling of a preconference will only occur as the result of extenuating circumstances.

At the pre-conference, the evaluator and teacher shall discuss what the evaluator will observe during the classroom visitation and any other information relevant to the performance rubric. Important information is shared about the characteristics of the learners and learning environment. Specific information is also shared about the objectives of the lesson, the assessment of student learning, and any other relevant issues. Absent extenuating circumstances or unless agreed upon by the evaluator and teacher, the teacher will come prepared with a lesson plan for the day of the scheduled observation and any relevant data not available in OhioES. The teacher should also be prepared by having reviewed and completed pre-conference questions before the preconference, and by being ready to discuss what came before and will come after the lesson to be observed. The conference will also provide the teacher an opportunity to request focused feedback on identified areas from the evaluator during the classroom observation.

Should the lesson plan change between the pre-conference and formal

observation, the teacher shall provide a copy of the lesson plan in advance of the observation.

Regarding pre-conference questions, the evaluator will provide the teacher with a maximum of fifteen (15) preconference questions. The selected pre-conference questions shall be consistent within each building. The teacher is to provide written responses to these questions in OhioES. The evaluator may ask additional questions about the lesson.

- 3.5.2 The formal (holistic and focused formal observations) classroom observation should be conducted at a mutually agreed upon date and time (to the extent possible, with the evaluator setting a date should a mutually agreeable day be unattainable) for the duration of the lesson to be observed. Each formal observation will be analyzed by the evaluator using the Teacher Performance Evaluation Rubric. Formal observations will not include videotaping or sound recordings except with agreement of the teacher, or where required by law or regulation.
- 3.5.3 A post-observation conference shall be held no more than seven (7) school days after each formal (holistic and focused) observation, absent extenuating circumstances, during a mutually agreed upon date and time to the extent possible, with the evaluator setting a date should a mutually agreeable day be unattainable.

The purpose of the post-observation conference is to provide reflection and feedback to increase teacher effectiveness. The evaluator shall provide additional strategies and/or resources when a teacher scores developing or ineffective in any rubric category or upon request of the teacher. In general, the discussion between the evaluator and teacher will center on area(s) of focus and growth. Teachers may bring additional evidence that supports the lesson observed to share with the evaluator at the conference. The evaluator may consider these as evidence of student learning or evidence to support the teacher's performance.

At the first post-conference, based on the first semester formal holistic observation, one or two focus area(s) for the second formal observation will be determined. A focus area is defined as one component on the Rubric. The District will provide support, if needed.

1. Any teacher rated accomplished on the holistic observation will determine independently his or her own focus area(s).

- 2. Any teacher rated skilled on the holistic observation will collaborate to mutually agree upon her/his own focus area(s).
- 3. For any teacher rated developing or ineffective on the holistic observation, the evaluator will confer with the teacher and determine the area(s) of focus.

An evaluator may collect evidence at the second formal observation, or as otherwise described in this Article, to support a Final Holistic Rating at the end of the evaluation cycle.

If a third formal observation is given, the evaluator will determine the area(s) of focus that will concentrate on identified focus area(s) from the first holistic formal observation.

The teacher will be able to view a copy of the observation rubric at the post-conference, and may request a paper copy. Specifically, the post-conference will include the evaluator reviewing the teacher's preliminary rating for each standard, as well as a preliminary overall holistic rating based on evidence collected to date.

A teacher shall be permitted to attach comments regarding his/her own performance to the Teacher Performance Evaluation Rubric.

The evaluation report shall be PINed by the evaluator, which shall constitute written notice of the evaluation report to the teacher. A teacher should enter his/her PIN within seven (7) school days of the post conference, or after one follow-up meeting has taken place (if requested), unless there are extenuating circumstances. The teacher's PIN signature should not be construed as evidence that the teacher agrees with the contents of the evaluation report. Once a teacher has entered his/her PIN the rubric shall not be changed without communication with the teacher.

- **3.5.4** Less Frequent Evaluation Cycle of Teachers with Five or More Years of District Teaching or Related Service Experience Receiving an "Accomplished" or "Skilled" Rating.
 - **3.5.4.1** All teachers with five or more years of District teaching or related service experience who received a final holistic rating of "accomplished" on the teacher's most recent evaluation

conducted under this policy will have the subsequent evaluation in the third year of a three-year cycle, instead of an annual basis, so long as the teacher submits a self-directed Professional Growth Plan to the evaluator, and the evaluator using documented evidence determines the teacher is making progress on that plan. The evaluation shall be completed by the first day of May of the applicable school year, and the teacher shall receive a written report of the results of the evaluation by the tenth of May of that school year.

- 3.5.4.2 All teachers with five or more years of District teaching or related service experience who received a holistic rating of "skilled" on the teacher's most recent evaluation conducted under this policy will have the subsequent evaluation in the second year of a two-year cycle, instead of an annual basis, so long as the teacher and evaluator jointly develop a Professional Growth Plan for the teacher, and the evaluator using documented evidence determines the teacher is making progress on that plan. The evaluation shall be completed by the first day of May of the applicable school year, and the teacher shall receive a written report of the results of the evaluation by the tenth of May of that school year.
- 3.5.4.3 Consistent with the requirement set forth in the Ohio Revised Code, in any year in which a teacher is not formally evaluated, the teacher will have at least one informal observation (walkthrough) and conference with their evaluator. In that case, the evaluation shall be completed by the first day of May of the applicable school year, and the teacher shall receive a written report of the results of the evaluation by May 10 of that school year.
- **3.5.4.4** Nothing in this Article 3.5.4 will prevent the District from initiating an evaluation cycle.

3.6 Walkthroughs / Informal Observations

The purpose of walkthroughs/informal observations is to provide the opportunity to gather evidence of instruction over a series of short classroom visits. Walkthroughs for evaluation purpose shall be observations of ten (10) minutes or more. Every reasonable effort will be made to observe teachers at different times of the day. Walkthroughs will be conducted by the assigned

OTES Euclid credentialed district administrators. The credentialed administrators hired through ESC funds and assigned full time to a Euclid school's building exclusively shall be considered district credentialed administrators for OTES evaluation purposes.

Classroom walkthroughs / informal observations, as part of a teacher evaluation cycle, may be general in nature or focused on observing a specific aspect of teacher performance. Evidence collected through a series of walkthroughs along with evidence documented through formal observations will be used to generate the summative holistic rating.

Walkthroughs/informal observations will be conducted by the assigned OTES Euclid credentialed district administrators. Walkthroughs/informal observations are intended to establish a connection between the evaluator and the teacher and monitor the teacher's progress.

Walkthroughs and observations resulting in identification of performance deficiencies or concerns shall be followed by a meeting within five (5) work days between the evaluator and the employee in order to discuss questions arising from the observation.

Teachers will be provided written feedback on evaluator walkthroughs on the Classroom Walkthrough/Informal Observation Form (Appendix "I"). Feedback will be provided promptly following the completion of the walkthrough – i.e., within seven (7) work days of the walkthrough, absent extenuating circumstances.

3.7 High Quality Student Data ("HQSD")

Annually, the Superintendent shall develop a list of approved high-quality student data in consultation with experts in the field of education and with the District's Evaluation Policy Consultation committee.

At least two measures of high-quality student data will be used as evidence of student learning. When applicable to the grade level or subject taught by the teacher being evaluated, HQSD shall include the value-added progress dimension as one source of HQSD. Prior to a teacher using his/her own assessment for HQSD, he/she must follow the established procedure for submitting HQSD for review. If the assessment does not meet the criteria for HQSD, the teacher shall be provided appropriate feedback and guidance for revision.

The teacher will select measures of high-quality student data from the approved list, and will provide evidence that demonstrates the teacher has used the data in accordance with the OTES rubric. The evaluator may use the data as evidence to determine a performance rating in any component of the evaluation as it relates to the OTES rubric and where applicable.

3.8 Improvement Plan Guidance

The purpose of the improvement plan is to identify specific deficiencies in performance and foster growth through professional development and targeted support.

- **3.8.1** Teachers may be placed on an improvement plan if:
 - A licensed staff member earns an ineffective rating in two components of one domain.
 - At the end of the school year, the acceptable level of performance is not met. The acceptable level of performance varies depending on the teacher's years of experience. Teachers in residency—specifically in Years 1 through 4—are expected to perform at the "Developing" level or above. Experienced teachers—with five or more years of experience—are expected to meet the "Skilled" level or above.
 - **3.8.1.2** When an Improvement Plan is initiated by the evaluator, it is the responsibility of the evaluator to:
 - Identify, in writing, the specific area(s) (not to exceed two (2)) for improvement to be addressed in relationship to the Ohio Standards for the Teaching Profession;
 - Specify, in writing, the desired level of performance that is expected to improve and the timeline for same;
 - Develop and implement a written plan for improvement that includes resources and assistance available:
 - Determine additional education or professional development needed to improve in the identified area(s); and
 - Gather evidence of progress or lack of progress
 - If the district approves coursework for the teacher on an improvement plan, the district will reimburse the cost of the class, or the coursework may be used for salary advancement, or professional development compensation.

3.8.1.3 Any member being placed on or continuing an improvement plan may submit a request to the Superintendent for a new evaluator.

3.8.2 Improvement Plan timeline:

- This plan shall serve as the goal setting process identified in Section 3.3.
- To the extent known by the administration, by January 15, the district will provide ETA with a list of teachers being considered for an improvement plan. Absent extenuating circumstances and to the extent known, by April 25th, the district will provide ETA with a list of teachers being placed on an improvement plan for the following school year.
- Any teacher being placed on an improvement plan shall be notified of such no later than May 1 of each year, absent extenuating circumstances.
- An improvement plan for the following year can be drafted after May 10th in anticipation for the next school year so that the teacher has the opportunity to take courses and/or plan during the summer months.
- If not completed in May of the previous year, improvement plans will be completed by the September 30th deadline for goal setting.
- In some situations, an improvement plan may be started during the school year. An example of this may be for a teacher that earns an ineffective rating as a result of their first observation.

3.8.3 Improvement plan meetings:

- All licensed staff members on an improvement plan have the option to invite an ETA president appointee to their improvement plan meeting.
- All licensed staff members on an improvement plan due to final holistic ineffective rating will have their improvement plan meeting in conjunction with the evaluator, superintendent or designee, and the ETA president or designee.

In May of the preceding year, the ETA President or OTES 2.0 Improvement Plan designee may request from the Superintendent a period of daily release time, or assignment time within the work day, to provide support for individuals on improvement plans, to attend the monthly improvement plan meeting, and any other necessary meetings to support teacher performance.

Licensed staff members wishing to bid while working on an improvement plan shall meet with the ETA president and/or designee and Superintendent designee for consultation regarding the right to bid.

Improvement Plan forms are attached in the Appendix "I."

3.9 Retention and Promotion Decisions/Removal of Poorly Performing Teachers

It is the purpose of this Standards-Based Teacher Evaluation Policy to improve the quality of instruction, enhance student learning and strengthen professional competence through meaningful feedback and targeted professional development. In addition, the evaluations produced will serve to inform the Board on employment decisions, i.e., retention, promotion of teachers, renewal of teaching contracts, and the removal/nonrenewal of poorly performing teachers.

The removal of poorly performing teachers shall be in accordance with the Ohio Revised Code and any applicable provisions of this Collective Bargaining Agreement.

3.10 Removal of Poorly Performing Teachers

After completing an Improvement Plan, not to extend beyond three consecutive school years, a poorly performing teacher may be removed, upon recommendation of the Superintendent, either through non-renewal or termination.

3.11 General

- 3.11.1 Parents and students will not be permitted to attend evaluation/discipline conferences with members of the administration. Further, direct comments from parents and students will not be included in teacher evaluations.
- **3.11.2** Teachers will be advised of parental complaints or concerns that might become part of the written evaluation program.
- 3.11.3 Observations will not be conducted on two consecutive days or the day

- preceding or following winter or spring break unless mutually agreed.
- **3.11.4** By September 30 each teacher will be notified of their evaluation status and options for the academic year. Teachers will be either on a professional growth plan or improvement plan, and for accomplished and skilled teachers with five or more years of District teaching or related service experience, their evaluation will be consistent with Article 3.5.4.
- 3.11.5 The parties agree that compliance with this evaluation procedure shall satisfy the provisions of O.R.C. 3319.111. The parties agree that a limited contract teacher may elect to file a grievance under this Agreement or pursue the remedies set forth in Ohio Revised Code Section 3319.11. However, said teacher may not pursue both statutory and grievance remedies, but must make an election.
- **3.11.6** The Evaluation Policy Consultation committee will promptly generate revisions as needed to these procedures and evaluation forms in the Appendix. To be effective, any revisions must be approved by ETA Executive Board and the Superintendent.
- **3.11.7** Performance Evaluation for Instructional Coaches, Itinerant Teachers, Psychologists, Therapists (Speech, OT's, PT's, and Nurses) shall be assessed based upon this Agreement (rubrics in Appendix J) and shall follow the applicable timelines required under this Article.
- **3.11.8** Guidance counselors shall be evaluated using a standards-based evaluation system pursuant to the Board-adopted evaluation policy for this purpose, as aligned with Ohio Revised Code and the "Ohio Standards for Counselors" (Appendix K) and shall follow the applicable timelines required under this Article.
- **3.11.9** Upon request, ETA will be provided with a list of OTES 2.0 credentialed evaluators as of the date of the request.
- 3.11.10 Teachers shall be provided job embedded time to discuss with colleagues the use of HQSD in their teaching and to reflect upon and document progress on her/his professional growth plan and area of focus.
- **3.11.11** Beginning with the 2021-2022 school year, the District shall provide ongoing training on OTES 2.0, which may include, for example, the components of the teacher evaluation procedure, the evaluation

standards for Ohio Educators, rubrics, tools, processes, methodology, and the use of High Quality Student Data (HQSD).

4. PERSONNEL FILES

The Board shall retain one (1) personnel file for each employee which shall be in the Fordyce Building. It shall contain necessary pre-employment information, routine financial and personal data, and all post-employment materials that relate to performance and discipline.

4.1 Any post-employment materials in a teacher's personnel file may be reviewed by the teacher.

The teacher shall receive upon request a copy of any material in the file except as prohibited below at no cost to the employee.

- **4.2** No confidential pre-employment information, evaluations, or references may be reviewed by the teacher.
- **4.3** No anonymous letter or report should be the basis for any evaluation or entry in the teacher's personnel file.
- **4.4** In any written communication between administrative offices regarding a teacher, the teacher should be sent a copy of the letter or memo.
- **4.5** Any written formal evaluation of the teacher should follow the procedures as listed in Article 3 of the Agreement.
- **4.6** A teacher may send a reply regarding any written evaluation to the appropriate administrator. Such reply will be attached to the electronic evaluation.
- **4.7** All entries into the personnel file shall be signed and dated as to entry. Any person who reviews a personnel file shall sign a record card indicating the date and time of his/her access to the file.
- 4.8 Prior to placement of a document in his or her personnel file, a teacher shall be entitled to review any clearly derogatory information and to have present at such review a representative of the teacher's choice if the teacher so desires. The teacher may respond in writing to such information and may have the response affixed by staple to the information.
- 4.9 Confidential personal information in the nature of medical information or personal disbursement of paycheck monies is not subject, absent court order, to review by any person other than the custodian of the personnel file or the

- individual teacher. This information may not be released to anyone without the teacher's permission.
- 4.10 The administration will notify the affected employee of a non-employee request to review the file by a citizen before the file is made available for review. Non-employee requests for file review shall be made on a specific form with a copy provided to the teacher. Such reviews are made by appointment pursuant to Board policy.
- **4.11** Only one personnel file will be maintained at the Board offices.
- **4.12** No negative or derogatory comments by an administrator shall be included in the file unless directly observed by the administrator or as a result of an official investigation.
- **4.13** Pre-employment information shall not be maintained in the file after initial employment, except for the initial employment application.
- **4.14** This Article 4 shall be construed to comply with Ohio law.
- **4.15** No parent or student written comments concerning the performance or behavior of a teacher shall be included in the file without prior investigation by a member of the administration.
- **4.16** All personal information shall be confidential. No personal addresses and phone numbers of teachers shall be given out by the Euclid City School District to any outside entities.

5. TRANSFER AND ASSIGNMENT

In the determination of teacher or administrative initiated reassignment and/or transfer, the convenience and wishes of the individual teacher will be honored to the extent that they do not conflict with the instructional requirements and best interests of the school system.

5.1 Vacancies

5.1.1 All teachers shall receive an individual e-mail of the openings. The openings will also be posted on the District website within five (5) calendar days after the decision to fill the opening. This will be the process for the entire school year as well as the summer for vacancy Through the last teacher work day of a school year, vacancies shall be posted for a period of four (4) calendar days. When a vacancy arises after the last teacher work day of a school year, the posting period will be two (2) calendar days. The posting period of two (2) calendar days will continue until the first teacher workshop day. Beginning with the first teacher workshop day, the standard posting period shall revert to four (4) calendar days. Vacancies must be posted by 9 a.m. in order to count toward the posting period requirement. Administrative positions will also be posted as a matter of information although they do not fall within the terms of the Agreement. Where there were no applicants for an earlier posting in the same building in same area of licensure, a vacancy does not need to be reposted. As well, where there were no applicants for an earlier posting in the same building in the same grade level (in the K-5 area), a vacancy does not need to be reposted.

Any teacher interested in the vacancy shall submit an electronic bid for consideration on or before the end of the 4 or 2 day posting period. The posting shall identify certification area, grade level, building, type of position, and anticipated starting date. It shall also identify whether or not bids from outside the certification area are subject to Section 5.3.6.

A teacher bidding on a middle school position must hold the appropriate license to teach the position. Where the position involves the teaching of mathematics or science to middle school students for high school credit, the bidding teacher must meet HQT high school standards for the content area and hold a proper certificate/license for the area(s).

Jobs that are outside of the regular classroom position (the position would not have a regular classroom, e.g. Reading Coach, Technology Coach, Guidance Counselors, etc.) shall be filled as follows:

- a. A quantitative Rubric shall be created with meaningful input from ETA and completed by the applicant, within seven (7) calendar days. (Openings will not be posted during winter or spring break.)
- b. If more than one teacher has applied for the same position, and their qualifications are substantially equal, seniority in the school system shall control.
- **c**. If there is a tie, a Committee of two ETA reps appointed by the ETA President and two administrators shall convene a meeting with the applicant. The applicant shall complete a checklist for the committee to review to further assist the selection.
- 5.1.1.1 A vacancy created by a leave of absence for one school year or less at the time the leave is granted (if an appropriately certified person is NOT on the recall list) shall be filled by a temporary teaching employee. During that period, the temporary teacher shall not be entitled to apply for other vacancies (excluding supplementals), shall be automatically nonrenewed at the end of that year, and shall have no recall rights. If that teacher is rehired for the following year (as other than a leave replacement teacher), she/he will have all rights and benefits of the contract, including seniority credit for the period of service as a leave replacement teacher.

Should the leave be extended to a second year, the vacancy shall be posted and filled pursuant to Section 5.1.

- 5.1.2 The Board must either post a known vacancy, with a copy to ETA, or give ETA written notice with reasons if the Board decides not to fill or delay filling a vacancy within ten (10) school days of the occurrence of the vacancy.
- **5.1.3** When a posted opening is filled by a currently assigned teacher, the administration may defer the actual transfer of the teacher until the beginning of the next semester.

If an opening is filled but the decision is to defer the actual transfer, the administration may use substitute teachers or temporary replacements during the interim unless there is an eligible teacher with recall rights under Article 6, Section 6.5.11 of this Agreement.

If an opening occurs right after April 1 for the remainder of the school year, recall rights may be deferred until the summer and posting for such openings and for openings to take effect on the next succeeding school year may be deferred until May 15th or when the openings develop, whichever is later.

All teachers will be eligible to bid for openings. The fact that an individual teacher has been in the position on a temporary assignment during the school year will not give an advantage to that teacher for the position.

- 5.1.4 The rights set forth under this Article take preference before recall, except as set forth in Section 5.3.6. If a teacher has been laid off, and his/her name is on the recall list under Article 6, said teacher is not eligible to bid on a posted vacancy. After posting and bidding has occurred and there is a vacant full-time position for which the teacher is qualified, the eligible teacher will be given a recall notice.
- 5.1.5 Teachers moving from one building to another shall have their materials and supplies moved for them prior to the date of their initial teaching assignment in the new building, provided that the teacher packs the materials and supplies to be moved and provided that the teacher initiates a work order form to the Business Office for such a move at least one week in advance of the desired moving date. The Board is not responsible for damage to personal items that are moved.

Principals who initiate room changes for multiple teachers will determine those moves by May 1. In the event the administration determines a singular room change is necessary, and where the teacher is required to move between the last day of the school year and the first teacher workshop day, the impacted teacher(s) shall receive compensation at the District's summer curriculum rate not to exceed three (3) days.

5.1.6 Bid Day

Unless cancelled by mutual agreement of the ETA and District, each school year, a bid day will be conducted upon a mutually agreeable date. Positions available on bid day are those vacancies known to be available for the succeeding school year due to retirements or

resignations or the creation of new professional positions by the bid day date. The date of the bid day meeting will be established by agreement between the ETA President and the Superintendent's designee. The provisions of Article 5 in Section 5.2 shall govern the filling of posted positions. During the bid day process, the newly-created vacancy will be posted for bidding. Those teachers present in person or by proxy may bid for posted vacancies until all are filled. Vacancies arising after this meeting will be posted and filled in accordance with Sections 5.1 and 5.2. All teaching vacancies due to announced retirements will be posted ten (10) days prior to bid day and shall be available for review by the ETA.

5.2 Teacher Initiated Transfers

5.2.1 After holding a fulltime teaching position in the District for at least three (3) years, teachers may request a transfer at any time by giving written notice to the Superintendent or his/her designee within four (4) calendar days of the posted opening. However, when the vacancy occurs on or after the last teacher work day of a school year up to the first teacher workshop day of the following school year, the posting period will be two (2) calendar days.

The teacher's request shall be considered timely if it is received or postmarked before or during the posting period.

For teachers who have completed their third year of fulltime teaching in the District, through completion of their ninth year of fulltime teaching in the District, the following shall apply to those requesting a transfer:

- If such teacher requests to transfer to a position within his/her current building, the interested teacher will meet with an ETA building representative and the building principal to give the teacher an opportunity to formally express his/her interest in transferring, and to give the District the opportunity to provide its input on the transfer request.
- 2. If such teacher requests to transfer to a position within the same grade level or in the same subject matter, no meeting shall take place.
- If such teacher requests to transfer to a position in another building and another grade level or subject matter, the interested

teacher will meet with the ETA President or designee and the Superintendent to give the teacher an opportunity to formally express his/her interest in transferring, and to give the District the opportunity to provide its input on the transfer request.

At the completion of a teacher's ninth year of fulltime teaching in the District, such meeting provisions in 1-3 above shall not apply.

For purposes of this Article 5.2.1, completion of a fulltime year of teaching requires 120 or more days of classroom instruction in that year (this excludes tutor and substitute service). Thus, so long as an individual is not on an improvement plan or notified in writing that he/she is going to be placed on an improvement plan, an individual who completes his/her third year of fulltime teaching could bid during a spring/summer cycle following his/her third year for the following school year's position.

No vacancy will be permanently filled until at least four (4) calendar days after the end of the posting period set forth above.

- **5.2.2** If more than one teacher has applied for the same position, and qualifications are substantially equal, seniority in the school system shall control.
- **5.2.3** The Superintendent or his/her designee shall notify all teachers requesting transfers of the disposition of their request within ten (10) days after close of the posting with written reasons if denied.
- **5.2.4** Teachers may have pending requests for transfer to up to three (3) positions at any time.
- 5.2.5 If a posting that was posted for the start of the following year is closed out during the summer, the teacher who bid for and received it shall remain at his/her original assignment and any subsequent related bidding shall also be nullified.
- **5.2.6** After a posting closes, if any positions remain open and before new hires are considered, teachers holding a fulltime teaching position who have yet to complete three (3) years in the District may request consideration for the vacant position. The Superintendent will consider the request and has the discretion to approve or deny it.

5.3 Administrative Initiated Transfers

- **5.3.1** Notice of an involuntary transfer or reassignment shall be given to teachers as soon as possible. A list of these teachers, current positions, and new assignments, when made, shall be given to the ETA President.
- **5.3.2** Involuntary transfers shall be made according to seniority unless they conflict with the instructional requirements and best interest of the school, and only after volunteers have been sought.
- **5.3.3** An involuntary transfer or reassignment will be made only after a meeting between the teacher involved and the Superintendent, or his designee, at which time the teacher will be given reasons for the transfer.
- **5.3.4** In all involuntary transfers, the person initiating the involuntary transfer request shall state such request in writing to the Superintendent with copies to the teacher or teachers involved in transfer request.
- 5.3.5 Teachers being involuntarily transferred or reassigned shall have the right to apply for any open positions prior to being reassigned. All such teachers will be given opportunity of released time for the purpose of visiting schools at which the open position exists.

5.3.6 Redistribution

If a teacher's position/assignment has been eliminated, but there continues to be a need for the teacher in that certification/licensure area, i.e., there will be no RIF in that area—only transfer/reassignment in that area, a "redistribution" of teachers is deemed to occur. The affected teacher(s) shall be given the right, on a seniority preference basis, to apply for each open position in his/her current area of certification/licensure in order of preference. While other teachers from both inside and outside the certification/licensure area may also voluntarily bid for these positions, the teacher(s) being redistributed within the certification/licensure area must be reassigned before any voluntary transfer from outside the certification/licensure area can be finalized that forces a layoff from the certification/licensure area. The purpose of this section is to avoid a layoff or layoff displacement caused by the addition of teachers into the certification/licensure area affected by redistribution.

5.3.7 When the administrative initiated transfer is due to declining enrollment or redistribution, the transferred teacher, including one who exercised

redistribution rights, shall have the right to be returned to his/her original building or assignment if an opening occurs for which he/she is certified between April 1 and the opening of the next school year. This provision shall also hold true for any teacher laid off and recalled before the opening of school.

5.4 Teacher Swap/Trade

Two teachers may swap/trade positions within a building without the position being posted in accordance with the procedures in this negotiated agreement. Prior to that swap/trade, a conversation shall first occur with the building administration, affected teachers and an ETA representative. Agreement must be reached with all parties.

5.5 Assignment to Open Position

If a position is open and not yet posted, or if a position has been posted and remains open, in accordance with the procedures in this negotiated agreement, a building administrator may move a teacher within the building into the open position for the subsequent school year after a meeting with an ETA representative and the teacher to present the rationale for the move. The teacher's vacated position shall be posted. No more than two (2) teachers in a building shall be subject to this procedure in a school year. The teacher must be notified of the transfer on or before the last day of the school year, unless the teacher and administrator agree to the move where notice is provided between the first day of summer break and July 11. The teacher assigned shall not be administratively moved again for at least three (3) school years. All tenured teachers have the right of refusal. A licensed/certified intervention specialist teaching general education shall not be involuntarily transferred into an intervention specialist position. The assignment of a teacher to an open position shall not cause another teacher's reduction in force nor shall it prevent displaced teachers from assuming a position to avoid being reduced in force.

5.6 Definitions

- **5.6.1** An opening is defined as a current or new teaching position that is or will become available on or before the beginning of the next semester.
- **5.6.2** Seniority for this and other articles unless specified shall be defined in Article 7.

- **5.6.3** Transfer is the reassignment of a teacher to a different certification/licensure area or grade for the majority of the teacher's assignment or to a different building.
- 5.7 Posting and bidding rights take preference before recall. Therefore, no teacher whose name appears on the reduction in force list under Article 6, Section 6.5 (and irrespective of whether such person is not working at all for the District or is working at other than a regular full-time teaching position) shall be eligible to bid on a posted vacancy. After posting and bidding has occurred and there is a vacant full-time position for which the teacher is qualified, the teacher will be given a recall notice. This applies even if the teacher has been hired as a substitute or less than a full-time teacher.

5.8 Supplemental Postings

Vacant supplemental positions that will be filled shall be posted within ten (10) school days of the occurrence of the vacancy, with a copy to ETA. Teachers may apply in writing within seven (7) days of the posted opening. No supplemental vacancy will be permanently filled until at least seven (7) calendar days after the end of the posting period. The Superintendent or designee shall notify all teachers who applied for the posted vacancy(ies) regarding the disposition of their request within ten (10) days after the close of the posting. When a vacancy arises in a supplemental position, and before employment under a supplemental contract is offered to individuals who are not members of the Association bargaining unit, those teachers who have expressed an interest in that vacancy and who are qualified to perform the supplemental contract duties shall be offered the vacant position. Nonbargaining unit members or persons not employed by the District who are in a supplemental position shall not be removed from said supplemental positions provided they continue to be qualified and perform appropriately in such positions.

- 5.8.1 All unfilled supplemental contract positions including extended time shall be posted in May if the supplemental contracts were not renewed, or when they become known. Only extended time positions will be subject to seniority bid, and bidding shall be among the bargaining unit members holding the applicable assignment in the applicable building.
- **5.8.2** Annually a sub-committee composed of 3 teachers appointed by the ETA President and 3 administrators appointed by the Superintendent shall meet no later than May 15 of each year to review supplemental positions, consider whether positions should be eliminated, modified or

added, and the compensation for each position for the following school year. The subcommittee's recommendations shall be submitted to the ETA/Superintendent's Meeting for a final determination.

- 5.8.3 Where there is a performance concern for an ETA member holding a supplemental, the appropriate administrator will meet with the holder of that supplemental during the course of delivery of that supplemental (e.g., during the athletic season) to discuss the concerns and/or areas for improvement, and shall utilize the evaluation rubric for same. Should that administrator not recommend a re-hire for performance concerns, the administrator will meet with the holder of that supplemental within ten (10) school days of the supplemental contract's term (e.g., the end of an athletic season), and shall utilize the evaluation rubric for this second meeting. No ETA member shall be required to provide feedback for another ETA member for such evaluation. If the administrator discovers a serious concern or if the ETA member commits a serious offense that would typically result in removal, then the rubric procedure described herein will not prevent removal or a lack of recommendation for re-hire.
- **5.8.4** For the 2021-2022, 2022-2023, and 2023-2024 school years only, following Board approval, in the event a supplemental contract is canceled by the Superintendent/designee due to unforeseen circumstances, the supplemental contract holder shall be paid on a pro rata basis based on the percentage of work performed, as determined by the District and the ETA.

5.9 Grants

Information regarding grants that have been received will be provided to the ETA president. Postings of grant funded positions will be made in the normal manner. Contracts are not issued for such positions, which shall be paid upon completion of the project following Board approval.

6. TEACHER CONTRACTS

6.1 Termination of Employment

Involuntary termination of employment, including the nonrenewal of a teacher employed under a limited contract, and the suspension/layoff of a tenured teacher shall be accomplished in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and this Contract. Termination shall be in accordance with either O.R.C. 3319.16, or the grievance procedure herein.

6.2 Limited Contracts

6.2.1 Teachers on limited contract may assume that they will be reemployed unless notified to the contrary by the Board on or before June 1. If the Superintendent intends to recommend the nonrenewal of a limited contract teacher, or recommend an "extended" limited contract to a tenure eligible teacher, all of the requirements of O.R.C. 3319.11, as modified below, and 3319.111 as modified by Article 3, shall be followed.

The Superintendent's recommendation for nonrenewal shall be presented in the form of a resolution for "dismissal". Both the employee and ETA shall be given at least seven (7) calendar days prior written notice and afforded a hearing with the Superintendent prior to the recommendation.

At the same time as the notice, the Superintendent will provide the teacher with a written statement describing the circumstances that led the Superintendent to recommend non-reemployment. At the hearing the Superintendent, Superintendent's designee, teacher, and any person designated by either party to take a record may be present. The Superintendent and teacher are entitled to representation by counsel or a designee. A record of the hearing may be taken by either party at the expense of the party taking the record.

If the teacher subsequently is nonrenewed, the resolution of nonrenewal will be treated as the Board's order for purposes of O.R.C. 3319.11(G)(6).

The parties agree that compliance with this procedure shall satisfy the provisions of O.R.C. 3319.11. The parties agree that a limited contract teacher may elect to file a grievance under this Agreement or pursue the remedies set forth in O.R.C. 3319.11. However, said teacher may not pursue both statutory and grievance remedies but must make an election.

6.3 Continuing Contracts

The process a teacher is to follow in order to be considered for continuing contract is set out in Appendix H.

To be eligible for a continuing contract, a teacher must submit the Continuing Contract Profile (Appendix H) and their principal's recommendation to the HR office by March 1. The Board shall act on the continuing contract recommendation at a May Board meeting or earlier.

6.4 Employees Hired Under Temporary Teaching License

Any certified employee hired as a contract teacher whose employment is contingent upon a temporary teaching license while they complete the state requirements for full licensure in that subject matter, shall be considered a temporary teaching employee. During that period, the temporary teacher shall not be entitled to apply for other vacancies (excluding supplementals), shall be automatically nonrenewed at the end of that year, and shall have no recall rights. If that teacher is rehired for the following year, she/he will have all rights and benefits of the contract, including seniority credit for the period of service as a temporary teaching employee.

Should the employee complete the necessary requirements to obtain licensure before the end of the first semester and place on file a completion letter from the university, the board will issue a standard limited contract for the balance of current school year.

Temporary employment contract will continue as long as employee is still completing the full licensure requirements. Once the certified employee has completed all state requirements for full licensure, and as long as the position is still in existence, said employee will be rehired under a standard limited contract and she/he will have all rights and benefits of the contract, including seniority credit for the period of service as a temporary teaching employee.

6.5 Reduction in Force

The Board will follow O.R.C. 3319.17 in any decision to suspend the contract of a teacher as part of a reduction in force.

6.5.1 Within each area of certification affected by the reduction in force, contracts shall be suspended pursuant to the recommendations of the Superintendent under the provisions of this Article. For unit

members who have comparable final summative evaluations, preference shall be given based on seniority. Comparable evaluations shall be defined by the teacher's final summative evaluation rating. Unit members shall be placed in one (1) of two (2) groups for the purpose of a reduction in force. These groups shall be called "Group One" and "Group Two." Unit members within each Group shall be deemed comparable, except that unit members under continuing contracts shall be given preference over all members under limited contracts within the same group.

Group One shall be comprised of unit members with a limited contract who have a final summative evaluation rating of "Ineffective," and unit members with a continuing contract, having completed one (1) year on an improvement plan and with a final summative evaluation rating of "Ineffective."

Group Two shall be comprised of all unit members who have a final summative evaluation rating of "Developing," "Skilled," or "Accomplished" and unit members on a continuing contract who are on the first year of an improvement plan after receiving a final summative evaluation rating of "Ineffective."

Any reduction in force shall begin with members in Group One, followed by Group Two.

6.5.2 The reason for the suspension of the contract of a continuing contract teacher may be challenged in court without exhaustion of the grievance procedure included in this Contract. Should there be a reduction in force due to financial reasons, this article shall be followed.

The Board will follow the specific provisions of Section 6.2 in any decision to lay off a teacher on a limited contract as part of a reduction in force. (The failure of the Board and ETA to agree to a clarification of RIF procedures for all teachers and also the impact of the Contract and O.R.C. 3319.17 on limited contract teachers by June 17, 1992, February 1, 1993, or June 23, 1993, shall not be used as prejudice against the position of either party.)

6.5.3 Definition

A Reduction in Force (RIF) is the elimination of, reduction of, or failure to fill a bargaining position, and also governs maintenance of force, e.g.,

return to duty of employee following a leave of absence.

In the event that the Board finds it necessary to engage in a reduction in force of bargaining unit positions, it shall follow the procedures and rules set forth in this Section 6.5.

6.5.4 Staff Reduction

The Board first shall determine the positions, including certification/licensure area, grade level where applicable, and building location to be affected and provide this list in writing to the ETA President. The administration shall meet with ETA representatives to review individuals who would be affected, staffing needs, potential attrition, and updated seniority lists.

6.5.5 Attrition

To the extent possible, the number of persons affected by a reduction in force will be kept to a minimum by not employing replacements for employees who retire or resign or who are terminated under Sections 6.1 or 6.2. All reductions in force shall be accomplished only through this procedure.

6.5.6 Reduction Other Than By Attrition

To the extent that reductions are not achieved through attrition, reductions will be achieved by layoff. Layoff shall mean that a teacher will be placed in an inactive state of employment from an active state of employment. Where layoffs of members of the bargaining unit occur, the process described in Article 6.5.1 and areas of certification shall be the exclusive criteria in determining such layoffs.

The least senior teacher in each affected area of certification by Group shall be laid off first, except that teachers holding valid continuing contracts shall be given preference over those with limited contracts. A teacher granted a continuing contract after April 30 shall be considered to hold such continuing contract for the succeeding school year.

Counselors, instructional coaches, coordinators, itinerant teachers, psychologists, therapists (speech, OT, PT, and nurses) shall be reduced in accordance with Article 6.5.1.

Each bargaining unit member who is subject to layoff shall be given written notice of and written reasons for said layoff along with written notice of his/her recall rights.

The Board shall take action on all known layoffs in May prior to the school year the layoffs are to be effective. Subsequent layoffs will occur after the Superintendent determines that additional layoffs will be recommended.

6.5.7 Notification

At least seven (7) days before the Board meeting at which the action is to be taken, and after each teacher affected is informed by the Board, the list of teachers whose contracts are recommended for layoff will be provided the Association President. This list shall constitute the Reduction in Force list.

A teacher who is hired as a temporary employee to fill in for a specific teacher on a leave of absence and who is subsequently laid off upon the return from leave of the regular teacher shall not be placed on the Reduction in Force list and shall have no recall rights under Section 6.5.11 of this Article unless, at the time of layoff, the teacher has a contract of employment as a regular teacher by operation of the third paragraph of Section 3319.10 of the Ohio Revised Code.

6.5.8 Displacement/Retention Rights

A teacher whose position is eliminated as a result of a reduction in force shall be eligible for retention in other areas of certification/ licensure and based on his/her seniority with the district. During the 90-day period prior to the Board adopting a resolution to implement a reduction in force, no transfer under sections 5.2 or 5.3 into an area of licensure which will be affected by the reduction in force will be permitted. As well, while any teacher remains on the recall list under section 6.5.11, no transfer of a less senior teacher into the licensure area of a laid off teacher shall be permitted under sections 5.2 or 5.3.

6.5.9 Recall

6.5.9.1 Teachers holding continuing contracts who have been laid off shall be placed on a recall list and returned to active employment to fill vacancies for which they are certified/ licensed in reverse order of layoff for any position that becomes available for which they are or have become licensed before any permanent teacher

full-time, part-time, or substitute is hired. The most senior teacher holding continuing contract in the affected area of certification/licensure who has been laid off shall be recalled, provided she/he has evaluations which are comparable to any other teacher holding continuing contract in that area of licensure who also has been laid off.

The meaning of the term "comparable evaluations" shall be as set out in Section 6.5; under 6.5.1., 6.5.2, 6.5.3. and 6.5.4 above.

Teachers holding limited contracts who have been laid off shall be placed on a recall list and returned to active employment to fill vacancies for which they are certified/ licensed in reverse order of layoff for any position that becomes available for which they are or have become licensed before any permanent teacher full-time, part-time, or substitute is hired. The most senior teacher holding limited contract in the affected area of certification/licensure who has been laid off shall be recalled, provided all teachers holding continuing contracts in that area of licensure have been recalled and provided she/he has evaluations which are comparable to any other teacher holding limited contract in that area of licensure who also has been laid off.

The meaning of the term "comparable evaluations" shall be as set out in Section 6.5; under 6.5.1., 6.5.2., 6.5.3, and 6.5.4 above.

If a teacher is recalled to a position in an area of certification /licensure different than that filled immediately preceding layoff, he/she may reject same and remain on the recall list, with eligibility for recall limited to his/her original certification/licensure area only.

6.5.9.2 No vacancy will be filled under this provision until after exhaustion of the posting and transfer procedure set forth in Article 5 of this Agreement. The Board shall not fill a vacancy with a new employee until after the provisions in Article 5 and recall provisions in Article 6, Section 6.5.11 have been exhausted.

- 6.5.9.3 Certificated/licensed employees who are offered but who decline reemployment for a regular, full-time teaching position need not be offered reemployment again in openings which may occur after the certificated/licensed employee's declination of reemployment, provided that a teacher who cannot accept such a position because he/she is under contract in another school district, may be offered another vacancy after expiration of his or her contract if he/she still otherwise qualifies under this procedure. The rights herein granted to a teacher shall be forfeited by the teacher should he (1) waive his or her recall rights in writing, (2) resign, (3) fail to accept recall as provided for herein, or (4) fail to report to work in a position that he or she has accepted within five (5) school days after receipt of the notice of recall, unless such recalled teacher is prohibited from doing so because of physical illness or injuries. Acceptance or rejection of a position other than a regular full-time teaching position shall not of itself constitute a waiver of these recall rights.
- 6.5.9.4 A teacher on the Reduction in Force list shall, upon acceptance of the notification to resume active employment status, return to active employment status with the same accumulation of sick leave and salary schedule placement as said teacher enjoyed at the time of layoff.
- A bargaining unit member's name shall remain on the recall list for three (3) school years (September August) following the effective date of his/her layoff, unless removed earlier for reasons set forth in this article.
- A teacher who receives a layoff notice in May or later or who has completed one hundred twenty (120) days of service during that school year shall retain his/her paid fringe benefit through August. Subsequently a member of the bargaining unit shall be eligible to retain group hospitalization insurance while on the Reduction in Force list by paying the monthly insurance premiums in accordance with the following procedure: (1) the ETA will be solely responsible for collecting the required money from individual members of the bargaining unit; (2) the ETA will forward a check in the aggregate amount due for a given month, together with a list naming the persons affected, to the Treasurer not later than the 10th of the month immediately prior to the month for which insurance coverage is being retained; (3) if the check from the ETA is not received in the Treasurer's office by the 10th of the

month deadline set forth above, the member of the bargaining unit will be dropped from the Euclid insurance rolls.

6.6 Ohio Criminal Background Check

The Board shall cover the cost up to \$25.00 for criminal background checks for bargaining unit members renewing their teaching license. Any additional costs will be deducted through payroll deduction.

7. SENIORITY

7.1 Seniority Lists

All teachers shall be placed on seniority lists in each of the teaching fields in which the teacher is certified. The three levels - early childhood (K-3), middle childhood (4-9) and young adult (9-12) - shall be separate and distinct. Teachers holding teaching certificates/licenses that encompass more than one level shall be included on all appropriate lists. Teachers holding elementary certificates/licenses have preference over new hires and also shall have seniority credit for retention and recall purposes for seventh and eighth grade subject specific positions for the years they have actually taught said subjects at the secondary level. High school credit courses at the middle school shall be taught by teachers meeting the High School HQT standard and holding the proper certificate/license.

7.2 Seniority Definition

Seniority shall be determined by the length of continuous service in the school system beginning with the first day worked. (Part-time teachers shall receive prorated service credit, i.e., one-half (1/2) time equals one-half (1/2) year of service.)

Among those with the same length of continuous service, seniority shall be determined by:

- **7.2.1** The date of the Board meeting on which the teacher was hired; and then by
 - 7.2.2 The date the first job application form was submitted by the teacher within the two-year period preceding the effective date of the teacher's first teaching contract with the Board, whether it be the District's application form, an ODE on-line application form, or another on-line application system.
 - **7.2.2.1** The job application form shall be a mutually agreed upon application submitted by the applicant or teacher hired by the District.
 - **7.2.2.2** An applicant or teacher hired by the District must complete a state online application form or other mutually agreed upon application form. The date the online application form is

submitted by the teacher shall be considered the seniority date under Section 7.2.2. of this Agreement. For the ODE on-line application, the "date the first job application form was submitted" shall be defined for seniority determination purposes as the "Last Modified" date on the online application form at the time of hire.

- 7.2.2.3 Upon hiring, the administrator of HR/Personnel shall be responsible for notifying the potential employee that the online application form must be on file and this date shall be used as a determinant for seniority when there are other employees who are hired with the same length of continuous service and the date of the Board meeting on which the teachers were hired are the same (Section 7.2.1.)
- 7.2.2.4 An individual with the earliest application date will be considered to have more seniority in the event that the first day worked and date of the Board meeting are the same if the applicant or teacher does not complete an application form, that field shall remain blank and no date of application can be applied towards seniority.

Length of continuous service will not be interrupted by authorized unpaid leaves of absence, layoff, or except to the extent as may be required by law, non-bargaining unit service, but neither shall seniority credit be given for that time; provided, however, that in all cases (with the appropriate proration where a part-time teacher is concerned) one (1) year of seniority credit shall be given with respect to a given school year during which the teacher has actual bargaining unit service of not less than one-hundred twenty (120) days. The continuous service of a teacher who has returned to employment following resignation or other interruption of employment will be measured from the date of return.

Length of continuous service will not be interrupted or affected by authorized leaves of absence or layoff under the provisions of this contract unless the layoff period has been waived or otherwise expired. The continuous service of the teacher who has returned to employment following resignation or other termination of employment will be measured from the date of return.

7.3 Availability of Lists

On or before the bid day posting of each school year, the Association President shall receive in writing a list of all teachers by seniority in each category of certification/licensure. Teachers with certification/licensure in more than one area will be listed in all areas. Continuing contract status and tie-breakers will also be listed.

8. Compensation

8.1 Salary Schedule

Teachers shall be paid in accordance with the indexed Teachers' Salary Schedule attached as Appendix A. The Teachers' Salary Schedule shall be indexed to the Bachelor's Degree/0 experience minimum entry level (B.A./0) which shall serve as Base 1.00, hereinafter referred to as B.A. Base.

The District may but is not required to implement a merit-based stipend(s) tied to student achievement and/or other district improvement goals. The same criteria will be applied District-wide. Prior to implementation of any merit-based stipend(s), the District shall seek input from the ETA.

8.1.1 Salary Schedule Base

Effective for the first payroll period of each school/employment year, the B.A. Base (B.A./0) for each employment year shall be the following:

- **8.1.1.1** Effective the first day of the 2021-2022 school year the base salary shall be increased 6.2% over the previous 2020-2021 school year base salary. A full experience step shall be implemented the first payroll period of the 2021-2022 school year. Salary schedule placement changes for additional education (horizontal) shall be honored.
- **8.1.1.2** Effective the first day of the 2022-2023 school year the base salary shall be increased 2.25% over the previous 2021-2022 school year base salary. A full experience step shall be implemented the first payroll period of the 2022-2023 school year. Salary schedule placement changes for additional education (horizontal) shall be honored.

Teachers who took two step freezes while employed by the Euclid Board of Education shall receive one additional experience step implemented the first payroll period of the 2022-2023 school year.

8.1.1.3 Effective the first day of the 2023-2024 school year the base salary shall be increased 2.5% over the previous 2022-2023 school year base salary. A full experience step

shall be implemented the first payroll period of the 2023-2024 school year. Salary schedule placement changes for additional education (horizontal) shall be honored.

8.1.2 Longevity

17-19 years	.015 of the BA Base Salary
20-24 years	.030 of the BA Base Salary
25-29 years	.060 of the BA Base Salary
30 or more	.075 of the BA Base Salary

8.2 Salary Schedule Applications

8.2.1 Experience

Initial placement on the Teachers' Salary Schedule shall be determined in accordance with the applicable provisions of the O.R.C.

8.2.2 Training Regulations

8.2.2.1 Placement on Schedule

Teachers shall be placed on the appropriate salary schedule (A, B, C, etc.) according to the approved college training shown on their records as filed in the Superintendent's office.

- C 90 semester hours
- C¹ 102 semester hours
- C² 114 semester hours
- B Baccalaureate degree awarded
- B¹ 12 semester hours toward Master's degree
- B² 24 semester hours toward Master's degree or 150 total semester hours (S.B. 350)
- A Master's degree awarded
- A¹ 12 semester hours beyond Master's degree*
- A² 24 semester hours beyond Master's degree*
- A³ 36 semester hours beyond Master's degree*
- A⁴ 48 semester hours beyond Master's degree*
- A⁵ 60 semester hours beyond Master's degree*

^{*}College courses must be taken at the graduate level and taken after the Master's Degree has been awarded.

8.2.2.2 Approval of Courses

Reasonable latitude will be given teachers in the selection of courses. Courses should relate to the work of the teacher or be required for a degree. The Superintendent is authorized to refuse approval of credits for salary schedule advance beyond schedule "A" when the courses do not relate to improvement of educational program or the teacher's specific assignment unless otherwise specified by state law. After initial employment, to advance beyond schedule "A" courses and areas of study must receive advanced approval from the Superintendent. Such requests shall be made in writing.

8.2.2.3 Bargaining unit members shall receive a tuition reimbursement of .00105 of the B.A. base per quarter hour or .0015 of the B.A. base per semester for each hour of proper credit approved by State Department of Education for course work required for recertification.

8.2.3 STRS Pickup (Salary Reduction Method)

In accordance with Internal Revenue Code ("IRC") Section 414(h)(2), the Board shall pick up all of the required member contributions of all employees to the State Teachers Retirement System ("STRS") and School Employees Retirement System ("SERS"). The pick-up shall be a "salary reduction" pick-up of the entire amount of the member contribution which the employee is required to contribute to STRS or SERS, based upon the salary and all other "compensation" of the employee under Ohio Revised Code ("ORC") Section 3307.01 or 3309.01. Accordingly, the compensation of an employee covered by the salary reduction pick up shall be deemed to be reduced by the amount of the pick-up; and the Treasurer is hereby authorized to pay an equal amount the amount of the salary reduction pick-up directly to STRS or SERS as a member contribution of the employee. employee shall have the option of receiving cash or other taxable benefits or amounts in lieu of having a pick-up in effect for all of the employee's required member contributions to STRS or SERS. The Board's total combined expenditures for total annual salaries of all members of the bargaining unit (including "pickup" amounts) and its employer contributions to STRS shall not be greater than the amounts it would have paid for those items had this provision of this Agreement not been in effect.

- 8.2.3.2 The District shall fulfill its income tax reporting and withholding responsibilities for each employee in such manner as is required by applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations as they may exist at the time of such reporting and withholding. It is the District's understanding that no picked up amount is currently subject to any federal or state income taxes; and that with respect to a pick-up done under the salary reduction pick up method, federal and Ohio income tax laws and regulations presently require it to report as an employee's gross income his total annual salary less the amount of the salary reduction pick-up (i.e. his cash salary), while applicable federal employment tax laws (e.g. the Medicare tax) and Ohio municipal income tax law require it to report as an employee's gross income, his total annual salary including the amount of the salary reduction pick-up.
- **8.2.3.3** The pick-up shall be included in the member's total annual salary for the purpose of computing daily rate of pay, for determining said salary adjustments to be made due to absence, or for all other salary related purposes.

8.3 Professional Development Training Compensation

Teachers shall have the opportunity to attend professional development training in return for compensation. For each five (5) hours attended up to a maximum of twenty-five (25) hours per year, the teacher shall be paid at the rate set out in 2.1.3, i.e., .0050 of the BA base salary. Teachers who qualify for such compensation shall be paid with the final check in June. The EPDC will review the Request for Professional Development Training form at the request of the Superintendent's designee or the ETA President (see Appendix F).

8.4 In-Service Credit

In-service credit may be used in determining eligibility for any reclassification on the salary schedule; however, no more than half of the total credits required may consist of such in-service credit.

In-service credit is based on the "mini unit" system. Eight (8) mini units equal one (1) in-service hour of credit. Mini units earned during a contract year that do not total one in-service hour are not carried over to the next contract year.

Filing the appropriate forms to receive in-service credit is the teacher's responsibility. Further information on in-service credit is contained in the professional growth committee guidelines, available in building offices.

8.5 Extra Duty Assignments

- **8.5.1** Extra-duty assignments shall continue to be compensated according to the activities and pay schedules in Appendix B. All ratios refer to B.A. base salary unless a difference is specified.
- **8.5.2** Seasonal extra-duty assignment shall be paid in one lump sum no later than the dates listed below:

Fall Sports – November 15th Winter Sports – March 15th Spring Sports – June 15th

- **8.5.2.1** Such pay will not be withheld except for failure to complete major job responsibilities as follows:
 - **8.5.2.1.1** Season completion, i.e., performance of basic coaching responsibilities.
 - **8.5.2.1.2** List of students to receive awards.
 - **8.5.2.1.3** Preparation of budget for following year.
 - **8.5.2.1.4** Collection of equipment, with list of lost items submitted to Athletic Director.
 - **8.5.2.1.5** Completion of certification requirements, BCII, and payroll forms.

Payment will not be withheld without due process and just cause.

- **8.5.2.2** When the extra-duty assignment runs concurrently with the entire school year, e.g., Departmental Chairpersons, consulting teachers and psychologists, payment will be made concurrently with the pay periods in the contract year.
- **8.5.2.3** Assignments that begin on or before the second payday in January will be paid on the second payday in January.

- **8.5.2.4** When the extra-duty assignment normally runs concurrently with the entire school year, e.g., yearbook advisor, but is not commenced until after the start of the year, payment for the assignment will be made concurrently with the remaining pay periods in the contract year.
- **8.5.3** Extra-duty assignments that are now paid or become paid but do not appear in Appendix B shall be added to Appendix B. Should the Board create a new extra-duty assignment to be paid, it shall be subject to bargaining under Chapter 4117 and then posting. Nothing in this Section shall be construed as requiring the Board to fill any paid extra-duty assignment.
- **8.5.4** Experience increments as listed in Appendix B shall be for each year of service in the activity within the school system.

8.6 Satisfactory Work Required

A mark of "C" in a graduate course is considered satisfactory under the provision that a "B" average is maintained in all graduate courses. Under a "Pass-Fail" grading system, a grade of "Pass" is acceptable.

8.7 Filing of Credits

- **8.7.1** Filing of credits in the Superintendent's office is the responsibility of the teacher. For graduates, the official transcript must be presented.
- **8.7.2** An official transcript of additional training for determining salary schedule classification must be submitted to the Superintendent on or before August 30 or on or before January 15. Salary schedule classifications will be revised twice a year.
- **8.7.3** Teachers whose credits are submitted prior to August 30 will automatically receive the full increment. Credits filed in relation to the January 15 date will be computed on a per diem basis from the semester break.
- **8.7.4** Reclassifications will be made twice per year, with additional training to be submitted on or before August 30 for adjustments to be effective with the September 15 pay date and additional training to be submitted by January 15 for adjustments to be made effective with the first day of the second semester.
- **8.7.5** In-service credits shall expire within one year from the date of completion.

8.8 Salary Payments and Deductions

8.8.1 Teachers' annual salary shall be paid in twenty-four (24) pays. Pay will be issued twice a month, on the 15th and the last banking day of the month. If the pay date of the 15th or the last banking day of the month lands on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday, the pay will be issued on the weekday prior to the Saturday, Sunday, or holiday, except for the second pay of June pay which will be issued the first business day of July. Paystubs will not be mailed and shall be available to the member online. When school is not in session paystubs will be made available on request.

8.8.2 Daily Rate

In computing deductions for those absences for which a deduction in pay is to be made, the basis shall be the daily rate. The daily rate is calculated by dividing 184 days into the approved salary of the teacher. The calculation of the daily rate is subject to state regulation. Salaries of persons working less than a complete school year shall be calculated on the number of actual days taught times daily rate.

8.8.3 Deductions

All employees' salaries are automatically subject to deductions for the retirement systems, federal income tax, medicare, state income tax, and city income tax.

Except for deductions attributable to legal or contractual obligations, other deductions may only be made with the consent of the employee. These include 403(b) and 457 plans, the Section 125 flexible benefit plan, ETA dues, Eaton Family Credit Union, STRS Purchase, STRS Deferred Purchase, United Way, Community Shares, Political Deduction, and U.S. Savings bonds.

Also, premiums for annuities as defined in Section 403 (B), Internal Revenue Code, shall be sent from each paycheck. No employee shall have more than one annuity premium deducted at a time. Adjustments may be made at any time but only once per year.

8.8.4 Payroll deduction for ETA/OEA/NEA dues and assessment shall be made biweekly on the first and second pay of the month commencing on November 1 through July 31 (18 pays)—depending on when the member

enrolled and shall automatically continue each year thereafter unless notified by ETA or the employee leaves the district. Employees paid over a ten-month period shall have sixteen (16) pay deductions.

All dues and authorization forms shall be executed and in the possession of the Treasury Office by November 1 (nine [9] deductions) or the first of each subsequent month that deductions are to begin. All authorization forms shall state the monthly deduction amount to be deducted. Any employee covered by this Agreement shall have dues deducted if there is net pay remaining after all other authorized deductions (excluding United Way and Credit Union) have been deducted.

8.9 Medical Benefits

- **8.9.1** The Board shall supply various health plan benefits with family coverage to the employee.
 - **8.9.1.1** Effective March 1, 2022, employees will pay eleven percent (11%) of the single and family (as applicable) premium cost for major medical and hospitalization and prescription coverage.

Effective January 1, 2023, employees will pay eleven and a half percent (11.5%) of the single and family (as applicable) premium cost for major medical and hospitalization and prescription coverage.

Effective January 1, 2024, employees will pay twelve percent (12%) of the single and family (as applicable) premium cost for major medical and hospitalization and prescription coverage.

Note: Copays for medical coverage apply to the co-insurance limit and out of pocket maximums.

Plan Design: The plan includes the following:

Benefits	Network Facility	Non-Network Facility
Dependent Age Limit	Dependent age: 26	; Older aged child: 28
Benefit Period Deductible	\$200 Single/\$400 Family	\$400 Single/\$800 Family
Coinsurance Maximum	\$600 Single / \$1,200	\$1,200 Single / \$2,400
(excludes deductible)	Family	Family
Out-of-Pocket Maximum	\$800 Single / \$1,600	\$1,600 Single / \$3,200
(includes deductible)	Family	Family

Maximum Plan Benefits	\$5,000,000 Ar	nnual Maximum
Semi-Private Room & Board (365 days per year)	90% after Deductible	80% after Deductible
Diagnostic Services	90% after Deductible	80% after Deductible
Professional Services	90% after Deductible	80% after Deductible
Benefits	Network Facility	Non-Network Facility
Inpatient Facility		
Mental Health & Substance Abuse		responding medical benefits. ay or \$ limits.
Skilled Nursing Facility	No	Limits
Base	90% after Deductible	80% after Deductible
Supplemental Major Medical	90% after Deductible	80% after Deductible
Outpatient Services		
Surgical Facility Services	90% after Deductible	80% after Deductible
Diagnostic Lab, medical tests,		ered in Full, then
and x-ray services	90% after Deductible	80% after Deductible
Professional Services	90% after Deductible	80% after Deductible
Physician/Office Services		
Office Visit (Illness/Injury)	\$15 copay then 90%	\$15 copay then 80%
Urgent Care Facility Services	\$15 copay then 90%	\$15 copay then 80%
Immunizations (all	90% after Deductible	
immunizations)	,	B rating by US Preventative
		Task Force)
Allergy Testing and Treatments	90% after Deductible	80% after Deductible
Preventive Services		
		ative Services Task Force,
		s and other screenings
Routine Physical Exam/Office	100%	\$15 copay then 80%
Visit		
(One per benefit period)	1000/	A A B B B C C C C C C C C C C
OB-GYN/Office Visit	100%	\$15 copay then 80%
(One per benefit period)		

Benefits	Network Facility	Non-Network Facility
Well Child Care Including exam and	100%	\$15 copay then 80% Copay applies to exam
immunizations	32 visits per Lifetime; Birth to age 21	charge only All other expenses covered at 80%
		32 visits per Lifetime; Birth to age 21
Routine Mammogram (One per benefit period)	100%	80% after Deductible
Routine Pap Test (One per benefit period) Routine Prostate Exam (One per benefit period)	100%	First \$250 per benefit period covered at 100%, then 80% after Deductible
	100%	First \$250 per benefit period
Routine Colonoscopy & Sigmoidoscopy Exam		covered at 100%, then, 80% after Deductible
Outpatient Services		
Physical Therapy	90% after Deductible 40 visit limit, combir	80% after Deductible ned with Occupational
Occupational Therapy	90% after Deductible 40 visit limit, com	80% after Deductible bined with Physical
Speech Therapy	90% after Deductible	80% after Deductible isit limit
Chiropractic	90% after Deductible 12 vi	80% after Deductible isit limit
Mental Health & Substance Abuse	Benefits paid are based on corresponding medical benefits. No more day or \$ limits.	
Emergency	Emergency use: \$50 emergency Room Co-pay (waived if admitted) Non-Emergency use: \$50 ER Co-pay then 80% of Covered Charges	

Benefits	Network Facility	Non-Network Facility
Additional Services		
Ambulance	\$25 Co-pay the	en covered in Full
Durable Medical Equipment	90% after Deductible	80% after Deductible
Hearing Benefits (2 per 36		
months)	\$40 per exam	
Exam	10	00%
Conformity & Hearing Aid	10	00%
Evaluations		
Hearing Aids		
Home Health Care	90% after Deductible	80% after Deductible
Hospice	Covered in Full	
Human Organ Transplants	90% after Deductible	80% after Deductible
	(Pre-certification required)	(Pre-certification required)

Note: Copays for medical coverage apply to the co-insurance limit and out of pocket maximums.

8.9.1.2 The Healthcare Committee shall continue its current work to achieve the following objectives: maintenance of high level of coverage tailored to meet staff needs; maintain a high level of choice of providers; maintain current annual maximum out-of-pocket expenses for medical coverage to employees who receive in-network coverages.

To achieve this objective, the committee will continue to meet on a regular basis and work to reach consensus on a plan design. The committee will review proposals that are secured from possible providers, interview finalist carriers, work to reach consensus on a provider and make recommendations to the Board of Education and the ETA for a new provider as soon as possible.

8.9.1.3 Major Dental Program

The dental plan will be changed to a managed care dental enhanced PPO plan. The preferred provider dental plan includes a network of dental providers available to employees and their dependents. Plan members can elect to receive dental services from network or non-

network providers. The plan pays a percentage of allowable charges based on either a negotiated fee or a reasonable or customary fee. The plan allows for a 100% reimbursement of allowable charges for covered preventative services that are received once every six months when using in network dentists. Other covered services are subject to a single-family deductible of \$100/\$200 with 80% coverage thereafter for most services, and a maximum annual plan payment of \$2,000 per person. Orthodontic services are covered at 60% with a separate lifetime maximum of \$1,500 per person. Final selection of the provider shall involve consultation with ETA. Effective September 1, 2010 employees will pay 2% of the Board's single and family (as applicable) premium cost for participation in the dental program. Preventive services for dental are received twice in any period of 12 consecutive months.

8.9.1.4 Teachers who choose to participate in a whole health maintenance plan shall have their premiums for single or family coverage paid by the Board up to the monthly maximum of the family coverage premium paid by the Board for the Board-contracted Medical Insurance High Level Benefit Plan.

8.9.1.5 Prescription Drug

Effective September 1, 2010, the co-pay for prescription drugs at retail shall be \$10 for generic, \$15 for formulary and \$25 for non-formulary. Effective September 1, 2010 the co-pay for prescription drugs secured via mail order shall be \$15.00 for ninety day supply for generic and \$20.00 for formulary and non-formulary for ninety day supply. Maintenance drugs are available via mail order, and must be obtained after the third retail refill. Generics are mandatory unless the physician requires a brand name by an explanation of the medical reasons that the generic does not provide an equivalent benefit.

8.9.1.6 Vision Care through the Ohio Vision Service Plan – Option #3. Option #3 provides exam and lenses (every twelve months), frames (every twenty-four months), tints, oversize lenses/frames, no non-panel deductions, and no deductible. For a panel doctor, the frame allowance is \$22.00. Cosmetic contact allowance is \$100.00. The non-panel reimbursement schedule is as follows:

Exam \$ 30.00 Lenses: Single Vision \$ 25.00 Frames \$ 30.00 Bifocal \$ 40.00 Trifocal \$ 50.00 Lenticular \$ 80.00

Non-Panel Contacts:

Necessary \$200.00 Cosmetic \$100.00

- 8.9.2 Choice of insurance carriers for all insurance fringe benefits shall be at the discretion of the Board provided that every member is entitled to no less than maximum benefits of current coverage. The benefits are set out in the Plan Design as outlined in the Schedule of Benefits. The Association will be given the opportunity to examine coverages to be given by new insurance carriers, if any, prior to final approval by the Board. The Board's contracts with insurance carriers may include (1) anti-duplication provisions under which the Board's obligation will be to provide secondary coverage to those employees eligible for coverage under some other insurance fringe benefit plan, and (2) where spouses are both employed by the Board, the Board shall in no case be obligated to provide more than one plan per family. This section shall not be construed to prohibit providing required coverages by means of self-insurance or a combination of self-insurance and fully insured programs.
- **8.9.3** Effective September 1, 2008, spouses of bargaining unit members who are initially hired beginning with the 2008-2009 school year who have health insurance available from the employer/retirement provider of the spouse must enroll as single coverage for all available medical, drug, dental, and prescription coverages through the employer/retirement provider of the spouse, or should the spouse elect not to enroll and participate in that coverage, the district employee shall pay an additional \$200 per month for family coverage, in addition to any other contributions otherwise due.

This requirement does not apply to any spouse who works less than 30 hours per week or is required to pay more than forty percent (40%) of the single premium to participate in her/his employer/retirement provider's group health insurance coverage and/or prescription drug insurance coverage. Subject to the employee premium share set forth in section 8.8 above, other dependents (such as children, stepchildren, or adopted children) of the bargaining unit member may remain on the district's plans with primary coverage.

Upon the spouse's enrollment in any such employer/retirement provider-sponsor drug group insurance coverage, that coverage will become the primary payer of benefits for the spouse and the coverage sponsored by the Board will become the secondary payer of benefits. An employee whose spouse participates in the Board of Education's group health insurance coverage and/or prescription drug insurance coverage shall complete and submit to the Board, upon request, a written declaration verifying whether her/his spouse is eligible to participate in group health insurance coverage and/or prescription drug coverage provided by the employer/retirement provider of the spouse.

Should a teacher submit false information or fail to timely advise the Board of a change in her/his spouse's eligibility for a group health insurance and/or prescription drug insurance through the spouse's employer/retirement provider, and such false information or failure by the results in the Board's plan providing benefits to which the spouse is not entitled, the teacher shall be personally liable to the plan for reimbursement of the full cost of any benefits and expenses, including attorneys' fees and costs, incurred by the Board's plan. Any amount to be reimbursed by the teacher may be deducted from the salary or benefits to which the teacher would otherwise be entitled. In addition, the spouse will be removed immediately from the Board's group health insurance and/or prescription drug insurance coverage. Submission of false information regarding eligibility of a spouse for health benefit and/or prescription drug coverage from the employer/retirement provider of the spouse by a teacher will subject that teacher to disciplinary action up to and including possible termination of employment.

- 8.9.4 Any employee who is covered by his/her spouse's family medical coverage may annually waive his/her coverage in Section 8.9 in writing and receive .01278 per year cash "waiver bonus" at the end of the school year. (This option includes two Euclid employee families.) The waiver must clearly explain the procedure for enrollment if spouse's coverage is lost during the year. This waiver shall occur at the time of initial employment and annually thereafter.
- **8.9.5** A member of the bargaining unit and his/her "qualified beneficiaries" shall be eligible to retain group hospitalization for eighteen (18) or thirty-six (36) months according to the procedures outlined by COBRA by paying the monthly insurance premiums to the Treasurer's office.

8.10 Severance Pay

Members of the bargaining unit actively employed on a permanent or parttime basis by the Board who elect to retire and have been accepted for retirement by The State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio and the School Employees Retirement System shall be paid a lump sum equal to one-fourth (1/4) of the value of the accrued, but unused sick leave credit to a maximum of sixty (60) days reverting to forty (40) days in any year in which a retirement incentive is offered; and 1/10 of the value of the accrued, but unused sick leave credit for any remaining days from 241 days up to 400 days for teachers who provide written notice of retirement by March 1 of their retirement year and the teacher continues to work through the last teacher work day. If the teacher does not work through the last teacher work day, the teacher shall not receive the 1/10 value. The Superintendent may waive the March 1 notice date. Should the District elect to offer a retirement incentive, members may choose to be a part of the incentive or retire at the regular severance amount. Any retirement incentive payment, if offered, would be paid into a taxsheltered annuity or some other financial product that is mutually agreed upon the Board and ETA.

All personnel not qualifying for paragraph one actively employed on a permanent basis between the ages of fifty and sixty with over twenty (20) years of Euclid service will receive severance pay equal to one-sixth (1/6) of the accumulative sick leave to a maximum of sixty (60) days reverting to forty (40) days in any year in which a retirement incentive is offered.

Such payment shall be based on the employee's daily rate of pay at the time of retirement exclusive of all supplemental pay. Payment for sick leave on this basis shall be considered to eliminate all sick leave credit accrued by the employee. Such payment shall be made only once to any employee.

Teachers shall receive their severance payment in January of the succeeding year following retirement. This payment shall be paid into a tax sheltered annuity.

Any teacher electing to retire on or after the last teacher work day of a school year shall retain medical benefits through the end of August. Medical benefits shall terminate the last day of the last month worked for any teacher electing to retire before the last teacher work day of a school year. When calamity days extend the teacher workdays into June and a teacher previously elected to retire effective the last teacher workday of the original district school year now elects to maintain the original retirement date, that teacher shall retain

medical benefits through the end of August.

8.11 Early Retirement Notification Payment

This section is in effect each year of the contract.

- **8.11.1** The Board will pay to eligible and participating bargaining unit members, an early retirement notification payment in the amount of .01 ratio of the base, to be paid to such members in the final payroll of the school year.
- **8.11.2** To be eligible to receive the Early Retirement Notification Payment, bargaining unit members:
 - a. Must be under contract and a member of the bargaining unit, as defined in Article 1 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Board and the Association, at the time of notification;
 - b. In the school year the notification is provided, the member must work the entire school year (i.e., complete the full school year in active pay status);
 - c. Must be eligible to retire and receive payments from STRS effective no later than August 1 under STRS requirements (e.g., 30 years of service, or age 55 with at least 25 years of service, or age 60 with at least 5 years of service);
 - d. Must provide the Board with a signed and written irrevocable letter of resignation, for purposes of retirement, with the retirement effective no sooner than the last work day of that school year and no later than the first workshop day of the next school year.
 - e. Such irrevocable letter of resignation must be received by the Superintendent's office no later than 4:00 p.m. on February 1.
- **8.11.3** The following conditions will cause an Association member to be ineligible to participate in the Early Retirement Notification payment:
 - a. Terminated, non-renewed, or resigned;
 - b. Failure to meet deadlines as listed in this Agreement; or
 - c. Currently retired and/or receiving retirement benefits from STRS.

8.11.4 The Early Retirement Notification Payment shall not disqualify a bargaining unit member from participating in a retirement incentive plan.

8.12 Term Life Insurance

Term life insurance shall be provided at Board expense for all members of the bargaining unit in the amount of fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000.00).

8.13 Mileage

Teachers assigned to more than one building during the course of one school day shall be paid mileage at the IRS approved rate for travel between buildings. Adjustments will be made on January 1 of each year.

Teachers required to travel on school business as part of their duties shall be paid mileage at the IRS approved rate for such travel. Adjustments will be made on January 1 of each year.

Forms for recording such mileage shall be given upon request to each teacher involved in travel by his Administrative Supervisor. Each teacher shall be notified of the availability of forms. Payment for mileage expense shall be paid at least once each semester. To receive reimbursement, said forms shall be submitted monthly, or when at least fifty (50) miles have been accumulated.

8.14 Summer School Staff

Summer school staffs shall be paid as a ratio of the B.A. base salary as follows: Four-Hour Assignment – .075 and Five-Hour Assignment – .095. Summer school rates noted are for a six (6) week session. Any session offered for less time is calculated on a pro-rated basis.

8.15 Extended Time Contracts

Extended time contracts shall be paid at the per diem rate of 1/184th of the annual salary payable to the member of the bargaining unit under the teachers' salary schedule during the contiguous school year.

Extended Time Contracts

Position	# of Days
M.S. counselors	6
H.S. counselors	10
Culinary	5
OT/PT/Speech	3
Psychologists	10
M.S. Spec. Ed. Dept. Chair	2
H.S. Spec. Ed. Dept. Chair	4
Spec Ed Voc. Coordinator	2
Career Tech Counselor	10
ROTC	5
Panther Academy	2

Extended time contracts are awarded to those holding the above positions.

9. ABSENCES AND LEAVES

9.1 Leaves of Absence – General Provision

Paragraphs one through five of this section shall apply to leaves granted under this article unless a particular leave expressly states otherwise.

- 9.1.1 A leave of absence is defined as a period of absence from duty by an employee for whom a written request is submitted and approval is given by the Superintendent and the Board except as otherwise provided. However, no leave of absence shall be granted for employment in another occupation or business, except for teaching in a foreign country.
- 9.1.2 Subject to the provision below, a teacher upon return to service at the expiration of an approved leave of absence, shall resume the same position held before the leave or if not available, to an assignment in the same area of certification taught prior to the leave, or if not available to a position for which the teacher is certified. Seniority shall control unless the teacher's return to the same position or to a position in the same area of certification taught prior to the leave would result in the layoff of another teacher. In that event, if there is a vacancy in another area of certification held by the returning teacher, the returning teacher shall be assigned to fill that vacancy. Upon return, the teacher shall resume the same contract status held prior to such leave. With the exception of sabbatical leave granted under Section 9.3 of this article, no credit shall be allowed on the salary schedule for any unpaid leave of absence.
- 9.1.3 The Superintendent is authorized to set a date upon which a teacher on leave of absence must indicate his intention to return to duty. If the teacher fails to comply with the Superintendent's request by the designated date, or by April 1 if no date has been designated, the leave of absence shall become a resignation. A one-year extension of the original leave of absence may be granted upon the recommendation of the Superintendent and the approval of the Board of Education. Leave of absence termination shall coincide with the school year. The Superintendent may take exceptions to the before-mentioned policy.
- **9.1.4** Individuals on any approved leave may continue their hospitalization and other group benefits for the duration of said leave providing they reimburse the Board for premium costs. Failure to forward premium at stipulated times will terminate this benefit.

- **9.1.5** A teacher seeking an extension of a leave of absence shall be notified that she/he may return to a different position if such assignment would avoid a layoff of another teacher.
- **9.1.6** A teacher on an unpaid leave of absence beginning anytime during the 4th quarter of the school year and continuing to the end of the school year may request to receive his or her prorated annual salary throughout the summer months or receive a lump sum payment.

9.1.7 Dues Collection

In accordance with the dues agreement executed by members of the bargaining unit who choose to join the association, teachers on leaves of absence are not excused from paying professional dues. When a leave is for a half year (90 days) or more, the teacher is entitled to pay half-time dues. When taking a leave of absence which would result in the teacher not returning to work during that same school year, the balance of the annual dues will be deducted from the teacher's final paycheck. If this deduction does not occur, the teacher, by executing the dues agreement, has agreed to pay the ETA as collection agent for OEA, NEA, and NEOEA, upon demand, the remainder of the dues for the membership year. Board action to deduct unpaid dues from the teacher's final paycheck is an activity of the employer covered by the indemnification provisions of this negotiated agreement, Section 13.14.7.

9.1.8 Family and Medical Leave

9.1.8.1 All members shall be entitled to up to twelve (12) weeks of leave in any twelve (12) month period for the treatment of their own serious medical condition, the care of a spouse, child, or parent with a serious medical condition, or the birth of a member's child or the placement of a child with a member for adoption or foster care, in accordance with the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act. To be eligible for FMLA leave, the teacher must have been working for the Board for at least twelve (12) months before the leave request (these do not need to be consecutive months); and have worked at least One Thousand two hundred fifty (1250) hours during the twelve (12) month period preceding the FMLA leave.

- **9.1.8.2** For purposes of calculating the amount of leave available to a member, a rolling twelve (12) month period, measured backward from the date leave is taken, shall be used.
- 9.1.8.3 If leave is foreseeable, the member shall give the Board thirty (30) days' notice of the need to take the leave. The member should make reasonable efforts to schedule medical treatments so as not to unduly disrupt the Board's operations. If advanced notice is impossible, the member shall give the Board as much notice as is practicable.
- **9.1.8.4** Members may substitute any accrued paid leave under Sections 9.4.1 or 9.8 or unpaid leave under Section 9.2 or Section 9.4.2 of this Agreement for family and medical leave. Substituted paid and unpaid leave will count toward the member's twelve (12) week allotment of family and medical leave.
- 9.1.8.5 If medically necessary, a member may use his/her family and medical leave on an intermittent basis, by taking leaves of absence of less than a day or working a reduced work week. A member may request a temporary transfer to a position with equivalent pay and benefits if the new position better accommodates the member's leave schedule. Only the actual time which a member misses due to family or medical leave will be applied to the twelve (12) week limit.
- 9.1.8.6 While on family and medical leave, the Board will continue to maintain the member on the Board's health insurance plan and continue to pay its share of the member's health insurance premiums. Where unpaid leave that does not normally provide paid health insurance benefits is substituted for family and medical leave, the Board will pay the health insurance premiums during such leave so long as the total period during which such premiums are paid does not exceed twelve (12) weeks within the applicable (12) month period.
- **9.1.8.7** When a member returns from family and medical leave, the member shall be restored to employment in accordance with Section 9.1.2 of this Article.
- **9.1.8.8** Members requesting family and medical leave shall present a written certification of the need to take family and medical leave within fifteen (15) days of requesting such leave. The Board may, at its expense,

require the member to obtain a second opinion by a physician designated by the Board. If the two opinions differ, then the Board can require a third opinion, at its expense, from a health care provider mutually agreed upon by the Board and the member. The third opinion shall be final and binding.

9.1.8.9 This provision shall be interpreted and applied consistently with the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act and its implementing regulations. Nothing herein is intended to reduce or restrict the rights contained in Article 9, Sections 9.1 through 9.9.

9.2 Child Rearing Leave

- 9.2.1 Leave without pay for a period not to extend beyond two complete school years shall be granted teachers requesting child-rearing leave which shall include adoption. The date established for the beginning of such leave shall be determined by the teacher. The request shall be submitted at least thirty days prior to the date on which the leave would be scheduled to begin or as soon as the employee becomes aware of the need for the leave, whichever is later. A teacher is eligible for two (2) years of child-rearing leave after the birth of each child, not to exceed four (4) consecutive school years. To be eligible for a subsequent child-rearing leave, a teacher must return to duty and perform in a full-time teaching assignment for at least one (1) school year before the start of subsequent leave.
- 9.2.2 The Board may require that the termination of such leave coincide with the end of a school year, the end of a semester, or some other point in time at which the teacher's return coincides with the needs of the Board to avoid disruption of the studies of pupils and work schedules of other employees. This provision shall not be construed to require return while illness or disability precludes their return.
- 9.2.3 Teachers who begin child-rearing leave after April 1 of the school year and who have completed the equivalent of at least one hundred twenty (120) full-time workdays in that school year shall have their family hospitalization insurance coverage paid by the Board through August of that year.
- **9.2.4** Any bargaining unit member who adopts a child ages 2 and under shall be entitled to three (3) weeks of paid sick leave. For an adopted child over

- 2 years of age, there is no allowable use of sick leave. Refer to FMLA or child-rearing leaves for procedures for additional unpaid absences.
- **9.2.5** Any bargaining unit member who gives birth to a child shall be entitled to up to eight (8) weeks (two weeks prior to birth and six weeks after delivery) of paid sick leave without submission of medical verification.
- 9.2.6 A bargaining unit member who fathers a child and who has responsibilities for the care of the child or mother of the child shall be entitled to two (2) weeks of paid sick leave without medical documentation.

9.3 Sabbatical Leave

Believing strongly that the improvement of instruction rests upon continual study on the part of the professional staff, the Board supports the principle of sabbatical leave and will subsidize each granted request with the difference between the annual salary of the teacher granted the sabbatical and the BA base.

The Superintendent may recommend only one percent (1%) of the staff each year for this academic privilege under the following conditions:

- **9.3.1** A tentative request must be submitted to the Superintendent on or before March 15. A formal request must be submitted before May 1. The leave, if granted, will take effect the succeeding school year.
- **9.3.2** The Superintendent will consider these requests in the time order in which they are received between March 15 and May 1.
- **9.3.3** The letter of request shall contain the name of the college or university involved, the type of academic effort intended, and the time schedule to be observed.
- **9.3.4** The bargaining unit member must hold at least a professional license or permanent certificate and have served in Euclid seven (7) years and must guarantee that the teacher will return to serve in the Euclid City Schools for a period of three (3) years or forfeit the entire amount of the original subsidy.
- **9.3.5** Upon careful study and with the advice of the administrators involved, the Superintendent will submit at the May meeting to the Board of Education

a positive resolution relating to individual requests for sabbatical leave. The requests must be accompanied by the necessary guarantee.

9.3.6 The teacher will be notified immediately of the action of the Board.

The teacher will notify the accounting department of his/her address for the coming year.

9.3.7 For salary schedule classification, one year of sabbatical leave will be considered one year of teaching experience.

9.4 Disability or Illness Leave

9.4.1 Sick Leave

- 9.4.1.1 Each member of the bargaining unit shall be entitled to fifteen (15) days sick leave with pay for each year under contract which shall be credited at the rate of one and one-quarter (1-1/4) sick leave day per month, as authorized by O.R.C., Section 3319.141. Sick leave days shall be credited in each month on a prorated basis related to days employed in district.
- **9.4.1.2** Each member of the bargaining unit shall be entitled to an advancement of five (5) days of sick leave at the beginning of each school year to be charged against sick leave the employee earns, as it is earned, provided, however, that sick leave days advanced must be repaid in the same year.
- 9.4.1.3 Employees advanced five (5) days sick leave at the beginning of the school year who, because of extended illness or otherwise, cannot repay the sick leave in the same school year with earned sick leave, will have the used but unearned sick leave days deducted from their salary.
- 9.4.1.4 If a medical need should arise during the year and all fifteen (15) days have not yet been earned, upon consultation with Human Resources Manager, up to ten (10) unearned days in addition to the five (5) in Article 9.4.1.2 above may be advanced for use. Factors involved in the decision-making include, but are not limited to, the employee's ability to provide assurance that he/she will be returning to active status to "earn" the advanced days; whether advancing the days will help avoid a "payoff" situation; potential need for time upon employee's return to active status; history of overuse of leave time;

and any other relevant factors to the employee's unique situation. In the event employees advanced days under this Article 9.4.1.4. cannot repay the sick leave in the same school year with earned sick leave, employees will have the used but unearned sick leave days deducted from their salary. The total number of days advanced and earned shall not exceed fifteen (15) in the same school year.

A member who has been denied the advance of additional sick days as outlined above who has accumulated sick leave by the end of the school year shall have the option to (1) be reimbursed for their docked time with a corresponding number of sick leave days deducted from their bank, or (2) to retain the accumulated sick leave in their bank. The human resources department will notify an employee on leave of these two options at the start of his/her leave. The member must notify the human resources department by May 15 if he/she selects option 1 above; without notice option 2 above shall apply.

- **9.4.1.4** Each member of the bargaining unit shall qualify for sick leave absences with full pay, up to the total number of days accumulated, for one or all of the following reasons:
 - 9.4.1.4.1 Personal illness.
 - **9.4.1.4.2** Disability resulting from pregnancy.
 - **9.4.1.4.3** Injury.
 - **9.4.1.4.4** Exposure to contagious diseases which could be communicated to others.
 - 9.4.1.4.5 Necessary absence due to illness, injury or death in the employee's and spouse's immediate family. The immediate family is defined as husband, wife, children, mother, father, sister, brother, any member of the teacher's household or any other person standing in the relationship of one of the above defined individuals.

In the event of death, "immediate family" will be defined to include the above persons plus those members of the employee's family with whom the employee has such a relationship that the employee requires a leave for family

9.4.1.5 Sick Leave Donations

In the event a member of the bargaining unit experiences a catastrophic illness or debilitating injury and exhausts sick leave as a result, the ETA and the administration may agree to establish a mechanism to allow for continued medical coverages and/or receipt of compensation. Any agreement on, failure to agree on or failure to request the establishment of such a mechanism shall not be precedent setting, shall not be subject to the grievance procedure and/or an unfair labor practice charge.

9.4.2 Medical Leave of Absence

- **9.4.2.1** When a teacher has exhausted his accumulated sick leave and is still unable to return to work, the Board of Education, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, will place the teacher on Medical Leave of Absence.
- 9.4.2.2 Such a leave will begin on the date that the accumulated sick leave reaches the zero point and the teacher has no earnings due and will be for not less than the balance of the current school year or current school semester whichever is shorter and for a maximum period of not more than two (2) consecutive school years in addition to the remainder of the semester during which it commences. For teachers who are accepted and receive disability retirement benefits from the STRS, the period of medical leave of absence shall be for up to five (5) years. A teacher who is accepted and receives STRS disability retirement payments shall be included in the STRS health insurance system and shall not be eligible for health care benefits beyond those set forth in Section 9.4.2.3 below.
- 9.4.2.3 While a teacher is on Medical Leave of Absence, but has not been accepted for STRS disability, the Board will pay its share of the total fringe benefit package for the following periods: employees with zero (0) to three (3) years in-district experience three (3) months; those with over three (3) but not over five (5) years' experience six (6) months; those with five (5) to ten (10) years one (1) year; over ten (10) years twelve months during any consecutive 24-month period of Medical Leave of Absence. However, up to an additional twelve (12) months shall be granted to any person who can provide

verification of pending application or appeal to STRS disability that has not yet been determined. If STRS is ultimately denied, the Board shall no longer pay its share of the total fringe benefit package at the end of the month in which the STRS is denied. If STRS is ultimately denied and the teacher desires to return to work, he/she may do so in accordance with Article 9.4.2.4. If he/she can return to work his/her benefits shall continue until reinstatement at the school year or semester start, but shall not exceed 24 months during any consecutive 24-month period of Medical Leave of Absence.

- 9.4.2.4 A teacher on Medical Leave of Absence who intends and desires to return to work at the beginning of the next school year or semester shall file an application for reinstatement by April 1 for the next school year and December 15 for the second semester. The application must be accompanied by a physician's statement indicating the teacher's medical condition is or may be reasonably anticipated to be such that the teacher is capable of returning to work. Nothing herein shall prevent later application and the timeliness of application shall not be a basis for denial of return. Consideration shall be made on the availability of positions open at that time.
- 9.4.2.5 A teacher may request emergency short-term medical leave for a total period not exceeding thirty (30) calendar days. A condition precedent to the granting of any such short term emergency medical leave shall be the providing by the teacher of a physician's certificate verifying the necessity of such leave.

9.5 Cumulative Sick Leave

- **9.5.1** Members of the bargaining unit shall accumulate sick leave as set forth in Section 9.4.1.1 above to a maximum of four hundred (400) days.
- 9.5.2 A teacher new to the District may transfer all accumulated and unused sick leave from prior public service as permitted by law. Proper verification must be presented from the teacher's prior employment to the Treasurer's office before credit will be given. Each pay stub will reflect the cumulative and unused sick leave for each teacher as of the date indicated on the pay stub.

9.6 Personal Leave

All certified personnel shall be granted up to three (3) days of paid personal leave each contract year. Unused personal leave days are rolled over into sick

leave accumulation. Personal leave available for any teacher employed less than a full year will be pro-rated.

Paid personal leave days are provided for legitimate business, professional, personal, family obligations, and emergencies that an employee encounters which cannot be met outside of the regular school day. Typical of these obligations, although not all-inclusive, are court appearances, scheduled medical examinations, religious holidays, graduation exercises, honors convocations honoring the employee or members of his immediate family and real estate transactions. This provision for paid personal leave is not to be used to extend holidays or recesses for the pursuit of sporting or recreational interests, hobbies, avocations, other gainful employment, shopping, baby-sitting (including grandchildren) or such activities as yard maintenance, or to attend business trips with one's spouse.

Three (3) additional days of personal leave will be granted for the sole purpose of observance of recognized religious holidays where observance of that religious holiday requires total abstinence from work by the teacher. In that event, the teacher, through his/her building principal will make arrangements to engage in compensatory professional activities (See Appendix E and E1) to make up any days of personal leave in excess of three in a school year. Said make-up days may be made up in whole or in partial days within the school year. If at the end of the year, the teacher has unused personal leave days, the religious days will be charged against unused personal leave days at the request of the teacher.

- **9.6.1** Routine doctor or dental appointments are to be charged to personal leave.
- **9.6.2** Emergency doctor appointments when an employee becomes ill at work or doctor appointments when an employee is off sick are to be charged to sick leave.
- 9.6.3 Applications for paid personal leave shall, except in emergencies, be made through the teacher's building principal or his designee to the appropriate Assistant Superintendent or his designee at least one (1) day prior to the date of the intended leave. Emergency is defined as an urgent matter which requires an absence from work.
- **9.6.4** Proper submission of said form consistent with this section shall constitute approval.

9.6.5 Personal leave knowingly utilized in violation of this policy shall be considered as insubordination (as defined in O.R.C. 3319.16) and shall result in appropriate disciplinary action up to and including contract termination.

9.7 Special Leave

Should a member of the bargaining unit use all three (3) of their personal leave days in a single school year and/or an unusual personal situation arises, the employee may apply to the Superintendent for use of up to five (5) Special Unpaid Leave days by submitting a completed Personal Leave Form. No more than five (5) consecutive days (paid or unpaid) shall be approved. In applying for consideration of Special Leave, the employee and Association President shall meet and provide the Superintendent and appropriate Principal with all relevant information regarding such request. Special Leave can only be requested after all three (3) personal leave days have been used in a specific year. The decision of the Superintendent shall not be subject to the grievance procedure.

9.8 Assault Leave

The Board will provide, at the discretion of the Superintendent, Assault Leave (see Section 12.5), wherein a teacher is absent due to physical disability resulting from an assault by a student, trespasser, or injury while mediating a dispute, which occurs in the course of an employee's Board employment will maintain the teacher on full-pay status during the period of such absence under the following provisions:

- 9.8.1 The teacher who has been assaulted must furnish a written, signed statement on forms provided by the Board of Education to justify the use of assault leave.
- **9.8.2** If medical attention is required, a certificate stating the nature of the disability and its duration from a licensed physician shall be required before assault leave can be approved for payment.
- **9.8.3** Falsification of either a written, signed statement or a physician's certificate shall be grounds for suspension or termination of employment under Section 3319.16 of the Ohio Revised Code.
- **9.8.4** Assault leave granted under these regulations shall not be charged under sick leave earned or earnable under Section 3319.141 of the Revised

Code or leave granted under regulations adopted by the Board pursuant to Section 3319.08 of the Revised Code.

9.9 Jury Duty/Court Leave

- **9.9.1** Members called to jury duty shall be paid her/his regular per diem and shall retain any compensation paid by the court for jury service.
- 9.9.2 Days missed by members subpoenaed to court to testify in a proceeding where the member is not a party to the action shall be treated in the same manner as jury duty. As an example, divorce or domestic disputes where the member is a party are not included.

9.10 Bereavement Leave

In the event of the death of an immediate family member (as defined in Article 9.4.1.4.5), a total of up to five (5) paid sick days may be used for each occurrence. Additional paid sick days may be granted if the bargaining unit member provides a certificate from a licensed physician stating the nature of the bargaining unit member's medical need related to the immediate family member's death, and the duration of the leave.

9.11 Other Leaves

In addition to the other leaves listed herein, a member of the professional staff who has served in the Euclid Schools for not less than two (2) years may be granted a leave of absence for a period of not more than two (2) school years for education, professional, or other approved purpose. The leave may begin at the beginning of each semester or other times approved by the Superintendent. Return shall be in accordance with Section 9.1.3.

10. SUBSTITUTE TEACHERS

- **10.1** Unless a substitute is not available or not feasible due to the shortness of the absence, the Board will provide substitutes for all teachers.
- **10.2** The request of a teacher for a specific substitute shall be granted provided that substitute is available for the assignment and the principal approves the substitute.
- 10.3 Teachers may submit a report of substitutes, excluding building substitutes, on the official substitute report forms. This shall be done through the building principal and, of course, shall be available to the substitute upon request through the Assistant Superintendent.
- 10.4 In the event of an emergency where regular substitutes are not available, requests of regular staff members for such substitution shall be equally distributed among all the teachers within a building staff available at any time of the day.
- **10.5** A list of substitutes will be given to the President following the Board meeting of substitutes who were hired.

10.6 Building Substitutes

Building substitutes shall be employed on annual basis (including open house and evening conferences) under the following conditions:

- **10.6.1** Building substitutes shall be assigned to a designated school on a daily basis, which may be changed in the event of an emergency.
- Building substitutes who work less than five (5) days per week shall be paid a ratio of .00302 based on the Teachers Salary Schedule BA Base per day. Building substitutes who work five (5) days per week shall have the option of being paid per day and receive no medical benefits at a ratio of .00302 based on the Teachers Salary Schedule BA Base, or be paid per day with single coverage hospitalization and major medical benefits, single coverage dental benefits, single coverage vision benefits, and single coverage prescription drug benefits at a ratio of .00245 based on the Teachers Salary Schedule BA Base. The election must be made annually in September or in the first month of employment. Building substitutes who elect medical coverages will continue to receive benefits over the summer months.

- **10.6.3** Building substitutes who work five (5) days per week shall be entitled to personal leave under Section 9.6, but personal leave for building substitutes shall accrue as follows:
 - -- One (1) personal leave day upon date of hire
 - -- One (1) personal leave day the first payroll in November
 - -- One (1) personal leave day the first payroll in February

Building substitutes shall be entitled to use sick leave in accordance with Section 9.4.1 as earned, i.e., at the rate of one and one-quarter (1-1/4) days per month and shall not be entitled to an advancement of sick leave.

- 10.6.4 Building substitutes shall not be covered by Article 3, Evaluation, Article 5, Transfer and Assignment, Article 6, Teacher Contracts, or Article 7, Seniority. The first sixty (60) days of service shall constitute a probationary period for building substitutes. During that time, building substitute teachers shall serve at the discretion of the building principal. The first observation/ evaluation may be held during the first sixty (60) day period at the discretion of the building principal. Building substitutes shall be observed at least one time for a period of at least thirty (30) minutes in duration, during each semester of building substitute employment (agreed upon observation/evaluation form for building substitutes attached [Appendix D]). Should the building substitute's performance be deemed deficient or if the building substitute has engaged in other inappropriate behaviors after completion of the probationary period, the contract of the building substitute may be nonrenewed following an opportunity for a conference between the building substitute and the Superintendent or designee. At such conference, the building substitute may be accompanied by a representative of the Association. The building principal shall be in attendance and shall present his/her reasons for recommendation of nonrenewal. Any such nonrenewal which occurs during the school year shall not be subject to the grievance procedure of this agreement nor subject to the provisions of Revised Code Section 3319.11.
- **10.6.5** Employment of building substitutes shall be considered automatically non-renewed at the conclusion of each school year without the necessity of further action by the Board or delivery of notice of non-renewal.

- **10.6.6** Building substitutes shall not be deemed eligible for nor entitled to receive continuing contracts under Revised Code Section 3319.11.
- 10.6.7 Building substitutes may apply for other vacancies which arise in the bargaining unit and, if properly certified, will be given due consideration for the vacancy. If properly certified, a building substitute shall receive an interview if he/she applies for a vacancy in a building where he/she has never previously interviewed with that building's principal for a bargaining unit position. If a building substitute is employed in a regular unit position by the Board, his/her time in the capacity of a building substitute shall count as seniority for all other purposes under this Agreement as defined by Article 7 and including proper salary schedule placement.
- 10.6.8 It is expressly understood and agreed that building substitutes who replace a teacher on a long-term leave of absence (over sixteen [16] consecutive school days in a single teaching assignment) shall be placed on the first step of the Bachelor's schedule. Those building substitutes who have already chosen the option for medical benefits shall continue to maintain such coverage during the long-term placement. Those building substitutes who did not choose the benefits option must meet the ORC requirement of sixty (60) consecutive school days in a single teaching assignment in order to be eligible for single medical benefits.
- **10.6.9** Building substitutes' salaries shall be paid in twenty-four (24) pays issued twice a month on the 1st and the 15th.

11. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

11.1 Professional Growth

- 11.1.1 The teachers, administrators, and the members of the Board recognize the value and importance of planned professional growth within the Euclid City Schools. This recognition requires support in three major areas: time, money, and cooperation. The scope of professional growth shall be interpreted to include:
 - **11.1.1.1** Relevant college course work as determined by the Superintendent taken beyond certification requirements and rewarded by advancement on the salary schedule.
 - **11.1.1.2** Courses organized by the Professional Growth Committee which will be compensated by advancement on the salary schedule.
 - **11.1.1.3** Professional Leave. See "Absences and Leaves Professional Leave."
 - **11.1.1.4** Inter-school visitations. As heretofore specified, teachers may submit requests to visit classes and schools both within and outside the district.
 - **11.1.1.5** Workshops, seminars, study programs, and/or other professional growth experiences as provided within in-service programs of the Euclid City Schools.
 - **11.1.1.6** The Local Professional Development Committee (see Section 11.3) will be responsible for the following professional growth obligations:
 - 11.1.1.6.1 Meet throughout the school year to formulate the program for the coming year. The meeting dates shall be the first Monday of each month. Release time shall be granted when needed for training, etc.
 - **11.1.1.6.2** Study, evaluate, and recommend to the Superintendent inservice programs designed to provide maximum professional growth benefits to a broad spectrum of the teaching staff. Each recommendation should be

accompanied by a budget estimate to support such inservice programs.

- **11.1.1.6.3** Survey the professional staff each year to ascertain their interests and needs in the area of professional growth.
- **11.1.1.6.4** The committee will produce an in-service calendar to publicize the professional development opportunities.
- **11.1.1.6.5** Implementation of the Professional Development Programs shall be the responsibility of the Superintendent and/or designee.

The administration is responsible for providing secretarial support. The LPDC may make a recommendation to the Superintendent for additional support.

Each building will have an available computer for teachers to have electronic access to their records.

11.2 Curriculum Committees

- 11.2.1 The committees will be established on a PreK-12 basis and with respect to major subject areas, e.g., math PreK-12, science PreK-12, foreign language PreK-12. The composition of these committees shall be determined by the Curriculum Advisory Council. The council will be comprised of a representative from each building configuration in the District.
- 11.2.2 The Superintendent or his/her designee will work with the President of the Association to insure teacher input into school redistricting, redesign (i.e., Middle School), and use of special program funds along with the normal instruction and curriculum activities.
- **11.2.3** Teachers from buildings with late dismissals will be released fifteen (15) minutes prior to the start of these meetings.
- 11.2.4 Compensation at the per diem rate of .0033 of the base rate shall be provided for curriculum work during the summer. For purposes of this section only, a day constitutes six (6) working hours. Release time will be provided for curriculum work done during the school year, or if curriculum is written outside the school day the compensation rate of

- .0033 of the base rate per diem will apply. Payment will be made upon approval of the completed product.
- **11.2.5** No District—adopted curriculum material shall be purchased for a grade level or department without Curriculum Advisory Council review.

11.3 Local Professional Development Committee

The Board of Education of the Euclid City School District ("Board") and the Euclid Teachers Association ("Association") shall create a local professional development committee (LPDC). [The Local Professional Development Committee ("LPDC" or "Committee") shall assume the responsibilities of and replace the Professional Growth Committee under Article 11, Section 11.1 of the Board-ETA Agreement.]

- 11.3.1 The LPDC shall be composed of five (5) teacher members selected by the Association in accordance with its rules and procedures. The LPDC terms of office shall be three (3) years in length. The Committee also shall include four (4) administrators appointed by the Superintendent. All members shall be eligible for reappointment at the completion of their initial term of service. Vacancies arising in committee memberships shall be filled by the entity or individual responsible for the appointment, e.g., a vacancy arising among the teacher members shall be filled by the Association in accordance with its procedures.
- **11.3.2** The chairperson of the LPDC shall be elected by a simple majority of LPDC members.
- 11.3.3 The day-to-day operations of the LPDC shall be governed by standards and bylaws developed by the Committee, which standards and bylaws shall not be effective unless approved by the Association and the Board of Education.
 - **11.3.3.1** Decisions by Consensus The committee shall determine its own quorum. However, there must be a majority of teachers present when considering teachers.
- 11.3.4 Committee members shall be released from their responsibilities up to two (2) days per school year for the performance of some portions of Committee responsibilities.

- 11.3.5 The committee chair will receive a stipend at the rate of .0875 of the current salary B.A. base, and the individual committee members shall receive a stipend at the rate of .0725 of the current salary B.A. base. Payment will be made in the first pay in December, and the second payment will be made in the first pay in June.
- 11.3.6 In the event the Committee does not approve an individual professional development plan, the certificated/licensed employee may appeal such denial in writing to the LPDC chairperson within twenty (20) calendar days of such denial. Similarly, should the Committee refuse to approve a request for CEU credit, the affected employee(s) may appeal said denial in writing to the LPDC chairperson within twenty (20) calendar days of such denial. If the Committee within ten (10) calendar days of the chair's receipt of the appeal does not reverse its decision, the affected employee(s) may initiate, in writing and directed to the LPDC chairperson, a binding decision on the appeal. That decision will be rendered by a three-person panel, with one member chosen by the affected employee(s), one person chosen by the Superintendent, and a third person chosen by the President of the Association. All panel members must hold a current Ohio Department of Education certificate or license.
- 11.3.7 The composition of the LPDC (teacher-administrator) shall be changed to reflect legislation enacted after May 19, 1998. [Whenever an administrator's course work plan is being discussed or voted upon, the LPDC shall, at the request of one of its administrative members, cause a majority of the Committee to consist of administrative members by reducing the number of teacher members voting on the plan.]
- **11.3.8** Secretarial support and record-keeping shall be provided by the administration.

11.4 RESIDENT EDUCATOR PROGRAM

11.4.1 Philosophy

11.4.1.1 The Ohio Resident Educator Program is a four-year program of formative assessment and mentoring support that will culminate in the completion of a statewide summative, performance-based assessment. The four-year program allows mentors and other colleagues to work with Resident Educator's over time and move deeper into the process of being an effective teacher.

- 11.4.1.2 Resident Educators will receive ongoing formative feedback from mentors as they collaborate and document their work together. They will receive more formal, yet still formative, feedback on progress toward goals during the mid-year review and at the end of the school year.
- **11.4.1.3** Resident Educators and Mentors will be required to follow the guidelines outlined by ODE.

This language is meant to align to ODE's requirements. As ODE requirements change, so will contract language.

11.4.2 Mentor

11.4.2.1 Criteria

ALL CRITERIA MUST MEET ODE'S REQUIREMENTS FOR MENTORS.

- (1) Permanent Certificate, five-year Professional License or two year Provisional License that has been renewed two or more times.
- (2) Five years teaching experience.
- (3) Recent classroom experience within the past 5 years.
- (4) Successfully complete state mentoring training.
- (5) Attend mentoring meetings as required by the Resident Educator Planning Committee.
- (6) Make weekly contact with the resident educator during the first semester to provide assistance and direction.
- (7) Meet or communicate regularly after the first semester to observe, give feedback and monitor progress of the Resident Educator.
- (8) Commit to working with the Resident Educator for the duration of their resident educator license.
- (9) Follow ODE's requirement for each year of the Resident Educator program.
- (10) Attend partial session of new teacher orientation to be introduced to Resident Educator and to have initial meeting to review first year Resident Educator process.

11.4.3 Appointment of Mentors

- 11.4.3.1 By May 30th of each year, the Director of Human Resources will post a notice to all certified staff that the district is seeking year 1 Resident Educator qualified mentor candidates for the following school year. The posting will include: candidate requirements, expected hours of service and supplemental contract amount. A list of district-wide applicants will be maintained for review by the Program Coordinator to match resident educators with mentors prior to the start of the school each year.
- 11.4.3.2 The Program Coordinator will consult with the ETA president and/or designee and will create an appropriate match of mentor and Resident Educator. If no qualified mentor is available from the building list, a trained mentor shall be recruited by the Program Coordinator who shall consult with the ETA President and/or designee.

11.4.4 Resident Educator

Per ODE's guidelines, to be eligible to participate in the Resident Educator program, beginning teachers must:

- **11.4.4.1** Hold a valid resident educator license or alternative resident educator license of any type, or a one-year out of state educator license.
- **11.4.4.2** Teach at least two classes or .25 FTE in their area of licensure or in the area in which the teacher holds a supplemental teaching license.
- **11.4.4.3** Be responsible for planning and delivering standards-based, preK-12 curriculum to students and evaluating their progress.
- 11.4.4.4 Work 120 days as defined by Ohio Revised Code.
- **11.4.4.5** Per district guidelines, the Resident Educator must:
 - (1) Work cooperatively with mentor teacher.
 - (2) For year one (1) Resident Educators upon successful completion shall receive twenty (20) professional

development hours; ten (10) of those hours shall be for the attendance at scheduled meetings. Year two Resident Educators shall receive ten (10) professional development hours. Year three (3) Resident Educators shall receive twenty (20) professional development hours, and year four (4) Resident Educators shall receive ten (10) professional development hours. New teacher camp and pre-school workshop days are separate and in accordance with the agreement.

(3) Attend required Professional Development Meetings for Year 1 Resident Educators only.

11.4.5 Program Coordinator

- **11.4.5.1** The Program Coordinator will be appointed by the Superintendent and employed by the Euclid Board of Education.
- 11.4.5.2 At the conclusion of the school year, the Program Coordinator shall meet with the Resident Educators to seek input. The Program Coordinator shall also meet with the Mentors in a separate meeting to seek input. The program coordinator will make adjustments to the program as needed to comply with ODE requirements.
- 11.4.5.3 The Program Coordinator shall compile a current list of Mentors and Resident Educators Years 1-4 and forward to the Program Coordinator, ETA President, Superintendent, and Assistant Superintendent as soon as the assignments are completed. This list shall be updated as necessary throughout the school year.
- **11.4.5.4.** Meet with Mentor and/or Resident Educators to resolve any conflict. If necessary, reassign a new Mentor. Compensation would be prorated for past and new mentors.
- **11.4.5.5** Schedule all Resident Educator meetings and send notice of each meeting to all affected members.
- **11.4.5.61** Keep up to date with ODE requirements.

11.4.6 Release Time

11.4.6.1 Mentors will be permitted release time through the regular assignment approval process.

Resident Educator Program

	Year 1	<u>Year 2</u>	<u>Year 3</u>	<u>Year 4</u>
MENTOR	.045	.045	.040*	.040*

^{*}One Resident Educator or a group of Resident Educators up to 10.

11.4.6.2 Resident Educators shall be permitted release time through the regular assignment approval process noting "resident educator activities" in the request.

RESIDENT	Year 1& 2	Year 3	Year 4	
EDUCTOR	2 days	3 days	1 day for Resident	
			Educators	still
			needing to co	mplete
			one or more p	ortions
			of RESA	

Assignment time must be used for completion of activities related to the Resident Educator program and may be taken with a mentor for collaboration purposes.

Assignment time may be taken in one-half (1/2) day increments.

12. STUDENTS

12.1 Class Size

Should the District be identified as in "fiscal watch" as that term is defined in Revised Code Section 3316.01, ETA commits and agrees to meet with the administration to bargain terms and conditions related to the class size provisions of the Board-ETA contract, Section 12.1. Because class size ratios, pupil-teacher ratios, and support and special teacher ratios are important to the learning process, it is the intent of the Board to maintain the best ratios possible, consistent with quality education, and the Board's responsibility for fiscal responsibility and the will of the taxpayer. The Board shall maintain an average class size of no more than twenty-five (25) students. The Board will continue to maintain a normal class limit of no more than thirty (30) students in any academic class. Good faith efforts shall be made to maintain class size limits for disabled students in accordance with the standards established by the Ohio Department of Education. ETA shall be informed when the District requests any waiver from the State with respect to class size limits for disabled students and ETA will be advised of the response of the Ohio Department of Education to such request.

12.1.1 Secondary

In the secondary schools (grades 6 through 12), the class schedules will be built on the basis of no more than twenty-eight (28) students per class. Additional students may be added based only on individual student need with prior consultation with the affected teachers to a maximum of two (2) students —Should the middle school schedule switch from teaming, the administration and ETA will consult about 6th grade format and bargain the effects, if any.

No class shall have more students scheduled than seats available or equipment needed (e.g., computers).

Study Hall schedules at the high school will be built on the basis of no more than forty (40) students per teacher. Additional students may be added with prior consultation with the affected teacher(s).

12.1.2 Elementary

In the elementary schools, (kindergarten), regular classes shall have a class size of twenty-three (23) students per class. For grades 1 through 5 shall have regular class size of twenty-four (24) students per class.

Should 6th grade be housed in an elementary building that class will follow the class size provisions for that building.

12.1.3 "Added Responsibility" Pay

12.1.3.1 Kindergarten teachers' class size shall be capped at 25 students per class. For a kindergarten class of twenty-four (24) students regularly enrolled in their class on the last day of each nine week grading period (regardless of the number of students in the class on any other day), the kindergarten teacher shall receive .00375 of the base rate for the twenty-fourth (24TH) kindergarten student. For a kindergarten class of twenty-five (25) students regularly enrolled in their class on the last day of each nine week grading period (regardless of the number of students in the class on any other day), the kindergarten teacher shall receive .00750 for the twenty-fifth (25TH) kindergarten student for a cumulative total of .01125 of the base rate.

Grades 1 through 5 teachers' class size shall be capped at 26 students per class. For a class of twenty-five (25) students regularly enrolled in their class on the last day of each nine week grading period (regardless of the number of students in the class on any other day), the teacher shall receive .00375 of the base rate for the twenty-fifth (25TH) student. For a grade 1 through 5 student class of twenty-six (26) students regularly enrolled in their class on the last day of each nine week grading period (regardless of the number of students in the class on any other day), the teacher shall receive .00750 for the twenty-sixth (26th) student for a cumulative total of .01125 of the base rate.

- **12.1.3.2** Following the end of each nine week grading period, teachers believing they are eligible for this payment shall submit to the principal a request for payment indicating the number of students for which payment is requested.
- 12.1.3.3 The principal will verify school records and submit the

appropriate request for payment to the Central Office.

12.1.3.4 Teachers will receive a lump sum payment for the preceding nine week period during the next nine week grading period or within nine weeks of the last grading period.

12.1.4 Students with Disabilities

In accordance with HIPPA and FERPA, each teacher will be notified of every student with an IEP, 504 plan, or any type of written plan to address a special need. Before the child's placement in the teacher's class, each teacher will be provided with a copy of the IEP, 504 plan, or any type of written plan specific to the child's special needs; but nothing herein shall prevent the District from providing FAPE to a student in accordance with state and federal law. At the elementary level, the building principal shall be responsible for providing the teacher with a copy of the plan. At the secondary level, providing the teacher with a copy of the 504 plan or any other necessary information shall be the responsibility of the appropriate guidance counselor. Special Education Department Chairs will be responsible for distributing IEPs to the appropriate Case Managers who will then provide copies to the appropriate teachers.

- 12.1.5 At the secondary level (6-12) reasonable efforts shall be made to consult with regular education teachers where the placement of students on IEP's (speech only excluded) will exceed five (5) students in all required subjects.
- **12.1.6** Mandatory regular education teacher attendance at IEP meetings shall be rotated where allowable by law or regulation, and coverage for that period shall be provided. Blue cards will be given to any teacher who is giving up a preparation period to attend a special education meeting.
- 12.1.7 For the 2021-2022 school year, written procedures and roles for the IAT process at the ELV, elementary, middle, and secondary levels will be shared with all educators during a building staff meeting before the end of first quarter.
- **12.1.8** Intervention Assistance Team meetings may occur before, during or after school and are scheduled to accommodate parents, teachers and related personnel schedules and commitments. Teachers shall

rotate their attendance at such meetings. Coverage shall be provided for any teacher required to attend meetings scheduled and conducted during the student day. Consistent with meeting the schedules of parents/guardians, every reasonable effort will be made to schedule IAT/IEP meetings within thirty (30) minutes of the start or end of the teacher's regularly scheduled workday. Any meetings or other mandatory meetings that continue beyond or are scheduled to begin after thirty (30) minutes at the end of the school day will be compensated at the yellow card rate.

- Prior to the start of each school year, the Middle School Special Education Department Chair shall receive two (2) days and the High School Special Education Department Chair shall receive four (4) days at the per diem compensation to review the schedule of the special education students in her/his building. The recommended changes to the student's schedule shall be given to the Guidance Counselor(s) principally responsible for special education students and to the appropriate administrator(s).
- 12.1.10 At the secondary level (6-12) all students on IEP's (excluding speech only) initially shall be scheduled by computer in all required courses. Prior to the beginning of each school year, the Special Education Department Head and the Guidance Counselor focusing on Special Education students at the middle schools and at the high school shall review the distribution of special education students among regular classrooms. With building administration, these persons may hand schedule these students in different regular education classrooms, taking into account student needs and class loads.
- 12.1.11 At the secondary level (6-12) intervention specialist schedules will be determined in accordance with student IEP needs and those schedules shall be reviewed by the special education department chair for input and accuracy. Consistent with building needs, the administration will make a good faith attempt not to schedule special education teachers for duty assignments like study hall supervision. Where a duty assignment is not made, the special education teacher will use that time for another class assignment, teaching, providing resource room assistance to students, i.e., academic assistance coteaching, and in room consultation with regular education colleagues.
- **12.1.12** Pre-K-12 bargaining unit members responsible for IEP preparation, save speech pathologists and occupational therapists, of children

with disabilities will be scheduled for two (2) assignment days (with substitute coverage provided) for IEP conferences. All teachers with educational responsibility for the student will be invited to attend the IEP conference and their views and opinions will be solicited. The conference will be scheduled so that those with major responsibility for the student can attend.

12.2 Special Education Teachers

12.2.1 A total of three assignment days will be available to special education teachers for the purpose of completing necessary case-load responsibilities.

High school special education teachers shall use can use up to five intervention enrichment (IE) periods a month to address caseload responsibilities.

When a new IEP is rejected by the intervention team, when extenuating circumstances warrant (e.g., extended absence of intervention specialist, resignation of an intervention specialist, health emergencies), or when an intervention specialist has a caseload of 17 or more, teachers may request additional assignment time. Administrators reviewing the request will consider timelines and caseload demands.

12.2.2 Subject to the availability of VI(b) funding, there shall be three (3) days of summer professional development. Two (2) of these professional development days shall be mandatory for all special education teachers/related service personnel. Such days shall immediately follow the new teacher workshop in Article 2.1.4. Returning teachers shall be paid at the teacher's per diem rate; new teachers shall be paid .0039 times the base salary applicable to the immediately succeeding regular school year per day.

The one (1) additional professional development day shall be mandatory for all new teachers, and voluntary for other teachers, and shall focus on proper development of documentation for special needs students. A teacher voluntarily attending this day shall attend the professional development provided or use the day for beginning building his/her IEP/ETR procedures and calendars for the school year. Teachers voluntarily attending this day shall have the discretion to choose between these two options, unless the teacher's administrator

requires that a teacher attend the professional development. Such one (1) day will run concurrently with the last new teacher workshop day in Article 2.1.4. New teachers in attendance on this day shall be paid .0039 times the base salary applicable to the immediately succeeding regular school year per day for such attendance (teachers shall not be paid additionally because this day runs concurrently with a day in Article 2.1.4). Other teachers in attendance on this day shall be paid at the rate of .0050 times the base salary applicable to the immediately succeeding regular school year per day.

12.2.3 The District shall form an internal monitoring team comprised of intervention specialist representatives of high school, middle school, elementary, and ELV levels; related service personnel from all applicable areas; and, as needed, general education teachers. The team will also be comprised of an equal or fewer number of administrators. The bargaining members of the internal monitoring team shall be selected by the district in consultation with the Association. Internal monitoring team work shall count as "professional development training" for Article 8.3; however, internal monitoring team members may submit an additional five-hour increment under Article 8.3 (up to a total of twenty-five hours for all professional development training) for team work done outside the regular work day.

The purpose of this internal monitoring team is to review IDEA compliance and best practices, including:

- **12.2.3.1** Recommending specific areas and topics for professional development.
- **12.2.3.2** Discussing current service delivery concerns and their impact on district needs and resource
- **12.2.3.3** Making recommendations based on internal monitoring data of identified systemic compliance issues.
- **12.2.3.4** As procedures and processes change and are updated, all communication of these changes will be provided to all special education teachers and all related services personnel in writing and in a timely manner.
- **12.2.3.5** Each building administrator and a special education department chair (secondary) or intervention specialist (elementary) shall

establish procedures to balance caseloads as well as procedures for assigning a new student to a caseload.

- **12.2.4** Draft ETRs shall be submitted to the case manager and building principal at least eleven (11) school days before the IEP meeting date to allow for a new IEP or amended IEP to be completed in a timely manner.
- **12.2.5** Special education teachers shall receive appropriate training throughout the school year as needed or required.
- 12.2.6 Draft IEP's shall be due to an administrator seven (7) school days prior to the IEP meeting in advance, and any corrections shall be returned back to the teacher within five (5) school days of the IEP meeting. The teacher will provide a draft to the parents at least three (3) school days before the meeting.
- 12.2.7 In the event of the absence of either the regular education teacher or the intervention specialist in a co-taught class, a substitute will be provided for either teacher.

12.3 Co-teaching

12.3.1 Co-teaching Preferences for Secondary (High School)

- Both potential partners should complete and submit a form and the coteaching worksheet.
- Special education teachers will be assigned to co-teaching one core course, with no more than two teaching partners. The number of cotaught sections can vary based on student scheduling needs.
- Applicants will be notified by administration of the status of their coteaching preferences prior to the start of the school year. Completion of the application does not guarantee a co-teaching partnership.

12.3.2 Co-teaching Considerations (High School)

- Teachers will have same preparation, and, the same lunch period, unless otherwise mutually agreed upon.
- Collaborative planning should take place.
- Responsibility of presenting materials would be determined collaboratively and be based on the needs of all students.
- Appropriate modifications of tests and assignments would be

- determined and implemented collaboratively for all students.
- Co-teachers are equally responsible for classroom management and must work collaboratively to develop and implement classroom rules, consequences, and common procedures.
- The total number of special education students will not exceed 50 percent of the student initially enrolled in a class.
- Responsibility of grading will be determined collaboratively and based on the needs of student.
- Both teachers will have full access to the entire roster in the electronic gradebook.
- Responsibility of communication with families will be shared between co-teaching partners.
- All co-teaching partnerships shall participate in the evaluation of their co-teaching process using the form collaboratively created by administration and ETA.
- The special education teacher will attend the TBT of the content area they co-teach.

12.4 Student Referrals and Support Personnel

Members of the professional staff are encouraged to be concerned with the satisfactory mutual adjustment of the school and the individual child. Any member of the professional staff may request help from support staff by following approved channels for referrals as stated in the building manual. All referrals are to be forwarded to the Coordinator of Pupil Personnel and Research. Intra-school communication will be implemented among all parties involved.

12.4.1 Case managers shall be given notification within five (5) school days of the District being made aware when a student is assigned to an outside agency and will no longer be serviced by Euclid Teachers.

12.5 Student Discipline

- **12.5.1** Effective discipline, observance of good order, and respect for the rights of others are necessary so that all pupils may obtain the highest degree of quality education.
- 12.5.2 Every pupil has the right to learn and develop to his maximum potential, and the maintenance of an educational environment that is conducive to this growth and learning shall be the responsibility of the teacher and administrator. The administration of a school is expected to set the

attitude and atmosphere within the school which will make for a positive educational environment. The teacher is expected to do the same within his/her building. Those pupils who cannot adjust in such an educational environment and who habitually disrupt the learning opportunities of other children shall be referred to the proper school and/or community agency in order that they may be given suitable assistance in solving their problem.

- **12.5.3** A counselor or administrator shall release information to individual teachers concerning specific emotional or physical problems that could impair a student's learning and behavior.
- A teacher shall refer to the principal or the principal's representative, for appropriate action, a pupil who seriously interferes with the learning opportunities of other children in the classroom, or who fails to comply with a teacher's reasonable directive in any school setting. The teacher will communicate in writing or in cases of emergency, in person, the nature of the problem to the appropriate administrator. Disposition of the matter will be returned to the teacher by the principal or his representative before the student is readmitted to class. A teacher who is dissatisfied with the disposition may raise his/her dissatisfaction with the Superintendent or designee, other than a building administrator, after first conferring with the building principal. The student discipline referral process shall include a form to be returned to the teacher when a timely disposition of the referral is not possible.
- **12.5.5** Verbal attack of a teacher may be grounds for suspension and possible expulsion.
- **12.5.6** ETA agrees to work with the administration and the administration agrees to work with the ETA in helping to create and enforce more consistency among teachers and administrators in the administration of student discipline.

An orientation shall be conducted jointly by the Administration and ETA, during preschool in-service days on student discipline at the building level. The orientation shall include security personnel and shall focus on the following:

 Reviewing procedures for disciplinary referrals, including the procedures to be followed when no administrator is present in the building;

- Reinforcing the need to follow the code book to try to insure predictable outcomes for similar events concerning similar events such as tardies, absences, cut procedures, etc. Also, refer to assault procedures in Article 12.5.
- Reinforcing the requirement that due process be afforded to all students.
- 12.5.7 ETA shall have input through its designated representatives in its Student Code Book. Starting with the 1999-2000 school year, at least every three (3) years, the student discipline code and procedures for disciplinary referrals shall be reviewed with ETA representation, through the President, included as committee participants. The administration is committed to consistent application of the student conduct code, including development and implementation of a matrix of violations of the student code of conduct and resulting discipline consequences. Starting with the 2005-2006 school year a Discipline Matrix shall be developed, implemented, and followed during the school year.

12.6 Assault on a Teacher

12.6.1 Assault is physical harm to a teacher or administrator. An assault includes any deliberate inappropriate contact by student or object that was under the control of a student that causes physical harm. Physical harm is any significant injury regardless of its duration.

An assault also includes reckless conduct that causes serious physical harm. Serious physical harm means any of the following:

- (a) any physical harm that carries a substantial risk of death;
- (b) any physical harm that involves some permanent incapacity, whether partial or total, or that involves some temporary, substantial incapacity;
- (c) any physical harm that involves some permanent disfigurement or that involves some temporary, serious disfigurement; or
- (d) any physical harm that involves acute pain of such duration as to result in substantial suffering or that involves any degree of prolonged or intractable pain. Assault on a teacher shall result in

suspension and possible expulsion.

- **12.6.2** Assault on a teacher is a most grievous act. Release time shall be given to a teacher immediately in order to fill out all necessary forms. For that reason, the following administrative policy is to be used:
 - 12.6.2.1 An accident report (available from the principal, health aide, and the business office) must be filled out immediately, if possible, or within twenty-four (24) hours provided, that if the employee so requests, the employee shall have an opportunity to consult with representation of the employee's choice prior to filing the report.
 - 12.6.2.2 The bargaining unit member must notify the office that medical attention is needed. The bargaining unit member does not need to wait until the end of the day to get medical attention. Coverage should be readily provided.
 - **12.6.2.2.1** Teachers will be provided with notice of the location of the Board's designated health care facility on an annual basis.
 - 12.6.2.2.2 If another facility is utilized, the bargaining unit member must be seen by a doctor at the Board's designated health care facility within twenty-four (24) hours, or Monday morning (if medical attention is needed on the weekend) following initial medical care at another facility.
 - 12.6.2.3 A referral must be written for discipline as soon as possible. "Assault on Staff" shall be checked on the referral form. A principal must make every attempt to talk to the teacher who was assaulted to get the necessary information prior to acting on the disciplinary referral. When a student is suspended for a behavior that the administrator subsequently learns precipitated an assault referral, the administrator will contact the parent and follow the "Assault on a Teacher" provisions contained herein.
 - 12.6.2.4 The bargaining unit member may file a police report for the assault. This can be done at school or directly at the Euclid Police Department. Upon request, the administrator must call the police for the bargaining unit member to enable the bargaining unit member to file a police report at school. The administrator must call the police for the bargaining unit member to enable the bargaining unit member to file a police report at school. The

bargaining unit member may make the report at the Euclid police department.

- 12.6.2.5 If medical attention is needed, over a long period of time, a certificate of medical need from a licensed doctor must be sent to the Superintendent's office. With this certificate on file, the bargaining unit member is ensured under the assault provision that he/she will not be charged for any necessary days or time missed.
- 12.6.2.6 The administrator and/or bargaining unit member will make the ETA aware of any assault situations. In circumstances which you suspect might result in legal action, contact your OEA/UniServ representative.
- 12.6.2.7 When a student returns to school following an expulsion for assaulting a teacher, upon request of the teacher who was assaulted, the student will be placed in another class if an appropriate placement is available.
- **12.6.2.8** A complete investigation of the matter is conducted by the principal and his staff and a report, including recommendations, is made to the Superintendent.
- 12.6.2.9 The Superintendent reviews the matter and determines the action to be taken. Notification of this action shall be sent to all parties involved. This may include legal court action and/or expulsion from school. (See Policy Manual, Item 531.2.)
- **12.6.2.10** The Superintendent shall render all reasonable assistance to the teacher in connection with the handling of the incident by law enforcement and judicial authorities including protecting the teacher's interests.
- 12.6.3 In the case of an assault by a student on a teacher causing injury for which worker's compensation is paid, the Board will pay the monthly premiums on the adopted medical plan and term life insurance for a period not to exceed two (2) years.

12.7 Deliberate Action and/or Reckless Conduct

12.7.1 Reckless conduct that results in physical harm to a staff member will

- result in suspension and a possible recommendation for expulsion.
- **12.7.2** Any deliberate action by a student that could have resulted in physical harm as defined in 12.5.1 will result in a suspension and a recommendation for expulsion. Section 12.5.2. shall be followed.
- **12.7.3** Threats of physical harm to teachers will result in suspension and possible recommendation for expulsion.
 - The student who threatened and/or attempted to harm a bargaining unit member shall not be returned to class until completion of his/her suspension *or* expulsion.
- **12.7.4** Verbal attack to a teacher may be grounds for suspension and possible expulsion.
- **12.7.5** When appropriate, follow procedure identified in 12.5.2.1, 12.5.2.2, 12.5.2.5, 12.5.2.6, and 12.5.2.8 listed above. Section 12.5.2.7 procedures will apply.

13. ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

- **13.1** The ETA shall be authorized to use the inter-school mail facilities and the teachers' mailboxes.
- 13.2 The Board shall designate reasonable space on a bulletin board in each building for the general use of the ETA. The bulletin board shall, when possible, be located in an area readily accessible to and normally frequented by teachers.
- **13.3** The ETA shall schedule its regular meetings on Tuesdays. Anyone expected to attend these meetings shall be excused from other activities.
- 13.4 The ETA shall be permitted to use school buildings for its official membership and executive committee meetings after school hours and at a time and place that does not interfere with the normal and other scheduled use of such buildings.
- 13.5 The ETA has the right to use upon request school facilities and equipment when they are not in use for other purposes. Supplies necessary for equipment use shall be provided by or paid for by the Euclid Teachers Association.
- 13.6 The ETA officers and faculty representatives shall not be required to perform extra duties beyond the time of student dismissal unless approved by the teacher. The schedule of the President of the Euclid Teachers Association shall be arranged to provide a preparation period at the end of each school day and at least one additional preparation period per day instead of being assigned a duty period where such an arrangement is feasible. Where the ETA President is assigned to an elementary building, and when a building sub is not covering for a teacher due to teacher absence, the building sub will be assigned to the ETA President for one-half (1/2) day.
- **13.7** The ETA President shall be provided with a phone in his/her classroom.
- 13.8 The ETA President shall be scheduled for five (5) weekly preparation periods at the end of each work day and will be exempt from attendance at faculty meetings and professional development days. The President remains responsible for knowing and complying with the information shared with faculty colleagues at missed meetings.

13.9 Upon request the ETA President will be provided a copy of all documents regarding grants.

13.10 ETA Consultation

At the district, building, or department level, whichever is appropriate, the administration shall provide ETA with opportunity for meaningful input and consultation on any new or modified educational or duty policies, work rules, or financial matters during budgetary and appropriations periods. The ETA shall be given the opportunity for such consultation and input with respect to such matters prior to decisions being made, adopted, and/or their general publication. At the building level, the consultation shall occur through the ETA President or his/her designee. (The President may designate himself.) At the district level, consultation shall occur with the ETA President or his/her designee. This does not supersede the right of negotiation on any of these items. Failure to give the ETA proper notice regarding any proposed change in a working condition, as defined in ORC 4117, may result in a ULP.

- 13.11 The Superintendent of Schools, in consultation with the President of the ETA, will approve attendance of ETA delegates or members who have been elected or appointed to official bodies to OEA or NEA conventions or meetings. Attendance of ETA members to OEA instructional meetings shall come under the jurisdiction of the Professional Leave Committee.
- 13.12 The ETA President and/or duly authorized representative of the President shall have the freedom to visit all school buildings for Euclid Teachers Association business at all times provided that this does not interfere with the normal school function. In addition, the ETA President shall have up to the equivalent of 10 days of paid released time in order to conduct ETA business.
- **13.13** The names, addresses, Social Security numbers, and building assignments of all newly-employed staff members shall be supplied to the ETA President as such information becomes available.
- **13.14** The parties agree to maintain as a Legacy Document in Appendix [K] the Agency Fee provisions contained in the negotiated agreement immediately prior to the U.S. Supreme Court decision in *Janus v. American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees, Council 31.* The parties agree to maintain this Legacy Document in the event there is a change in law that will allow for this language to be placed back into the contract and be implemented.

In the event there is such a change in law, the parties shall negotiate to agreement, any necessary changes to this legacy document prior to the document being placed back into the negotiated agreement.

13.15 ETA-Superintendent Meetings

The Superintendent and ETA shall meet the third Tuesday of each month during the school year. Agendas from each party shall be shared the Friday before the meeting. When possible, the people appropriate to the solution of the issue(s) will be present for the meeting. The agenda will include only issues to problems not subject to resolution through the grievance procedure. Issues not previously discussed with the building principal shall not be included on the agenda. Meeting minutes, including issue resolutions, shall be sent to building principals. The ETA President will be responsible for appropriate communication of issue resolution to its membership.

13.16 Association Release Time

The Association President will designate six (6) ETA representatives (or five (5) if one of two exceptions below is selected) and make their identities known to the Superintendent for the purpose of exempting them from one classroom assignment per day, with the following exceptions to the one-assignment-per-day requirement:

- The Association President may elect to designate two (2) of the six (6) classroom assignments to the Association President (with the remaining four (4) ETA representatives receiving one classroom assignment per day), so long as doing so does not require the District to make an additional hire; or
- 2. If there are seven (7) or more teachers on an improvement plan at the start of a school year, the Association President may designate two (2) of the six (6) classroom assignments to the one ETA representative responsible for assisting with improvement plans/plans of assistance (with the remaining four (4) ETA representatives receiving one classroom assignment per day), so long as doing so does not require the District to make an additional hire.

The Association President shall provide the identities of the affected individuals no later than May 15 for the following year.

13.17 Teacher Professional Organization

Identified Association officials shall be paid a stipend by the Board. On September 1 of each school year, the ETA shall reimburse the Board for the payment of the first stipend. For the second and third stipend, the ETA shall reimburse the Board thirty (30) days before the stipend is paid to ETA officials. The ETA President shall make the identities of such persons and the amounts of the stipends known to the Treasurer by May 15 of the preceding school year. The Board shall pay out the stipend in three payments. The first payment shall be made in the second payroll check in September, the second payment in the first paycheck in December, and the third payment in the first paycheck in April. The ETA shall reimburse the Board for the cost of the stipends, state/federal taxes, and any applicable retirement costs payable to the Ohio STRS. If a state level appointment is made, this section shall be applied in accordance with the established quidelines set by the state organization.

13.18 Laptop Insurance

The District shall provide warranty coverage on Laptops provided to ETA members through the manufacturer's warranty.

For matters not covered by the manufacturer's warranty, the District and ETA will continue to abide by the 2016 Agreement regarding the self-funded insurance program.

14. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

14.1 Definition

A grievance is any claim by a member (or members) of the bargaining unit, or the ETA, that a term of this Agreement has been violated, misinterpreted, or misapplied.

14.2 Procedure

Informal Step

The grievant should first attempt to resolve the grievance informally through discussion with the lowest-level administrator who has authority to resolve the grievance. At least two (2) weeks prior to the start of each school year, the District shall provide ETA with a list of all administrators, and their job title. Job descriptions for such administrators will be posted on infoweb and accessible to the ETA.

Step One

If not resolved informally, the grievance shall be reduced to writing (Appendix C), signed by the grievant, and filed with the lowest-level administrator who has authority to resolve the grievance within twenty-five (25) work days of the event giving rise to the grievance. The administrator shall schedule a hearing within ten (10) days of receipt of the grievance, and shall then answer the grievance in writing within five (5) days after the hearing. The failure of the administration to conduct a timely hearing and/or response shall automatically move the grievance forward to the next level.

Step Two

If not resolved at Step One, the grievance may be appealed to the Superintendent in writing within ten (10) days after the administrator's response in Step One. The Superintendent, or his designee, shall hold an informal hearing within ten (10) days, and shall then answer the grievance in writing, with reasons, within five (5) days after the hearing.

Step Three

If not resolved at Step Two, the grievance may be appealed to the Board in writing within ten (10) days after the Superintendent's response in Step Two.

The appeal shall be addressed to the Board President in care of the Superintendent. Within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the appeal, the Board shall hear the grievance. The Board shall answer the grievance in writing, with reasons, within fifteen (15) days after the close of the hearing.

Step Four

If not resolved at Step Three, the grievance may be appealed in writing to arbitration within fifteen (15) days after the Board's response in Step Three. The appeal shall be filed with the Superintendent. Selection of an arbitrator, and the conduct of the arbitration hearing, shall be governed by the American Arbitration Association's Voluntary Labor Arbitration Rules. The arbitrator shall have no authority to add to, subtract from, or modify any of the provisions of this Agreement and shall confine himself/herself to the precise issue(s) submitted to arbitration. The arbitrator's fee and cost shall be borne solely by the losing party. The arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding.

- 14.3 Time limits in the grievance procedure may be extended by mutual agreement. Failure by a grievant to comply with any time limit not mutually extended shall result in complete waiver of the grievance. Failure to answer a grievance within any time limit not mutually extended shall permit the grievant to proceed forthwith to the next step of the grievance procedure. The term "days" shall mean workdays, except during summer recess when it shall mean weekdays.
- **14.4** If a grievance arises from action by the Board or Superintendent over which a lower-level administrator has no control, the grievant may file the grievance at Step Two of the grievance procedure.
- 14.5 The grievant may designate an ETA representative at any step, including the informal step, of the grievance procedure. The representative shall be entitled to attend all meetings or hearings pertaining to the grievance and shall be furnished a copy of all responses to the grievance. Should an ETA representative attend a meeting or hearing, the administrator shall likewise be entitled to have an additional administrator attend such meeting or hearing. Once designated, all arrangements and communications shall be with the representative. The ETA grievance chairperson will be sent copies of all grievance responses.
- **14.6** Meetings and hearings under the grievance procedure shall be conducted at a time and place that will afford a reasonable opportunity for the grievant, ETA representative and necessary witnesses to be present.

- 14.7 If a grievance is processed to Step Four of the grievance procedure but withdrawn prior to arbitration the arbitrator's cancellation fee, if any: (1) shall be shared equally by the Board and the ETA if the grievance is withdrawn as the result of a compromise settlement; (2) shall be borne solely by the ETA if the grievance is withdrawn by the ETA with no change in the Board's position; (3) shall be borne solely by the Board if the grievance is withdrawn as the result of a Board decision to grant the grievance.
- **14.8** Either party may waive Step Three of the grievance procedure and proceed directly from Step Two to Step Four by notifying the other party in writing of such intent within ten (10) days after the Superintendent's response in Step Two.
- 14.9 Nothing in this Article shall deny any bargaining unit member rights under state or federal law. Grievances are confidential except to the parties of interest and as required by law and will not be used in any employment decisions except as the remedy for a particular grievance may require.

15. TEACHER RIGHTS

- **15.1** Disciplinary action shall not be taken against a teacher solely on the basis of a written or verbal complaint by a parent or student.
 - 15.1.1 At any investigatory interview the teacher reasonably fears may result in discipline against him/her, the teacher shall be entitled, upon request, to an ETA representative. A teacher subject to a discipline investigation may refuse to sign a statement until after the statement has been reviewed by his/her representative.
 - 15.1.2 Prior to any recommendation of termination to the Board, a predisciplinary hearing shall be held with the Superintendent or designee in compliance with *Loudermill* and its progeny. Termination shall be pursuant to either Ohio Revised Code 3319.16 or subject to the grievance procedure herein.
 - 15.1.3 No teacher may be given a written reprimand or a suspension with or without pay up to ten (10) days without just cause and only after a prior investigation and a conference with a right to representation. That conference shall be conducted within ten (10) school days of the administration's request for same, unless the scheduling of the conference is delayed by mutual agreement of the ETA representative and the administrator. Such agreement may not be unreasonably requested or denied. Only the Superintendent is authorized to issue a suspension after his/her participation at the above outlined conference.
 - 15.1.4 A member of the bargaining unit retains the option to refuse to meet with administrators and parents unless an ETA representative is present where the meeting is held to conduct an investigation concerning a parental complaint or concern.
 - **15.1.5** The District will not conduct ongoing surveillance of an ETA member using video camera footage, unless advised otherwise by a law enforcement official or other local, state, or federal agency.
- 15.2 All teachers have the right to use the telephone (local or toll-free calls for personal use), fax (where available, for local and toll-free calls for personal use), and e-mail according to district policy for both personal and business calls. The Building Management Team (or like committee) in each building, in consultation with the Business office, will be charged with the responsibility for identifying a location in which a phone may be placed in a private area for

- use in making calls related to the teacher's fulfillment of professional responsibilities, subject to the limits of cabling availability and the possibility of transferring phone locations.
- **15.3** A teacher who mistakenly addressed an e-mail or regular mail to the wrong address of the parent or guardian will not be subject to discipline.
- **15.4** At the request of either the ETA or administration, student information systems will be reviewed annually by a committee comprised of ETA and administration, for the purpose of making recommendations to the administration to improve such systems.
- 15.5 The administration will notify the affected employee of a non-employee request to review her/his computer files and/or any other materials stored on her/his District-owned computer/laptop before such materials are made available for review.
- **15.6** Teachers shall not be found in violation of the Board's authorized use policy if they received unsolicited e-mail but forwarding inappropriate e-mail is not acceptable
- **15.7** A teacher assigned to take students on an out of district overnight field trip shall be issued a District cell phone upon request.
- **15.8** Upon request, if available a building substitute shall be provided to a teacher when administering individualized testing to their students.
- **15.9** District-wide employee directories shall be electronically provided through the district's data base to all faculty prior to Thanksgiving recess.
- 15.10 A teacher asserting a breach of his/her rights under this contract shall be entitled to be accompanied by a representative of his/her choosing. In addition, a teacher shall be entitled, upon request, to an ETA representative at any investigatory interview the teacher reasonably fears may result in discipline against him/her.
- 15.11 Teachers whose employment contracts are nonrenewed or suspended and teachers who go on authorized leaves of absence will be notified by the Superintendent or his designee prior to the expiration date of any insurance fringe benefit.

- **15.12** No member of the bargaining unit, excluding nurses, will be assigned clinic coverage and/or the dispensing of any form of medication or medical advice or non-emergency administration of any medical procedure.
- 15.13 Bargaining unit members having difficulties in obtaining necessary supplies or access to necessary school facilities and equipment for legitimate school purposes shall raise their concerns with the building principal, and if the concerns are not resolved, they shall be presented to the Superintendent at the Superintendent's monthly meeting with the ETA. All bargaining unit members shall have access to copying machines in their building for activities reasonably necessary to the performance of their duties. If building staff abuse this privilege, the building principal may limit the use of the copy machine to duplication of only approved materials.

15.14 Safety Committee

The parties shall create a Joint Health and Safety Committee in each building. Any safety or health problems or concerns shall be presented to the Health and safety Committee. A written response shall be provided by the Committee within two (2) weeks. The Committee may determine to include parents and other community groups in its discussions with respect to certain health and safety problems. The Building Safety Plan shall be reviewed annually with the Safety Committee and shared with the staff in each building.

15.15 Academic Freedom

In accordance with Board-adopted policy, teachers shall be accorded full academic freedom for instructing their students pursuant to Board-adopted curriculum and courses of study.

15.16 Teachers and administrators shall treat one another with professional respect. Any contentious discussions should be conducted in private, out of the presence of parents, other teachers, or students, and not in hallways, over the PA system, or in the presence of others at outside activities.

15.17 Certified Support Staff

Subject to space restrictions and financial constraints, reasonable efforts shall be made to provide certified support staff with (1) a working environment with adequate space, privacy, and ventilation; (2) access to a telephone for conducting sensitive professional business; (3) specialized supplies and

materials; (4) lockable storage for confidential materials; and (5) clerical support.

- **15.18** The Board and ETA agree as follows:
 - **15.18.1** All staff and students will be provided with visual identification badges and expected to carry while on school property.
 - **15.18.2** Each building shall establish a security committee composed of staff and administrative representatives. The committee will be responsible for developing a building security plan which could include the following features:
 - **15.18.2.1** A plan for locking entrances;
 - **15.18.2.2** Possible use of surveillance cameras:
 - **15.18.2.3** Changing entrance locations;
 - 15.18.2.4 Improved lighting;
 - 15.18.2.5 Possible requirement of vehicle identification stickers;
 - **15.18.2.6** Review of building rental policies;
 - **15.18.2.7** Block watch, i.e., support and watch out for one another and kids.
 - **15.18.3** A district security committee composed of at least one representative of each building. Committee shall be created to coordinate the district's security programs.
 - 15.18.4 In each building where doors are open to outside access after the start of the regular school day, a light or motion detector plus security camera shall be installed at the door which remains open for outside access.
- **15.19** The District shall provide adequate parking spaces for bargaining unit members.
- **15.20** Panther Academy will have security on premises during the hours in which students attend.

16. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the Board reserves and retains all managerial authority vested in it by law including those rights enumerated in Section 4117.08 of the Ohio Revised Code.

16.1 Occupational Safety and Health

16.1.1 The Board retains exclusive authority to adopt and implement policies and procedures required by O.R.C. Chapter 4167, by the Division of Occupational Safety and Health, by the Public Employment Risk Reduction Advisory Commission, and/or any rules or regulations adopted under the authority of Chapter 4167. The Board is entitled to or may adopt and implement such policies and procedures without any obligation to bargain.

16.1.2 Report Internally First

The parties desire to deal with safety and health complaints internally to attempt to correct any health or safety allegations. Accordingly, neither the Association nor a bargaining unit member may file a complaint with the Ohio Department of Industrial Relations (with the sole exception of a condition which the bargaining unit member acting in good faith reasonably believes present an imminent danger of death or serious harm to him/her, in which case these procedures need not be followed) until the following procedure has been exhausted:

- 16.1.2.1 A bargaining unit member or Association representative must first bring an alleged health or safety violation to the attention of the affected bargaining unit member(s)' immediate supervisor within two work days of the occurrence of the alleged violation.
- 16.1.2.2 If the immediate supervisor does not resolve the alleged violation to the satisfaction of the complaining party, the bargaining unit member or the Association may appeal the complaint to the THP officer by filing a written appeal with the THP officer within one work day of the response of the immediate supervisor. If the immediate supervisor fails to respond within forty-eighty (48) hours, then the bargaining unit member or Association must file their appeal within one work day of that deadline. The THP officer shall meet with the complaining party in an attempt to resolve the alleged violation. Within not more than three (3) work days after

the conference, the THP officer shall provide a written response to the alleged violation.

16.1.3 Board's Right to Reassign

Before exercising his/her right to refuse work under O.R.C. Section 4167.06 because of a condition which the bargaining unit member acting in good faith reasonably believes presents an imminent danger of death or serious harm to him/her, the bargaining unit member must immediately notify his/her supervisor of the condition. The bargaining unit member may be temporarily reassigned while the condition is being investigated and/or ameliorated.

16.1.4 Claims of Discrimination to be Grieved

A bargaining unit member who wishes to assert a claim of discrimination as defined in O.R.C. Chapter 4167 or any violation of this Article shall use the grievance procedure of this Agreement to assert such claim. The grievance procedure of this Agreement shall be the exclusive means for a bargaining unit member to assert such claim, to the exclusion of any other means of challenge. No employee shall be subject to discrimination as a result of reporting any condition regarding safety, health, and sanitation.

All employees new to the district shall be conditionally employed until the Board receives the results of a criminal records check from either the local police agency or the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation. If such report indicates the individual does not qualify for employment as defined in Revised Code Section 3319.311(B) (1), the individual shall be informed that he/she is being released from conditional employment and the reason, i.e., the report from the local policy agency or Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation, for the release. No individual released from conditional employment under this section, nor the Association nor any other agency or individual acting upon the conditional employee's behalf, shall have the right to bring a grievance or request arbitration or initiate any other legal proceeding to contest a conditional employee's release from conditional employment by the Board.

17. HOURLY TUTORS AND MEDIA SPECIALISTS

17.1 Hourly "Tutors"

Teachers who are employed on an hourly basis working 18 hours or less a week to provide tutor services on an "as need" basis, e.g., homebound students, as individually identified by the Board are not members of the bargaining unit.

If the Board makes a determination to eliminate regularly employed tutors (as defined in 17.2), hourly tutors who work more than 15 hours shall be members of the bargaining unit.

17.2 Regularly Employed Tutors

Regularly Employed Tutors shall be employed on annual basis (including open house and evening conferences).

Teachers who are regularly employed to provide tutoring services to specific students, e.g., special education, remedial, etc. as individually identified by the Board are members of the bargaining unit and are governed by the provisions of this Agreement except as modified by this section. Such regularly employed tutors are classified as Supplemental or School Improvement tutors.

17.2.1 Supplemental Tutors-Hours

Work hours will be established in accordance with the assigned school schedule at the start of each school year. This schedule will be the basis for entitlements for the year. A 30 minute unpaid lunch will be provided in the schedule. Up to 45 minute prep will be provided based on instructional time in work day.

17.2.2 School Improvement Tutors- Hours

Work hours will be established in accordance with the school schedule. School improvement tutors will work 6 hours per day (45 minute prep and 5 hours/15 minutes of student contact and/or instruction) and will have a 30 minute unpaid lunch.

17.3 Benefits and Salary

Each Regularly Employed Tutor (Supplemental and School Improvement) shall be eligible for the benefits of Articles 8 and 9. To be eligible for family benefits, tutor must be scheduled to work over 37.5 hours per week. Regularly employed tutors shall be eligible to purchase family health care, dental, prescription benefits for the cost difference between the single and family contribution premium.

Each Regularly Employed Tutor shall be paid an annual salary determined in accordance with the schedule set forth in Section 17.6 below. The annual salary amount shall be determined by multiplying the projected number of work hours and work days of employment times the hourly amount set out in section 17.6 below.

Regularly Employed Tutors shall be eligible for three (3) personal days per school contract year in accordance with Article 9.6. One (1) personal leave day shall be issued in September, one personal leave day shall be issued in November, and one personal leave day shall be issued in February. Any unused personal leave days shall roll into the tutor's accumulated sick leave.

17.4 Vacancies

Regularly Employed Tutors shall have seniority preference bidding rights for more hours/days. During the school year, such bidding will take place on a building basis where appropriate.

Regularly Employed Tutors may apply for regular teacher openings but shall not receive any seniority preference for their "tutor" experience unless they are selected for a regular position at which time they shall receive full seniority credit on a prorated basis for all purposes under this Agreement. Regularly Employed Tutors who apply for regular teacher openings shall be eligible and given consideration for such position and given an annual screening interview with Human Resources.

17.5 Contracts

Each Regularly Employed Tutor (Supplemental and School Improvement) shall be employed on an annual basis and issued a Limited Contract for employment.

17.5.1 Nonrenewal

Article 6 rights concerning nonrenewal shall apply to regularly employed tutors (supplemental and school improvement).

17.6 Compensation

If employed in a regular teaching position, their time as an hourly tutor shall count as regular teaching experience for salary schedule placement purposes for up to five (5) years.

Each hourly tutor shall be paid in accordance with the following ratio schedule based on the Teachers Salary Schedule BA base. The base and schedule shall increase at the same rate as the regular teacher's salary schedule base.

Schedule	В	B-1	B-2	Α
Training	B.A.	BA+12	BA+24	M.A.
			or 150 Hrs.	
Step 1	.000595	.000613	.000631	.000649
2	.000621	.000640	.000658	.000682
3	.000650	.000666	.000684	.000714
4	.000675	.000693	.000711	.000747
5	.000703	.000720	.000738	.000780

No teacher may be involuntarily transferred to an hourly tutor position.

17.7 Probationary Period

Regularly Employed Tutors (Supplemental and School Improvement) shall serve a probationary period of one (1) year.

17.8 Reduction in Force (RIF)

Layoffs shall be accomplished in accordance with Article 6.5; however, bumping shall not occur between tutors and teachers. Each is considered its own classification for purposes of layoff and recall.

Any bargaining unit member who is RIF'd and offered a regularly employed tutor position shall not be required to accept that position. Should the bargaining unit member decline a tutor position, he/she shall remain on the

recall list for three (3) school years as though he/she was never offered the position and shall not forfeit seniority and/or recall rights. Should the RIF'd bargaining unit member accept the tutor position, he/she shall also maintain his/her recall rights to a full-time position in his/her area of certification.

17.9 Termination

Following completion of the probationary period, a Regularly Employed Tutor (Supplemental or School Improvement) may only be terminated for just cause.

17.10 Evaluation

Evaluation will be in accordance with O.R.C. 3319.111 and 3319.112.

17.11 Media Specialists

Should the Board decide to employ Media Specialists in the future, the position shall be bargained.

18. JOB SHARING

18.1 Definition

Job sharing shall be defined as a voluntary arrangement occurring when two members of the bargaining unit share a bargaining unit assignment which is normally a full-time assignment staffed by a single bargaining unit member. Both members sharing a job must be properly certified (licensed) for the position.

18.2 Right to Share

Two bargaining unit members who wish to share a job may do so providing that they are both properly certified (licensed) for the position, they are both currently assigned to the building where the job share occurs or management is willing to effect a transfer and the transfer does not impede another bargaining unit member's rights, and the job share does not result in significant and demonstrable operational problems (such as the inability to fill another bargaining unit position). At the conclusion of each academic year, each job sharing teacher may apply for any available full-time position. If there is a vacant job sharing position, the position shall be posted pursuant to Section 5.1 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement.

18.3 Seniority and Benefits

Each teacher shall:

- **18.3.1** Receive three-fourths (3/4) of a year seniority credit for each year of job sharing.
- **18.3.2** Be entitled to fully-funded single coverage and the option of paying for the family portion.
- **18.3.3** Receive one-half (1/2) of the term life amount.
- 18.3.4 Be guaranteed one full year of job sharing. Teachers with at least thirty (30) years of teaching experience may request multiple years of job sharing provided: (1) at least one teacher has at least thirty (30) years of teaching experience; (2) there are two teachers in the department who wish to job share; and (3) they provide written notification to the Superintendent of their request to job share for two years.

- 18.3.5 In the event of a life event effecting a teacher engaged in job sharing (death of spouse, divorce, etc.), the effected teacher may return to the next full-time position for which the teacher is certified/licensed. A temporary teacher may be hired to complete the school year for the teacher who has resumed full-time service.
- 18.3.6 For purposes of seniority, each teacher shall advance three-fourths (3/4) of a year or prorated based on the following current practice of the district for each year of service during which a job is shared provided the bargaining unit member works or is paid for 120 part-time days or more in the school year or works the equivalent of one-half or more of a school year:

```
120+ full days = year credit

90-119 full days = .75 year credit

60-89 full days = .50 year credit

30-59 full days = .25 year credit

less than 30 full days = no credit
```

18.3.7 Salary schedule advancement is evaluated twice a year and is calculated on a prorated basis on time worked

18.4 Bidding

- **18.4.1** Each teacher must commit to a full year of job sharing, giving up bidding rights for any job until the next year.
- 18.4.2 Teachers wishing to do job sharing must notify the Superintendent's Office of their intent to apply by February 15 of the preceding year. Teachers wishing to end job sharing must notify the Superintendent's Office by February 15 of the year they are job sharing.
- 18.4.3 A teacher who is on a leave of absence and holds a job-sharing position must notify the Superintendent by February 15 of the year he/she is on the leave if that teacher wants to return to his/her job-sharing position the next school year. Failure to notify the Superintendent of this request by February 15 may place the teacher back to a full-time teaching position.
- **18.4.4** At the elementary level, up to three (3) positions are subject to job sharing per school year.

- **18.4.5** If more than two (2) teachers want to job share in a single building, the priority will go to the more senior teacher.
- **18.4.6** The rules of leaves of absence shall hold for return to service, and the hiring of a temporary teacher for the first year of job sharing.

18.5 Day

- **18.5.1** Prep periods and lunch period minutes should count to balance for figuring total teaching time.
- 18.5.2 Both teachers must attend workshop days/conferences/and open house. Teachers may split responsibility for in-service days and teacher meetings, but one of them must be present. Prior to the start of each school year, teachers must establish a schedule for these days and any early release days or other unusual days in consultation with the building principal and Assistant Superintendent. Each teacher sharing a job may work up to a maximum of the equivalent of ninety-six (96) full-time days.
- 18.5.3 In the event that a teacher sharing a job is absent, the other teacher sharing that job may substitute for the absent teacher. The teacher who substitutes shall receive three (3) blue cards for substituting for the absent teacher.
- 18.5.4 In the event that it is known that a teacher sharing a job will be absent for sixteen (16) or more consecutive days or as of the sixteenth (16th) day of consecutive absence, the other teacher sharing the job may be required to resume full-time status. The teacher required to resume full-time status shall be given at least five days' notice of this requirement. For good cause, the Superintendent may waive the requirement to resume full-time status.
- **18.5.5** Teachers have the right to decide how the subjects will be split, but the principal must give final approval to the plan. Each teacher will be responsible for recording of grades on the scan sheets, and the coordination of completion of behavior, and work habit grades.
- **18.5.6** Scheduling for part-time bargaining members shall be consecutive in length (no unpaid intervals between periods of paid intervals).

18.6 Approval/Denial of Job Share Position

The decision by the Superintendent or his/her designee to grant or deny a request by an employee for a shared staffing position is final and not grievable. An employee denied a shared staffing assignment shall, upon request, have a conference with the Superintendent to review the denial.

18.7 Evaluation of Program

A committee comprising of the Assistant Superintendent, ETA President, and designated ETA Representative will meet annually to evaluate the job sharing program and the benefit of continuation of the program. Any administrative concerns, issues, or implementation problems that arise with regard to job sharing or its operation shall be discussed through this committee.

19. DURATION

This Agreement shall be effective from September 1, 2021 through and including August 31, 2024.

The Board shall not discipline or engage in any reprisal against any bargaining unit member based on union protected activities related to negotiations, the threat of a strike or any other related actions pertaining to the negotiated agreement that is effective September 1, 2021-August 31, 2024.

ETA agrees to withdraw with prejudice any and all unfair labor practices charges, including but not limited to ULP Case Number 2021-ULP-08-0122, ULP Case Number 2021-ULP-09-0132, and ULP Case Number 2021-ULP-08-0121. Furthermore, ETA and the Board agree not to pursue any grievance, unfair labor practice charge, civil and/or criminal litigation, and/or other informal and/or formal action against the Board or the Board against ETA and/or its members, employees, and/or agents regarding labor negotiations, the threat of strike, and anything related thereto.

Should either party violate these provisions the other party may pursue a remedy through the contractual grievance process, unfair labor practice charge, litigation, or any other available remedy at law.

EUCLID TEACHERS ASSOCIATION Sul Control Co-President Co-President Co-Vice-President Superintendent Superintendent

Co-Vice-President

Negotiations Spokesperson

			EUC	LID CIT	ү ѕснос	DLS							
Teachers' Salary Schedule - 2021-2022													
				6.2% In	crease								
Sched.	В	B1	B2	Α	A1	A2	A3	A4	A5				
T:	Б.	DA . 12	BA+24	Ν4 Λ	N4A : 42	N4A + 24	N4A + 2C	NAA . 40	MA+				
Train.	B.A.	BA+12	or 150	M.A.	MA+12	MA+24	MA+36	MA+48	60+				
Step 1	1.000	1.050	1.080	1.110	1.150	1.190	1.230	1.270	1.310				
	43,391	45,561	46,862	48,164	49,900	51,635	53,371	55,107	56,842				
2	1.065				_			_					
_	46,211	47,513	48,815	50,551	52,286	54,022	55,757	57,493	59,229				
3	1.110				_	_		-					
-	48,164	49,466	50,767	52,937	54,673	56,408	58,144	59,880	61,615				
4	1.155				_								
	50,117	51,418	52,720	55,324	57,059	58,795	60,530	62,266	64,002				
5	1.200	_											
	52,069	53,371	54,673	57,710	59,446	61,181	62,917	64,653	66,388				
6	1.300												
	56,408	57,710	59,012	61,398	63,134	64,870	66,605	68,341	70,076				
7	1.345	1.375	1.405		_		1.590	1.630	1.670				
	58,361	59,663	60,964	63,785	65,520	67,256	68,992	70,727	72,463				
8	1.390	1.420	1.450	1.525	1.565	1.605	1.645	1.685	1.725				
	60,313	61,615	62,917	66,171	67,907	69,643	71,378	73,114	74,849				
9	1.435	1.465	1.495	1.580	1.620	1.660	1.700	1.740	1.780				
	62,266	63,568	64,870	68,558	70,293	72,029	73,765	75,500	77,236				
10	1.480	1.510	1.540	1.635	1.675	1.715	1.755	1.795	1.835				
	64,219	65,520	66,822	70,944	72,680	74,416	76,151	77,887	79,622				
11	1.580	1.610	1.640	1.735	1.775	1.815	1.855	1.895	1.935				
	68,558	69,860	71,161	75,283	77,019	78,755	80,490	82,226	83,962				
12	1.625	1.655	1.685	1.790	1.830	1.870	1.910	1.950	1.990				
	70,510	71,812	73,114	77,670	79,406	81,141	82,877	84,612	86,348				
13	1.670												
	72,463	73,765	75,066	80,056	81,792	83,528	85,263	86,999	88,735				
14	1.722	1.745	1.775	1.900	1.940	1.980	2.020	2.060	2.100				
	74,719	75,717	77,019	82,443	84,179	85,914	87,650	89,385	91,121				
15				1.955				2.115	2.155				
				84,829	86,565	88,301	90,036	91,772	93,508				
16									2.210				
									95,894				
	1.737	1.760	1.790	1.970	2.010	2.050	2.090	2.130					
7-19	75,370	76,368	77,670	85,480	87,216	88,952	90,687	92,423	96,545				
	1.752												
20-24	76,021	77,019	78,321	86,131	87,867	89,602	91,338	93,074	97,196				
	1.782												
25-29	77,323	78,321	79,622	87,433	89,169	90,904	92,640	94,375	98,498				
	1.797												
30+	77,974	78,972	80,273	88,084	89,819	91,555	93,291	95,026	99,148				

EUCLID CITY SCHOOLS												
		Te	achers'	Salary S	chedule	- 2022-20	23					
				2.25% I	ncrease							
Sched.	В	B1	B2	Α	A1	A2	A3	A4	A5			
	5.4	D. 4.40	BA+24						MA+			
Train.	B.A.	BA+12	or 150	M.A.	MA+12	MA+24	MA+36	MA+48	60+			
Step	1 000	1.050	1 000	1 110	1 150	1 100	1 220	1 270	1 210			
1	1.000 44,367	1.050 46,585	1.080 47,916	1.110 49,247	1.150 51,022	1.190 52,797	1.230 54,571	1.270 56,346	1.310 58,121			
2	1.065			_	_		_		1.365			
	47,251	48,582	49,913	51,688	53,462	55,237	57,012	58,786	60,561			
3	1.110		_	_	_	_	_		1.420			
3	49,247	50,578	51,909	54,128	55,902	57,677	59,452	61,226	63,001			
4	1.155			_	_				1.475			
•	51,244	52,575	53,906	56,568	58,343	60,117	61,892	63,667	65,441			
5	1.200			_					1.530			
	53,240	54,571	55,902	59,008	60,783	62,557	64,332	66,107	67,882			
6	1.300	-			-		_		1.615			
	57,677	59,008	60,339	62,779	64,554	66,329	68,103	69,878	71,653			
7	1.345			_	_	_			1.670			
	59,674	61,005	62,336	65,219	66,994	68,769	70,544	72,318	74,093			
8	1.390	1.420	1.450	1.525	1.565	1.605	1.645	1.685	1.725			
	61,670	63,001	64,332	67,660	69,434	71,209	72,984	74,758	76,533			
9	1.435	1.465	1.495	1.580	1.620	1.660	1.700	1.740	1.780			
	63,667	64,998	66,329	70,100	71,875	73,649	75,424	77,199	78,973			
10	1.480	1.510	1.540	1.635	1.675	1.715	1.755	1.795	1.835			
	65,663	66,994	68,325	72,540	74,315	76,089	77,864	79,639	81,413			
11	1.580	1.610	1.640	1.735	1.775	1.815	1.855	1.895	1.935			
	70,100	71,431	72,762	76,977	78,751	80,526	82,301	84,075	85,850			
12	1.625	1.655							1.990			
	72,096	73,427	74,758	79,417	81,192	82,966	84,741	86,516	88,290			
13	1.670								2.045			
	74,093	75,424	76,755	81,857	83,632	85,406	87,181	88,956	90,731			
14	1.722								2.100			
	76,400	77,420	78,751	84,297	86,072	87,847	89,621	91,396	93,171			
15				1.955					2.155			
				86,737	88,512	90,287	92,062	93,836	95,611			
16									2.210			
	4 707	4 700	4 700	4.070	0.040	0.050	0.000	0.400	98,051			
47.40	1.737	1.760	1.790	1.970	2.010	2.050	2.090	2.130	2.225			
17-19	77,065	78,086	79,417	87,403	89,178	90,952	92,727	94,502	98,717			
20.24	1.752								2.240			
20-24	77,731 1.782	78,751 1.805	80,082 1.835	88,068 2.015	89,843 2.055	91,618	93,393 2.135	95,167 2.175	99,382			
25-29	79,062	80,082	81,413	89,400	91,174	92,949	94,724	96,498	2.270 100,713			
20-28	1.797		_	_	_	_	_		2.285			
30+	79,727	80,748	82,079	90,065	91,840	93,614	95,389	97,164	101,379			
3UT	19,121	00,740	02,079	30,003	91,040	95,614	95,509	31,104	101,378			

EUCLID CITY SCHOOLS												
Teachers' Salary Schedule - 2023-2024												
				2.5% I	ncrease							
Sched.	В	B1	B2	Α	A1	A2	A3	A4	A5			
_			BA+24						MA+			
Train.	B.A.	BA+12	or 150	M.A.	MA+12	MA+24	MA+36	MA+48	60+			
Step	4 000	4.050	4 000	4 4 4 6	4.450	4 400	4 000	4.070	4.040			
1	1.000	1.050	1.080	1.110		1.190	1.230	1.270	1.310			
_	45,476	47,750	49,114	50,478	52,297	54,116	55,935	57,755	59,574			
2	1.065								1.365			
	48,432	49,796	51,161	52,980	54,799	56,618	58,437	60,256	62,075			
3	1.110								1.420			
	50,478	51,843	53,207	55,481	57,300	59,119	60,938	62,757	64,576			
4	1.155								1.475			
_	52,525	53,889	55,253	57,982	59,801	61,620	63,439	65,258	67,077			
5	1.200								1.530			
	54,571	55,935	57,300	60,483	62,302	64,121	65,940	67,759	69,578			
6	1.300								1.615			
_	59,119	60,483	61,847	64,349	66,168	67,987	69,806	71,625	73,444			
7	1.345								1.670			
	61,165	62,530	63,894	66,850	68,669	70,488	72,307	74,126	75,945			
8	1.390								1.725			
	63,212	64,576	65,940	69,351	71,170	72,989	74,808	76,627	78,446			
9	1.435								1.780			
	65,258	66,622	67,987	71,852	73,671	75,490	77,309	79,128	80,947			
10	1.480								1.835			
	67,304	68,669	70,033	74,353	76,172	77,991	79,810	81,629	83,448			
11	1.580								1.935			
	71,852	73,216	74,581	78,901	80,720	82,539	84,358	86,177	87,996			
12	1.625								1.990			
	73,899	75,263	76,627	81,402	83,221	85,040	86,859	88,678	90,497			
13	1.670								2.045			
	75,945	77,309	78,673	83,903	85,722	87,541	89,360	91,179	92,998			
14	1.722								2.100			
	78,310	79,356	80,720	86,404	88,223	90,042	91,862	93,681	95,500			
15				1.955					2.155			
				88,906	90,725	92,544	94,363	96,182	98,001			
16									2.210			
					_ :				100,502			
	1.737	1.760	1.790	1.970	2.010	2.050	2.090	2.130	2.225			
17-19	78,992	80,038	81,402	89,588	91,407	93,226	95,045	96,864	101,184			
	1.752								2.240			
20-24	79,674	80,720	82,084	90,270	92,089	93,908	95,727	97,546	101,866			
	1.782								2.270			
25-29	81,038	82,084	83,448	91,634	93,453	95,272	97,091	98,910	103,231			
	1.797								2.285			
30+	81,720	82,766	84,131	92,316	94,135	95,954	97,773	99,592	103,913			

		dule						
			2	2021-2022				
Step	Bach	elors	BA	+ 12	BA	+ 24	Mas	ters
1	1.085	47,079	1.125	48,815	1.155	50,117	1.185	51,418
2	1.105	47,947	1.155	50,117	1.205	52,286	1.245	54,022
3	1.125	48,815	1.175	50,984	1.225	53,154	1.265	54,890
4	1.145	49,683	1.195	51,852	1.245	54,022	1.285	55,757
5	1.165	50,551	1.215	52,720	1.265	54,890	1.305	56,625
6	1.225	53,154	1.265	54,890	1.295	56,191	1.325	57,493
7	1.245	54,022	1.285	55,757	1.315	57,059	1.345	58,361
8	1.265	54,890	1.305	56,625	1.335	57,927	1.365	59,229
9	1.285	55,757	1.325	57,493	1.355	58,795	1.385	60,097
10	1.305	56,625	1.345	58,361	1.375	59,663	1.405	60,964
11	1.325	57,493	1.365	59,229	1.395	60,530	1.425	61,832
12	1.345	58,361	1.385	60,097	1.415	61,398	1.445	62,700
13	1.365	59,229	1.405	60,964	1.435	62,266	1.465	63,568
14	1.385	60,097	1.425	61,832	1.455	63,134	1.485	64,436
15	1.405	60,964	1.445	62,700	1.475	64,002	1.505	65,303

		dule						
			2	2022-2023				
Step	Bach	elors	BA	\ + 12	BA	+ 24	Mas	ters
1	1.085	48,138	1.125	49,913	1.155	51,244	1.185	52,575
2	1.105	49,026	1.155	51,244	1.205	53,462	1.245	55,237
3	1.125	49,913	1.175	52,131	1.225	54,350	1.265	56,124
4	1.145	50,800	1.195	53,019	1.245	55,237	1.285	57,012
5	1.165	51,688	1.215	53,906	1.265	56,124	1.305	57,899
6	1.225	54,350	1.265	56,124	1.295	57,455	1.325	58,786
7	1.245	55,237	1.285	57,012	1.315	58,343	1.345	59,674
8	1.265	56,124	1.305	57,899	1.335	59,230	1.365	60,561
9	1.285	57,012	1.325	58,786	1.355	60,117	1.385	61,448
10	1.305	57,899	1.345	59,674	1.375	61,005	1.405	62,336
11	1.325	58,786	1.365	60,561	1.395	61,892	1.425	63,223
12	1.345	59,674	1.385	61,448	1.415	62,779	1.445	64,110
13	1.365	60,561	1.405	62,336	1.435	63,667	1.465	64,998
14	1.385	61,448	1.425	63,223	1.455	64,554	1.485	65,885
15	1.405	62,336	1.445	64,110	1.475	65,441	1.505	66,772

		Euclio	dule					
				2023-2024	-			
Step	Bach	elors	B	A + 12	BA	+ 24	Mas	ters
1	1.085	49,341	1.125	51,161	1.155	52,525	1.185	53,889
2	1.105	50,251	1.155	52,525	1.205	54,799	1.245	56,618
3	1.125	51,161	1.175	53,434	1.225	55,708	1.265	57,527
4	1.145	52,070	1.195	54,344	1.245	56,618	1.285	58,437
5	1.165	52,980	1.215	55,253	1.265	57,527	1.305	59,346
6	1.225	55,708	1.265	57,527	1.295	58,891	1.325	60,256
7	1.245	56,618	1.285	58,437	1.315	59,801	1.345	61,165
8	1.265	57,527	1.305	59,346	1.335	60,710	1.365	62,075
9	1.285	58,437	1.325	60,256	1.355	61,620	1.385	62,984
10	1.305	59,346	1.345	61,165	1.375	62,530	1.405	63,894
11	1.325	60,256	1.365	62,075	1.395	63,439	1.425	64,803
12	1.345	61,165	1.385	62,984	1.415	64,349	1.445	65,713
13	1.365	62,075	1.405	63,894	1.435	65,258	1.465	66,622
14	1.385	62,984	1.425	64,803	1.455	66,168	1.485	67,532
15	1.405	63,894	1.445	65,713	1.475	67,077	1.505	68,441

Euclid School Tutor Hour Salary Schedule

Effective the First Day of 2021-2022

	B B-1					B-2	Α				
	B.A. BA+12				BA+24 or		M.A.				
							150 Hrs.				
Step 1	0.000595	\$	25.82	(0.000613	\$ 26.60	0.000631	\$ 27.38	0.000649	\$	28.16
2	0.000621	\$	26.95	(0.000640	\$ 27.77	0.000658	\$ 28.55	0.000682	\$	29.59
3	0.000650	\$	28.20	(0.000666	\$ 28.90	0.000684	\$ 29.68	0.000714	\$	30.98
4	0.000675	\$	29.29	(0.000693	\$ 30.07	0.000711	\$ 30.85	0.000747	\$	32.41
5	0.000703	\$	30.50	(0.000720	\$ 31.24	0.000738	\$ 32.02	0.000780	\$	33.84

Euclid School Tutor Hour Salary Schedule

Effective the First Day of 2022-2023

	В		B-1			B-2		Α	
	B.A.		BA+12		В	A+24 or		M.A.	
Step 1	0.000595	\$ 26.40	0.000613	\$ 27.20		0.000631	\$ 28.00	0.000649	\$ 28.79
2	0.000621	\$ 27.55	0.000640	\$ 28.39		0.000658	\$ 29.19	0.000682	\$ 30.26
3	0.000650	\$ 28.84	0.000666	\$ 29.55		0.000684	\$ 30.35	0.000714	\$ 31.68
4	0.000675	\$ 29.95	0.000693	\$ 30.75		0.000711	\$ 31.54	0.000747	\$ 33.14
5	0.000703	\$ 31.19	0.000720	\$ 31.94		0.000738	\$ 32.74	0.000780	\$ 34.61

Euclid School Tutor Hour Salary Schedule

Effective the First Day of 2023-2024

	В		B-1			B-2		Α	
	B.A.		BA+12		В	A+24 or		M.A.	
Step 1	0.000595	\$ 27.06	0.000613	\$ 27.88		0.000631	\$ 28.70	0.000649	\$ 29.51
2	0.000621	\$ 28.24	0.000640	\$ 29.10		0.000658	\$ 29.92	0.000682	\$ 31.01
3	0.000650	\$ 29.56	0.000666	\$ 30.29		0.000684	\$ 31.11	0.000714	\$ 32.47
4	0.000675	\$ 30.70	0.000693	\$ 31.51		0.000711	\$ 32.33	0.000747	\$ 33.97
5	0.000703	\$ 31.97	0.000720	\$ 32.74		0.000738	\$ 33.56	0.000780	\$ 35.47

EUCLID PUBLIC SCHOOLS SUPPLEMENTAL SALARY SCHEDULES INCLUDES ATHLETIC DEPARTMENT, DEPARTMENT CHAIR, MUSIC, AND EXTRA DUTY 2021-2022

	Α		В		С		D	
ATHLETIC (Athletic Supplem	entals are	for Male a	nd Fema	ale Sports)			
Athletic Director MS Asst.	0.147	\$6378	0.159	\$6899	0.170	\$7376	0.180	\$7810
Baseball - HS Head	0.118	\$5120	0.129	\$5597	0.139	\$6031	0.155	\$6726
Baseball - HS Asst.	0.075	\$3254	0.083	\$3601	0.093	\$4035	0.103	\$4469
Baseball - MS Head	0.075	\$3254	0.079	\$3428	0.083	\$3601	0.087	\$3775
Baseball - MS Asst.	0.050	\$2170	0.053	\$2300	0.055	\$2387	0.057	\$2473
Basketball - HS Head	0.159	\$6899	0.167	\$7246	0.177	\$7680	0.192	\$8331
Basketball - HS Asst.	0.106	\$4599	0.112	\$4860	0.117	\$5077	0.122	\$5294
Basketball - MS Head	0.106	\$4599	0.112	\$4860	0.117	\$5077	0.122	\$5294
Basketball - MS Asst.	0.071	\$3081	0.075	\$3254	0.078	\$3384	0.081	\$3515
Bowling - HS Head	0.152	\$6595	0.159	\$6899	0.172	\$7463	0.181	\$7854
Cross Country - HS Head	0.079	\$3428	0.087	\$3775	0.096	\$4166	0.109	\$4730
Cross Country - HS Asst.	0.056	\$2430	0.063	\$2734	0.067	\$2907	0.076	\$3298
Cross Country - MS Head	0.052	\$2256	0.058	\$2517	0.065	\$2820	0.070	\$3037
Cross Country - MS Asst.	0.042	\$1822	0.048	\$2083	0.054	\$2343	0.060	\$2603
Faculty Manager - HS	0.187	\$8114	0.196	\$8505	0.212	\$9199	0.227	\$9850
Faculty Manager - MS	0.103	\$4469	0.110	\$4773	0.117	\$5077	0.124	\$5380
Football - HS Head	0.190	\$8244	0.203	\$8808	0.215	\$9329	0.224	\$9720
Football - HS Asst.	0.130	\$5641	0.141	\$6118	0.152	\$6595	0.160	\$6943
Football - MS Head	0.120	\$5207	0.125	\$5424	0.130	\$5641	0.135	\$5858
Football - MS Asst.	0.075	\$3254	0.080	\$3471	0.088	\$3818	0.096	\$4166
Football Equip. Mgr HS	0.045	\$1953	0.050	\$2170	0.060	\$2603	0.070	\$3037
Gymnastics - Head	0.101	\$4382	0.112	\$4860	0.122	\$5294	0.132	\$5728
Gymnastics - Asst.	0.064	\$2777	0.074	\$3211	0.084	\$3645	0.094	\$4079
Golf - HS Head	0.075	\$3254	0.083	\$3601	0.092	\$3992	0.106	\$4599
Golf - HS Asst.	0.050	\$2170	0.053	\$2300	0.055	\$2387	0.057	\$2473
Hockey - HS Head	0.117	\$5077	0.125	\$5424	0.132	\$5728	0.145	\$6292
Hockey - HS Asst.	0.078	\$3384	0.085	\$3688	0.092	\$3992	0.099	\$4296
Soccer - HS Head	0.097	\$4209	0.102	\$4426	0.116	\$5033	0.120	\$5207

146

Soccer - HS Asst.	0.068	\$2951	0.071	\$3081	0.075	\$3254	0.082	\$3558
Softball - HS Head	0.118	\$5120	0.129	\$5597	0.139	\$6031	0.155	\$6726
Softball - HS Asst.	0.075	\$3254	0.083	\$3601	0.093	\$4035	0.103	\$4469
Softball - MS Head	0.075	\$3254	0.081	\$3515	0.088	\$3818	0.092	\$3992
Softball - MS Asst.	0.050	\$2170	0.053	\$2300	0.055	\$2387	0.057	\$2473
Consul We / took	0.000	ΨΣ170	0.000	ΨΣΟΟΟ	0.000	Ψ2007	0.007	Ψ2170
Swimming - HS Head	0.152	\$6595	0.159	\$6899	0.172	\$7463	0.181	\$7854
Swimming - HS Asst.	0.096	\$4166	0.108	\$4686	0.119	\$5164	0.124	\$5380
Swimming - HS Diving	0.081	\$3515	0.093	\$4035	0.104	\$4513	0.113	\$4903
Swimming - MS Head	0.096	\$4166	0.108	\$4686	0.119	\$5164	0.124	\$5380
Swimming - MS Assistant	0.059	\$2560	0.062	\$2690	0.069	\$2994	0.076	\$3298
Tennis - HS Head	0.079	\$3428	0.085	\$3688	0.095	\$4122	0.107	\$4643
Tennis - HS Asst.	0.052	\$2256	0.060	\$2603	0.069	\$2994	0.075	\$3254
Tennis - MS Head	0.052	\$2256	0.056	\$2430	0.065	\$2820	0.070	\$3037
Track - Spring - HS Head	0.114	\$4947	0.125	\$5424	0.135	\$5858	0.150	\$6509
Track - Spring - HS Asst.	0.075	\$3254	0.083	\$3601	0.093	\$4035	0.103	\$4469
Track - MS Head	0.075	\$3254	0.081	\$3515	0.088	\$3818	0.092	\$3992
Track - MS Asst.	0.050	\$2170	0.055	\$2387	0.062	\$2690	0.066	\$2864
Track - Winter - HS Head	0.070	\$3037	0.074	\$3211	0.077	\$3341	0.080	\$3471
Track - Winter - HS Asst.	0.051	\$2213	0.054	\$2343	0.056	\$2430	0.058	\$2517
Volleyball - HS Head	0.099	\$4296	0.109	\$4730	0.118	\$5120	0.129	\$5597
Volleyball - HS Asst.	0.064	\$2777	0.074	\$3211	0.082	\$3558	0.094	\$4079
Volleyball - MS Head	0.063	\$2734	0.070	\$3037	0.072	\$3124	0.077	\$3341
Volleyball - MS Asst.	0.045	\$1953	0.049	\$2126	0.055	\$2387	0.060	\$2603
Wrestling - HS Head	0.146	\$6335	0.159	\$6899	0.172	Ф 7 460	0.181	\$7854
Wrestling - HS Asst.	0.146	\$4166	0.108	\$4686		\$7463 \$5164	0.124	\$5380
•					0.119			
Wrestling - MS Head	0.093	\$4035	0.097	\$4209	0.102	\$4426	0.107	\$4643
Wrestling - MS Asst.	0.059	\$2560	0.062	\$2690	0.069	\$2994	0.076	\$3298
DEPARTMENT CHAIRPERS	ON							
K-8								
(Art/PE/Music/Technology)	0.040	\$1736	0.045	\$1953	0.050	\$2170	0.055	\$2387
* Size 2-4	0.043	\$1866	0.048	\$2083	0.053	\$2300	0.060	\$2603
* Size 5-14	0.058	\$2517	0.063	\$2734	0.068	\$2951	0.080	\$3471
* Size over 15	0.073	\$3168	0.078	\$3384	0.083	\$3601	0.090	\$3905
** Team Leader/MS	0.050	\$2170	0.055	\$2387	0.060	\$2603	0.065	\$2820
		+ ···				, , ,		

Department chairpersons are evaluated by the principal. One year of service is service as the department chairperson for at least 120 days in the school year. Each step in the supplemental salary index (i.e., steps A-D) represents one year of service as the department chairperson for a given department. Initial placement on the supplemental salary index shall give credit for prior years of service as the department chairperson.

Overnight Compensation - Forty dollars (\$40.00) per night.

Supplemental contracts for counselors, home and school counselors, and psychologists shall be paid on the basis of .046 of annual salary payable to the member of the bargaining unit under the teachers' salary schedule during the school year.

MUSIC

All-District Honors Choir Dir. (grades 3-6)	0.050	\$2170						
All-District Honors Choir Asst. (grades 3-6)	0.035	\$1519						
All-District Honors Choir Accomp. (gr. 3-6)	0.020	\$868						
Career-Technical and Post Secondary Students Coordinator	0.037	\$1605						
Elementary Instrumental	0.023	\$998	0.025	\$1085	0.027	\$1172	0.029	\$1258
Elementary Vocal	0.036	\$1562	0.038	\$1649	0.040	\$1736	0.044	\$1909
Elementary Vocal/Asst.	0.015	\$651						
HS - Choir	0.026	\$1128	0.028	\$1215	0.030	\$1302	0.034	\$1475
HS - Choir Asst.	0.015	\$651						
HS - Concert Band	0.066	\$2864	0.070	\$3037	0.073	\$3168	0.076	\$3298
HS - Concert Band Asst.	0.059	\$2560	0.063	\$2734	0.066	\$2864	0.069	\$2994
HS Forte Choir	0.026	\$1128	0.028	\$1215	0.030	\$1302	0.035	\$1519
HS - Marching Band	0.120	\$5207	0.126	\$5467	0.131	\$5684	0.136	\$5901
HS - Marching Band Asst.	0.084	\$3645	0.088	\$3818	0.091	\$3949	0.096	\$4166
HS - Marching Band Percussionist (Summer)	0.030	\$1302						
HS - Marching Band Percussionist (Fall)	0.030	\$1302						
HS - Orchestra Director	0.066	\$2864	0.070	\$3037	0.073	\$3168	0.076	\$3298
HS - Pep Band	0.024	\$1041	0.026	\$1128	0.028	\$1215	0.030	\$1302
HS - Stage Band (Jazz)	0.034	\$1475	0.036	\$1562	0.038	\$1649	0.042	\$1822
HS - V.C. Choreographer	0.045	\$1953	0.050	\$2170	0.055	\$2387	0.060	\$2603
HS - Varsity Chorale	0.120	\$5207	0.126	\$5467	0.131	\$5684	0.136	\$5901
HS - Varsity Chorale Asst.	0.069	\$2994	0.073	\$3168	0.076	\$3298	0.079	\$3428
MS - Band Director	0.044	\$1909	0.046	\$1996	0.048	\$2083	0.050	\$2170
MS - Band Director Asst.	0.022	\$955	0.024	\$1041	0.026	\$1128	0.030	\$1302
MS - Choir Director	0.040	\$1736	0.042	\$1822	0.044	\$1909	0.046	\$1996
MS - Jazz Band Director	0.016	\$694						

^{*} Includes vocational

^{**} For 6th and 7th grade only, unless 8th grade using team model

MS - Orchestra Director	0.030	\$1302	0.032	\$1389	0.034	\$1475	0.038	\$1649
8th Grade Elite (JVC)	0.040	\$1736	0.042	\$1822	0.044	\$1909	0.046	\$1996

If a bargaining unit member is required to direct instrumental or vocal performances at more than two schools, compensation will be one and one-half (1-1/2) times the above index.

EXTRA-DUTY

African American Achievement (EL, MS, HS) Male	0.023	\$998						
African American Achievement (EL, MS, HS) Female	0.023	\$998						
Assistant Building Test Coordinator	0.0255	\$1106						
Building Climate Committee	0.0150	\$651						
Building Test Member	0.0051	\$221						
Career Awareness	0.0227	\$985						
Drug Free/Kids of Block Coordinator	0.120	\$5207						
Drug Free/Kids of Block Trainer	0.044	\$1909						
EPDC Chairperson	0.0875	\$3797						
EPDC Members	0.0725	\$3146						
Facilitator - Noncore Monitoring/ Grading	0.0256	\$1111						
Library Coordinator (districtwide)	0.084	\$3645	0.088	\$3818	0.091	\$3949	0.096	\$4166
Praxis	0.034	\$1475						
Proficiency Night	Yellow	Card						
Saturday School Supervsn. (EL/MS)(HS)	0.033	\$1432						
School Leadership Team Members	0.015	\$651						
Technology Staff Development Coordinator (systemwide)	0.070	\$3037						
Web Site Manager K-8	0.033	\$1432						
Web Site Manager - HS	0.048	\$2083						
Web Site Manager - Fordyce	0.048	\$2083						
Web Master (districtwide)	0.070	\$3037						
Elem - Activity Coordinator	0.150	\$6509						
Elem - After School Instructional Program	0.0007	\$30	per hour					
Elem - After School Recreation	0.040	\$1736						
Elem - Bus Duty (each person)	0.030	\$1302						
Elem - Detention Duty- Before/After	0.013	\$564						
School (1 day/week)								
Elem - Detention Duty-Lunchtime (1 lunch period/week)	0.013	\$564						

Elem-Lunch Duty-Lunchtime half- hour increments per school day; supervision of lunch room and recess, annual supplemental	0.049	\$2126
Elem - Parking Lot Duty	0.040	\$1736
Elem - Quiz Bowl	0.023	\$998
Elem - Safety Patrol	0.040	\$1736
Elem - School Media News (TV)	0.033	\$1432
Elem - School Newspaper	0.033	\$1432
Elem - Student Council	0.040	\$1736
Elem - Student Mediation/Drug Free	0.033	\$1432
Elem - Subject Matter Competition	0.026	\$1128
Elem - Support Group	0.0026	\$113
Elem - Yearbook	0.023	\$998
HS - Academic Competition	0.060	\$2603
HS- After School Credit Recovery	0.00056 2	\$24
HS- After School Tutoring	0.0341	\$1480
HS - American Field Service	0.033	\$1432
HS - Art Club	0.033	\$1432
HS - Auxiliary Unit 1	0.075	\$3254
HS - Auxiliary Unit 2	0.075	\$3254
HS - Big Show Accompanist	0.048	\$2083
HS - Big Show Assistant (1)	0.054	\$2343
HS - Big Show Billboard	0.010	\$434
HS - Big Show Choreographer	0.048	\$2083
HS - Big Show Costumes	0.040	\$1736
HS - Big Show Director	0.079	\$3428
HS - Big Show Orchestra	0.048	\$2083
HS - Big Show Publicity	0.014	\$607
HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade Advisor	0.0101	\$438
HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade Advisor	0.019	\$824
HS - Class Cabinet - 11th Grade Advisor	0.0278	\$1206
HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade Advisor	0.0455	\$1974
HS - Cheerleading 8/9	0.043	\$1866
HS - Cheerleading Asst.	0.066	\$2864
HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV	0.160	\$6943
HS - Chess Club	0.033	\$1432
HS - Culinary Arts Competition	0.0767	\$3328
HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities	0.0464	\$2013
HS - Cultural Club	0.023	\$998
HS - Dance Club	0.033	\$1432

HS - Drill Team	0.060	\$2603
HS - Educators Rising	0.023	\$998
HS - Eroom Supervision	0.150	\$6509
HS - Film and Theatre Club	0.033	\$1432
HS - Foreign Language Club	0.033	\$1432
HS - Future Business Leaders	0.023	\$998
HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO	0.060	\$2603
Advisor		•
	0.000	#
HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO	0.023	\$998
Asst.		
HS - National Honor Society	0.044	\$1909
HS - Newspaper/Business	0.042	\$1822
		•
HS - Newspaper/Editorial	0.150	\$6509
HS - Panther Academy Grading	0.0256	\$1111
(content area)		
HS - Panther Academy Tutoring	0.0767	\$3328
(content area)	0.0707	Ψ0020
,		
HS - Play Coach	0.042	\$1822
HS - Poetry Club	0.023	\$998
HS - Political Affairs Club	0.010	\$434
HS - Publicity News	0.0345	\$1497
•		
HS - Recycle Club (SAVE)	0.023	\$998
HS - Robotics	0.033	\$1432
HS - SADD Chapter (Stand Up)	0.023	\$998
HS - Scenery Des./Big Show	0.033	\$1432
HS - Scenery Design/Play	0.033	\$1432
HS - School Media News (TV)	0.033	\$1432
HS - Ski Club	0.010	\$434
HS - Speech/Debate Activities	0.042	\$1822
HS - Student Academic	0.030	
	0.030	\$1302
Mentorship	0.070	# 0007
HS - Student Council	0.070	\$3037
HS - Student Mediation/Drug Free	0.033	\$1432
HS - Subject Matter Competition	0.014	\$607
HS - Talent Show Director	0.042	\$1822
HS - Voices of New Life Director	0.042	\$1822
HS - Voices of New Life Assistant	0.033	\$1432
HS - Weight Room Supervisor	0.173	\$7507
HS - Yearbook/Business	0.0336	\$1458
HS - Yearbook/Editorial	0.120	\$5207
HS - Yearbook/Video	0.070	\$3037
MS - AV Club	0.023	\$998
MS - Activity Coordinator	0.150	\$6509
•		
MS - After School Recreation	0.040	\$1736
MS - Cheerleading	0.043	\$1866
MS - Chess Club	0.023	\$998
MS - 6th Grade ClassTrip Coord.	0.020	\$868
Jan Stado Stado Trip Goota.	3.320	Ψ500

MS - 7th Grade Class Trip Coord.	0.020	\$868						
MS - 8th Grade Class Trip Coord.	0.020	\$868						
MS - Computer Club	0.023	\$998						
MS - Dramatics	0.023	\$998						
MS - Enrichment Instruction	0.0007	\$30	per hou	r				
MS - Intramural Director	0.033	\$1432						
MS - Literary Magazine	0.040	\$1736						
MS - Media School News	0.033	\$1432						
MS - National Junior Honor Society	0.022	\$955						
MS - School Media News (TV)	0.033	\$1432						
MS - School Newspaper	0.040	\$1736						
MS - Stage Crew	0.023	\$998						
MS - Student Council	0.040	\$1736						
MS - Student Mediation	0.033	\$1432						
MS - Subject Matter Competition	0.014	\$607						
MS - Yearbook Advisor	0.033	\$1432						
Resident Educator	0.045		0.045	\$1953	0.040	\$1736	0.040	\$1736
Yoga	0.0227	\$1,953 \$ 985						

Activity Sponsors are evaluated by the principal and are recommended to the Superintendent on a yearly basis for a supplemental contract.

When after school/evening activities involve supplemental duties such as ticking-taking or student supervision, they shall be compensated on the ratio of .00042 of the BA Base.

EUCLID PUBLIC SCHOOLS SUPPLEMENTAL SALARY SCHEDULES INCLUDES ATHLETIC DEPARTMENT, DEPARTMENT CHAIR, MUSIC, AND EXTRA DUTY 2022-2023

	Α		В		С		D		
ATHLETIC (Athletic Supplementals are for Male and Female Sports)									
Athletic Director MS Asst.	0.147	\$6522	0.159	\$7054	0.170	\$7542	0.180	\$7986	
Baseball - HS Head	0.118	\$5235	0.129	\$5723	0.139	\$6167	0.155	\$6877	
Baseball - HS Asst.	0.075	\$3328	0.083	\$3682	0.093	\$4126	0.103	\$4570	
Baseball - MS Head	0.075	\$3328	0.079	\$3505	0.083	\$3682	0.087	\$3860	
Baseball - MS Asst.	0.050	\$2218	0.053	\$2351	0.055	\$2440	0.057	\$2529	
Basketball - HS Head	0.159	\$7054	0.167	\$7409	0.177	\$7853	0.192	\$8518	
Basketball - HS Asst.	0.106	\$4703	0.112	\$4969	0.117	\$5191	0.122	\$5413	
Basketball - MS Head	0.106	\$4703	0.112	\$4969	0.117	\$5191	0.122	\$5413	
Basketball - MS Asst.	0.071	\$3150	0.075	\$3328	0.078	\$3461	0.081	\$3594	
Bowling - HS Head	0.152	\$6744	0.159	\$7054	0.172	\$7631	0.181	\$8030	
Cross Country - HS Head	0.079	\$3505	0.087	\$3860	0.096	\$4259	0.109	\$4836	
Cross Country - HS Asst.	0.056	\$2485	0.063	\$2795	0.067	\$2973	0.076	\$3372	
Cross Country - MS Head	0.052	\$2307	0.058	\$2573	0.065	\$2884	0.070	\$3106	
Cross Country - MS Asst.	0.042	\$1863	0.048	\$2130	0.054	\$2396	0.060	\$2662	
Faculty Manager - HS	0.187	\$8297	0.196	\$8696	0.212	\$9406	0.227	\$10071	
Faculty Manager - MS	0.103	\$4570	0.110	\$4880	0.117	\$5191	0.124	\$5502	
Football - HS Head	0.190	\$8430	0.203	\$9007	0.215	\$9539	0.224	\$9938	
Football - HS Asst.	0.130	\$5768	0.141	\$6256	0.152	\$6744	0.160	\$7099	
Football - MS Head	0.120	\$5324	0.125	\$5546	0.130	\$5768	0.135	\$5990	
Football - MS Asst.	0.075	\$3328	0.080	\$3549	0.088	\$3904	0.096	\$4259	
Football Equip. Mgr HS	0.045	\$1997	0.050	\$2218	0.060	\$2662	0.070	\$3106	
Gymnastics - Head	0.101	\$4481	0.112	\$4969	0.122	\$5413	0.132	\$5856	
Gymnastics - Asst.	0.064	\$2839	0.074	\$3283	0.084	\$3727	0.094	\$4170	
Golf - HS Head	0.075	\$3328	0.083	\$3682	0.092	\$4082	0.106	\$4703	
Golf - HS Asst.	0.050	\$2218	0.053	\$2351	0.055	\$2440	0.057	\$2529	
Hockey - HS Head	0.117	\$5191	0.125	\$5546	0.132	\$5856	0.145	\$6433	
Hockey - HS Asst.	0.078	\$3461	0.085	\$3771	0.092	\$4082	0.099	\$4392	
Soccer - HS Head	0.097	\$4304	0.102	\$4525	0.116	\$5147	0.120	\$5324	
Soccer - HS Asst.	0.068	\$3017	0.071	\$3150	0.075	\$3328	0.082	\$3638	

Softball - HS Head	0.118	\$5235	0.129	\$5723	0.139	\$6167	0.155	\$6877
Softball - HS Asst.	0.075	\$3328	0.083	\$3682	0.093	\$4126	0.103	\$4570
Softball - MS Head	0.075	\$3328	0.081	\$3594	0.088	\$3904	0.092	\$4082
Softball - MS Asst.	0.050	\$2218	0.053	\$2351	0.055	\$2440	0.057	\$2529
Swimming - HS Head	0.152	\$6744	0.159	\$7054	0.172	\$7631	0.181	\$8030
Swimming - HS Asst.	0.096	\$4259	0.108	\$4792	0.119	\$5280	0.124	\$5502
Swimming - HS Diving	0.081	\$3594	0.093	\$4126	0.104	\$4614	0.113	\$5013
Swimming - MS Head	0.096	\$4259	0.108	\$4792	0.119	\$5280	0.124	\$5502
Swimming - MS Assistant	0.059	\$2618	0.062	\$2751	0.069	\$3061	0.076	\$3372
Tennis - HS Head	0.079	\$3505	0.085	\$3771	0.095	\$4215	0.107	\$4747
Tennis - HS Asst.	0.052	\$2307	0.060	\$2662	0.069	\$3061	0.075	\$3328
Tennis - MS Head	0.052	\$2307	0.056	\$2485	0.065	\$2884	0.070	\$3106
Track - Spring - HS Head	0.114	\$5058	0.125	\$5546	0.135	\$5990	0.150	\$6655
Track - Spring - HS Asst.	0.075	\$3328	0.083	\$3682	0.093	\$4126	0.103	\$4570
Track - MS Head	0.075	\$3328	0.081	\$3594	0.088	\$3904	0.092	\$4082
Track - MS Asst.	0.050	\$2218	0.055	\$2440	0.062	\$2751	0.066	\$2928
Track - Winter - HS Head	0.070	\$3106	0.074	\$3283	0.077	\$3416	0.080	\$3549
Track - Winter - HS Asst.	0.051	\$2263	0.054	\$2396	0.056	\$2485	0.058	\$2573
Volleyball - HS Head	0.099	\$4392	0.109	\$4836	0.118	\$5235	0.129	\$5723
Volleyball - HS Asst.	0.064	\$2839	0.074	\$3283	0.082	\$3638	0.094	\$4170
Volleyball - MS Head	0.063	\$2795	0.070	\$3106	0.072	\$3194	0.077	\$3416
Volleyball - MS Asst.	0.045	\$1997	0.049	\$2174	0.055	\$2440	0.060	\$2662
Wrestling - HS Head	0.146	\$6478	0.159	\$7054	0.172	\$7631	0.181	\$8030
Wrestling - HS Asst.	0.096	\$4259	0.108	\$4792	0.119	\$5280	0.124	\$5502
Wrestling - MS Head	0.093	\$4126	0.097	\$4304	0.102	\$4525	0.107	\$4747
Wrestling - MS Asst.	0.059	\$2618	0.062	\$2751	0.069	\$3061	0.076	\$3372
DEPARTMENT CHAIRPERSON								
K-8 (Art/PE/Music/Technology) * Size 2-4 * Size 5-14 * Size over 15 ** Team Leader/MS	0.040 0.043 0.058 0.073 0.050	\$1775 \$1908 \$2573 \$3239 \$2218		\$1997 \$2130 \$2795 \$3461 \$2440	0.050 0.053 0.068 0.083 0.060	\$2218 \$2351 \$3017 \$3682 \$2662	0.055 0.060 0.080 0.090 0.065	\$2440 \$2662 \$3549 \$3993 \$2884

Department chairpersons are evaluated by the principal. One year of service is service as the department chairperson for at least 120 days in the school year. Each step in the supplemental salary index (i.e., steps A-D) represents one year of service as the department chairperson for a given department. Initial placement on the supplemental salary index shall give credit for prior years of service as the department chairperson.

Overnight Compensation - Forty dollars (\$40.00) per night.

Supplemental contracts for counselors, home and school counselors, and psychologists shall be paid on the basis of .046 of annual salary payable to the member of the bargaining unit under the teachers' salary schedule during the school year.

MUSIC

All-District Honors Choir Dir. (grades 3-6)	0.050	\$2218						
All-District Honors Choir Asst. (grades 3-6)	0.035	\$1553						
All-District Honors Choir Accomp. (gr. 3-6)	0.020	\$887						
Career-Technical and Post Secondary Students Coordinator	0.037	\$1642						
Elementary Instrumental	0.023	\$1020	0.025	\$1109	0.027	\$1198	0.029	\$1287
Elementary Vocal	0.036	\$1597	0.038	\$1686	0.040	\$1775	0.044	\$1952
Elementary Vocal/Asst.	0.015	\$666						
HS - Choir	0.026	\$1154	0.028	\$1242	0.030	\$1331	0.034	\$1508
HS - Choir Asst.	0.015	\$666						
HS - Concert Band	0.066	\$2928	0.070	\$3106	0.073	\$3239	0.076	\$3372
HS - Concert Band Asst.	0.059	\$2618	0.063	\$2795	0.066	\$2928	0.069	\$3061
HS Forte Choir	0.026	\$1154	0.028	\$1242	0.030	\$1331	0.035	\$1553
HS - Marching Band	0.120	\$5324	0.126	\$5590	0.131	\$5812	0.136	\$6034
HS - Marching Band Asst.	0.084	\$3727	0.088	\$3904	0.091	\$4037	0.096	\$4259
HS - Marching Band Percussionist (Summer)	0.030	\$1331						
HS - Marching Band Percussionist (Fall)	0.030	\$1331						
HS - Orchestra Director	0.066	\$2928	0.070	\$3106	0.073	\$3239	0.076	\$3372
HS - Pep Band	0.024	\$1065	0.026	\$1154	0.028	\$1242	0.030	\$1331
HS - Stage Band (Jazz)	0.034	\$1508	0.036	\$1597	0.038	\$1686	0.042	\$1863
HS - V.C. Choreographer	0.045	\$1997	0.050	\$2218	0.055	\$2440	0.060	\$2662
HS - Varsity Chorale	0.120	\$5324	0.126	\$5590	0.131	\$5812	0.136	\$6034
HS - Varsity Chorale Asst.	0.069	\$3061	0.073	\$3239	0.076	\$3372	0.079	\$3505
MS - Band Director	0.044	\$1952	0.046	\$2041	0.048	\$2130	0.050	\$2218
MS - Band Director Asst.	0.022	\$976	0.024	\$1065	0.026	\$1154	0.030	\$1331
MS - Choir Director	0.040	\$1775	0.042	\$1863	0.044	\$1952	0.046	\$2041
MS - Jazz Band Director	0.016	\$710						
MS - Orchestra Director	0.030	\$1331	0.032	\$1420	0.034	\$1508	0.038	\$1686
8th Grade Elite (JVC)	0.040	\$1775	0.042	\$1863	0.044	\$1952	0.046	\$2041

^{*} Includes vocational

^{**} For 6th and 7th grade only, unless 8th grade using team model

If a bargaining unit member is required to direct instrumental or vocal performances at more than two schools, compensation will be one and one-half (1-1/2) times the above index.

EXTRA-DUTY

0.023	\$1020						
0.023	\$1020						
0.0255	\$1131						
0.0150	\$666						
0.0051	\$226						
0.0227	\$1007						
0.120	\$5324						
0.044	\$1952						
0.0875	\$3882						
0.0725	\$3217						
0.0256	\$1136						
0.084	\$3727	0.088	\$3904	0.091	\$4037	0.096	\$4259
0.034	\$1508						
Yellow	Card						
0.033	\$1464						
0.015	\$666						
0.070	\$3106						
0.033	\$1464						
0.048	\$2130						
0.048	\$2130						
0.070	\$3106						
0.150	\$6655						
0.0007	\$31	per ho	ur				
0.040	\$1775						
0.030	\$1331						
0.013	\$577						
0.013	\$577						
0.049	\$2174						
0.040	\$1775						
0.023	\$1020						
0.040	\$1775						
0.033	\$1464						
	0.023 0.0255 0.0150 0.0051 0.0227 0.120 0.044 0.0875 0.0725 0.0256 0.084 0.034 Yellow 0.033 0.015 0.070 0.033 0.048 0.048 0.070 0.150 0.0007 0.040 0.030 0.013 0.013 0.049 0.049	0.023 \$1020 0.0255 \$1131 0.0150 \$666 0.0051 \$226 0.0227 \$1007 0.120 \$5324 0.044 \$1952 0.0875 \$3882 0.0725 \$3217 0.0256 \$1136 0.084 \$3727 0.034 \$1508 Yellow Card 0.033 \$1464 0.015 \$666 0.070 \$3106 0.033 \$1464 0.048 \$2130 0.048 \$2130 0.048 \$2130 0.070 \$3106 0.150 \$6655 0.0007 \$31 0.040 \$1775 0.030 \$1331 0.013 \$577 0.049 \$2174 0.049 \$2174	0.023 \$1020 0.0255 \$1131 0.0150 \$666 0.0051 \$226 0.0227 \$1007 0.120 \$5324 0.044 \$1952 0.0875 \$3882 0.0725 \$3217 0.0256 \$1136 0.084 \$3727 0.088 0.034 \$1508 Yellow Card 0.033 \$1464 0.015 \$666 0.070 \$3106 0.033 \$1464 0.048 \$2130 0.048 \$2130 0.048 \$2130 0.048 \$2130 0.070 \$3106 0.150 \$6655 0.0007 \$31 per hold 0.030 \$1331 0.013 \$577 0.040 \$1775 0.030 \$1331 0.013 \$577 0.049 \$2174	0.023 \$1020 0.0255 \$1131 0.0150 \$666 0.0051 \$226 0.0227 \$1007 0.120 \$5324 0.044 \$1952 0.0875 \$3882 0.0725 \$3217 0.0256 \$1136 0.084 \$3727 0.088 \$3904 0.034 \$1508 Yellow Card 0.033 \$1464 0.015 \$666 0.070 \$3106 0.033 \$1464 0.048 \$2130 0.048 \$2130 0.070 \$3106 0.150 \$6655 0.0007 \$31 0.013 \$577 0.040 \$1775 0.030 \$1331 0.013 \$577 0.049 \$2174 0.049 \$2174	0.023 \$1020 0.0255 \$1131 0.0150 \$666 0.0051 \$226 0.0227 \$1007 0.120 \$5324 0.044 \$1952 0.0875 \$3882 0.0725 \$3217 0.0256 \$1136 0.084 \$3727 0.088 \$3904 0.091 0.034 \$1508 Yellow Card 0.033 \$1464 0.015 \$666 0.070 \$3106 0.048 \$2130 0.048 \$2130 0.048 \$2130 0.070 \$3106 0.150 \$6655 0.0007 \$31 per hour 0.040 \$1775 0.030 \$1331 0.013 \$577 0.049 \$2174 0.040 \$1775 0.023 \$1020 0.040 \$1775	0.023 \$1020 0.0255 \$1131 0.0150 \$666 0.0051 \$226 0.0227 \$1007 0.120 \$5324 0.044 \$1952 0.0875 \$3882 0.0725 \$3217 0.0256 \$1136 0.084 \$3727 0.088 \$3904 0.091 \$4037 0.034 \$1508 Yellow Card 0.033 \$1464 0.015 \$666 0.070 \$3106 0.033 \$1464 0.048 \$2130 0.048 \$2130 0.070 \$3106 0.150 \$6655 0.0007 \$31 per hour 0.040 \$1775 0.030 \$1331 0.013 \$577 0.049 \$2174 0.040 \$1775 0.023 \$1020 0.040 \$1775	0.023 \$1020 0.0255 \$1131 0.0150 \$666 0.0051 \$226 0.0227 \$1007 0.120 \$5324 0.044 \$1952 0.0875 \$3882 0.0725 \$3217 0.0256 \$1136 0.084 \$3727 0.088 \$3904 0.091 \$4037 0.096 0.034 \$1508 Yellow Card 0.033 \$1464 0.015 \$666 0.070 \$3106 0.038 \$2130 0.048 \$2130 0.048 \$2130 0.070 \$3106 0.150 \$6655 0.0007 \$31 per hour 0.040 \$1775 0.030 \$1331 0.013 \$577 0.049 \$2174 0.040 \$1775 0.023 \$1020 0.040 \$1775

Elem - School Newspaper 0.033 \$1464 Elem - Student Council 0.040 \$1775 Elem - Student Mediation/Drug Free 0.033 \$1464 Elem - Subject Matter Competition 0.026 \$1154 Elem - Support Group 0.0026 \$115 Elem - Yearbook 0.023 \$1020 HS - Academic Competition 0.060 \$2662 HS - Adter School Credit Recovery 0.000562 \$25 HS - After School Tutoring 0.0341 \$1513 HS - American Field Service 0.033 \$1464 HS - Auxiliary Unit 1 0.075 \$3328 HS - Auxiliary Unit 2 0.075 \$3328 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Orchestra 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621	E. 0.1.111		*
Elem - Student Mediation/Drug Free 0.033 \$1464 Elem - Subject Matter Competition 0.026 \$1154 Elem - Support Group 0.0026 \$1154 Elem - Yearbook 0.023 \$1020 HS - Academic Competition 0.060 \$2662 HS - After School Tutoring 0.0341 \$1513 HS - American Field Service 0.033 \$1464 HS - Ant Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Auxiliary Unit 1 0.075 \$3328 HS - Auxiliary Unit 2 0.075 \$3328 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Assistant (1) 0.054 \$2396 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Orchestra 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Orchestra 0.048 \$2130 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 </td <td>Elem - School Newspaper</td> <td>0.033</td> <td>\$1464</td>	Elem - School Newspaper	0.033	\$1464
Elem - Subject Matter Competition 0.026 \$1154 Elem - Support Group 0.0026 \$115 Elem - Yearbook 0.023 \$1020 HS - Academic Competition 0.060 \$2662 HS - After School Credit Recovery 0.000562 \$25 HS - After School Tutoring 0.0341 \$1513 HS - American Field Service 0.033 \$1464 HS - Ant Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Auxiliary Unit 1 0.075 \$3328 HS - Auxiliary Unit 2 0.075 \$3328 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Assistant (1) 0.054 \$2396 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Orchestra 0.049 \$1775 HS - Big Show Orchestra 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019	Elem - Student Council	0.040	\$1775
Elem - Support Group 0.0026 \$115 Elem - Yearbook 0.023 \$1020 HS - Academic Competition 0.060 \$2662 HS- After School Credit Recovery 0.000562 \$25 HS- After School Tutoring 0.033 \$1464 HS - American Field Service 0.033 \$1464 HS - Ant Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Auxiliary Unit 1 0.075 \$3328 HS - Auxiliary Unit 2 0.075 \$3328 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Director 0.079 \$3505 HS - Big Show Orchestra 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade <td< td=""><td>Elem - Student Mediation/Drug Free</td><td>0.033</td><td>\$1464</td></td<>	Elem - Student Mediation/Drug Free	0.033	\$1464
Elem - Yearbook 0.023 \$1020 HS - Academic Competition 0.060 \$2662 HS- After School Credit Recovery 0.000562 \$25 HS- After School Tutoring 0.033 \$1464 HS - American Field Service 0.033 \$1464 HS - Auxiliary Unit 1 0.075 \$3328 HS - Auxiliary Unit 2 0.075 \$3328 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Director 0.079 \$3505 HS - Big Show Orchestra 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 HS - Cheerleading 8/9 <td>Elem - Subject Matter Competition</td> <td>0.026</td> <td>\$1154</td>	Elem - Subject Matter Competition	0.026	\$1154
HS - Academic Competition 0.060 \$2662 HS- After School Credit Recovery 0.000562 \$25 HS- After School Tutoring 0.0341 \$1513 HS - American Field Service 0.033 \$1464 HS - Art Club 0.075 \$3328 HS - Auxiliary Unit 1 0.075 \$3328 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2396 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2396 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Billboard 0.010 \$444 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Costumes 0.040 \$1775 HS - Big Show Director 0.079 \$3505 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor Advisor \$2019 HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 Advisor HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.0455 \$2019 <	Elem - Support Group	0.0026	\$115
HS - Academic Competition 0.060 \$2662 HS- After School Credit Recovery 0.000562 \$25 HS- After School Tutoring 0.0341 \$1513 HS - American Field Service 0.033 \$1464 HS - Art Club 0.075 \$3328 HS - Auxiliary Unit 1 0.075 \$3328 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2396 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2396 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Billboard 0.010 \$444 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Costumes 0.040 \$1775 HS - Big Show Director 0.079 \$3505 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor Advisor \$2019 HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 Advisor HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.0455 \$2019 <	Elem - Yearbook	0.023	\$1020
HS- After School Credit Recovery 0.000562 \$25 HS- After School Tutoring 0.0341 \$1513 HS - American Field Service 0.033 \$1464 HS - Art Club 0.075 \$3328 HS - Auxiliary Unit 1 0.075 \$3328 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2396 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2396 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.0010 \$444 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.010 \$444 HS - Big Show Billboard 0.010 \$444 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Costumes 0.040 \$1775 HS - Big Show Director 0.079 \$3505 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor Advisor \$1233 HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 Advisor Advisor \$2019 HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.0455 \$2019 HS - Cheerleadin			
HS- After School Tutoring 0.0341 \$1513 HS - American Field Service 0.033 \$1464 HS - Art Club 0.075 \$3328 HS - Auxiliary Unit 1 0.075 \$3328 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Assistant (1) 0.054 \$2396 HS - Big Show Billboard 0.010 \$444 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Costumes 0.040 \$1775 HS - Big Show Director 0.079 \$3505 HS - Big Show Orchestra 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0278 \$1233 Advisor HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading Varsi	·		
HS - American Field Service 0.033 \$1464 HS - Art Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Auxiliary Unit 1 0.075 \$3328 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Assistant (1) 0.054 \$2396 HS - Big Show Billboard 0.010 \$444 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Costumes 0.040 \$1775 HS - Big Show Director 0.079 \$3505 HS - Big Show Orchestra 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0278 \$1233 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 <td>•</td> <td></td> <td></td>	•		
HS - Art Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Auxiliary Unit 1 0.075 \$3328 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Assistant (1) 0.054 \$2396 HS - Big Show Billboard 0.010 \$444 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Costumes 0.040 \$1775 HS - Big Show Director 0.079 \$3505 HS - Big Show Orchestra 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor Advisor \$1233 HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 Advisor Advisor \$2019 HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0278 \$1233 Advisor HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 <tr< td=""><td>G</td><td></td><td></td></tr<>	G		
HS - Auxiliary Unit 1 0.075 \$3328 HS - Auxiliary Unit 2 0.075 \$3328 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Assistant (1) 0.054 \$2396 HS - Big Show Billboard 0.010 \$444 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Costumes 0.040 \$1775 HS - Big Show Director 0.079 \$3505 HS - Big Show Prector 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor Advisor \$1233 HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 Advisor Advisor \$2019 HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0278 \$1233 Advisor HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.060 \$7099 <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>			
HS - Auxiliary Unit 2 0.075 \$3328 HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Assistant (1) 0.054 \$2396 HS - Big Show Billboard 0.010 \$444 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Costumes 0.040 \$1775 HS - Big Show Director 0.079 \$3505 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0278 \$1233 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928			
HS - Big Show Accompanist 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Assistant (1) 0.054 \$2396 HS - Big Show Billboard 0.010 \$444 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Costumes 0.040 \$1775 HS - Big Show Director 0.079 \$3505 HS - Big Show Orchestra 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor Advisor \$1233 HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 Advisor Advisor \$2019 HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0278 \$1233 Advisor Advisor \$2019 HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor Advisor \$2019 HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Chess Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Cultural Club 0	HS - Auxiliary Unit 1	0.075	\$3328
HS - Big Show Assistant (1) 0.054 \$2396 HS - Big Show Billboard 0.010 \$444 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Costumes 0.040 \$1775 HS - Big Show Director 0.079 \$3505 HS - Big Show Orchestra 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor Advisor \$1233 HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 Advisor Advisor \$2019 HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0278 \$1233 Advisor Advisor \$2019 HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Culinary Arts	HS - Auxiliary Unit 2	0.075	\$3328
HS - Big Show Billboard 0.010 \$444 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Costumes 0.040 \$1775 HS - Big Show Director 0.079 \$3505 HS - Big Show Orchestra 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor Advisor \$1233 HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 Advisor Advisor \$1233 HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0278 \$1233 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities 0.0464 \$2059 HS - Drill Team <t< td=""><td>HS - Big Show Accompanist</td><td>0.048</td><td>\$2130</td></t<>	HS - Big Show Accompanist	0.048	\$2130
HS - Big Show Billboard 0.010 \$444 HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Costumes 0.040 \$1775 HS - Big Show Director 0.079 \$3505 HS - Big Show Orchestra 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor Advisor \$1233 HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 Advisor Advisor \$1233 HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0278 \$1233 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities 0.0464 \$2059 HS - Drill Team <t< td=""><td>HS - Big Show Assistant (1)</td><td>0.054</td><td>\$2396</td></t<>	HS - Big Show Assistant (1)	0.054	\$2396
HS - Big Show Choreographer 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Costumes 0.040 \$1775 HS - Big Show Director 0.079 \$3505 HS - Big Show Orchestra 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor Advisor \$1233 HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.0278 \$1233 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading / Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Chess Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities 0.0464 \$2059 HS - Cultural Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Ed	HS - Big Show Billboard	0.010	\$444
HS - Big Show Costumes 0.040 \$1775 HS - Big Show Director 0.079 \$3505 HS - Big Show Orchestra 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor 448 0.019 \$843 HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 Advisor 448 0.0278 \$1233 HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0278 \$1233 Advisor 448 0.0278 \$1233 HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor 448 0.0455 \$2019 HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor 45 \$0.0465 \$2019 HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities	_		
HS - Big Show Director 0.079 \$3505 HS - Big Show Orchestra 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor 843 HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.0278 \$1233 Advisor 843 HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor 844 843 HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor 844 843 HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor 849 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Cheerleading Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Cheerleading Varsity & JV 0.066 \$2928 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities 0.0464 \$2059 HS - Cultural Club 0.033	.		
HS - Big Show Orchestra 0.048 \$2130 HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor 0.019 \$843 HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.0278 \$1233 Advisor 0.0455 \$2019 HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Chess Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Cultural Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Dance Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 </td <td>3</td> <td></td> <td></td>	3		
HS - Big Show Publicity 0.014 \$621 HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor	•		
HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade 0.0101 \$448 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 11th Grade 0.0278 \$1233 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Cheess Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Cultural Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Dance Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1	•		
Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 11th Grade 0.0278 \$1233 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Chess Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Cultural Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Dance Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020	,		
HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade 0.019 \$843 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 11th Grade 0.0278 \$1233 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Chees Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities 0.0464 \$2059 HS - Cultural Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Dance Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020 <td></td> <td>0.0101</td> <td>\$448</td>		0.0101	\$448
Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 11th Grade 0.0278 \$1233 Advisor HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Chees Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Cultural Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Dance Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020			
HS - Class Cabinet - 11th Grade 0.0278 \$1233 Advisor 0.0455 \$2019 HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Cheess Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities 0.0464 \$2059 HS - Cultural Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Dance Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020		0.019	\$843
Advisor \$2019 HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor \$1908 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Chess Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities 0.0464 \$2059 HS - Cultural Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Dance Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020			
HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade 0.0455 \$2019 Advisor HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Chess Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities 0.0464 \$2059 HS - Cultural Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Dance Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020		0.0278	\$1233
Advisor HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Chess Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities 0.0464 \$2059 HS - Cultural Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Dance Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020			
HS - Cheerleading 8/9 0.043 \$1908 HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Chess Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities 0.0464 \$2059 HS - Cultural Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Dance Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020		0.0455	\$2019
HS - Cheerleading Asst. 0.066 \$2928 HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Chess Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities 0.0464 \$2059 HS - Cultural Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Dance Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020	Advisor		
HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV 0.160 \$7099 HS - Chess Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities 0.0464 \$2059 HS - Cultural Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Dance Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020	HS - Cheerleading 8/9	0.043	\$1908
HS - Chess Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities 0.0464 \$2059 HS - Cultural Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Dance Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020	HS - Cheerleading Asst.	0.066	\$2928
HS - Culinary Arts Competition 0.0767 \$3403 HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities 0.0464 \$2059 HS - Cultural Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Dance Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020	HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV	0.160	\$7099
HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities 0.0464 \$2059 HS - Cultural Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Dance Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020	HS - Chess Club	0.033	\$1464
HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities 0.0464 \$2059 HS - Cultural Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Dance Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020	HS - Culinary Arts Competition	0.0767	\$3403
HS - Cultural Club 0.023 \$1020 HS - Dance Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020	•		
HS - Dance Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020	•		
HS - Drill Team 0.060 \$2662 HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020			
HS - Educators Rising 0.023 \$1020 HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020			
HS - Eroom Supervision 0.150 \$6655 HS - Film and Theatre Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club 0.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020			
HS - Film and Theatre Club O.033 \$1464 HS - Foreign Language Club O.033 \$1464 HS - Future Business Leaders O.023 S1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO O.023 \$1020	J		
HS - Foreign Language Club HS - Future Business Leaders HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO O.023 \$1020	•		
HS - Future Business Leaders 0.023 \$1020 HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020			
HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.060 \$2662 Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020	HS - Foreign Language Club	0.033	
Advisor HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020	HS - Future Business Leaders	0.023	\$1020
HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO 0.023 \$1020	HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO	0.060	\$2662
	Advisor		
	HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO	0.023	\$1020

HS - National Honor Society	0.044	\$1952	
HS - Newspaper/Business	0.042	\$1863	
HS - Newspaper/Editorial	0.150	\$6655	
HS - Panther Academy Grading	0.0256	\$1136	
(content area)			
HS - Panther Academy Tutoring	0.0767	\$3403	
(content area)			
HS - Play Coach	0.042	\$1863	
HS - Poetry Club	0.023	\$1020	
HS - Political Affairs Club	0.010	\$444	
HS - Publicity News	0.0345	\$1531	
HS - Recycle Club (SAVE)	0.023	\$1020	
HS - Robotics	0.033	\$1464	
HS - SADD Chapter (Stand Up)	0.023	\$1020	
HS - Scenery Des./Big Show	0.033	\$1464	
HS - Scenery Design/Play	0.033	\$1464	
HS - School Media News (TV)	0.033	\$1464	
HS - Ski Club	0.010	\$444	
HS - Speech/Debate Activities	0.042	\$1863	
HS - Student Academic Mentorship	0.030	\$1331	
HS - Student Council	0.070	\$3106	
HS - Student Mediation/Drug Free	0.033	\$1464	
HS - Subject Matter Competition	0.014	\$621	
HS - Talent Show Director	0.042	\$1863	
HS - Voices of New Life Director	0.042	\$1863	
HS - Voices of New Life Assistant	0.033	\$1464	
HS - Weight Room Supervisor	0.173	\$7675	
HS - Yearbook/Business	0.0336	\$1491	
HS - Yearbook/Editorial	0.120	\$5324	
HS - Yearbook/Video	0.070	\$3106	
MS - AV Club	0.023	\$1020	
MS - Activity Coordinator	0.150	\$6655	
MS - After School Recreation	0.040	\$1775	
MS - Cheerleading	0.043	\$1908	
MS - Chess Club	0.023	\$1020	
MS - 6th Grade ClassTrip Coord.	0.020	\$887	
MS - 7th Grade Class Trip Coord.	0.020	\$887	
MS - 8th Grade Class Trip Coord.	0.020	\$887	
MS - Computer Club	0.023	\$1020	
MS - Dramatics	0.023	\$1020	
MS - Enrichment Instruction	0.0007	\$31	per hour
MS - Intramural Director	0.033	\$1464	
MS - Literary Magazine	0.040	\$1775	
MS - Media School News	0.033	\$1464	
MS - National Junior Honor Society	0.022	\$976	
MS - School Media News (TV)	0.033	\$1464	
MS - School Newspaper	0.040	\$1775	

MS - Stage Crew	0.023	\$1020						
MS - Student Council	0.040	\$1775						
MS - Student Mediation	0.033	\$1464						
MS - Subject Matter Competition	0.014	\$621						
MS - Yearbook Advisor	0.033	\$1464						
Resident Educator	0.045	\$1,997	0.045	\$1997	0.040	\$1775	0.040	\$1775
Yoga	0.0227	\$1,007						

Activity Sponsors are evaluated by the principal and are recommended to the Superintendent on a yearly basis for a supplemental contract.

When after school/evening activities involve supplemental duties such as ticking-taking or student supervision, they shall be compensated on the ratio of .00042 of the BA Base.

APPENDIX B

EUCLID PUBLIC SCHOOLS SUPPLEMENTAL SALARY SCHEDULES INCLUDES ATHLETIC DEPARTMENT, DEPARTMENT CHAIR, MUSIC, AND EXTRA DUTY 2023-2024

	Α		В		С		D	
ATHLETIC (Athletic Supplement	ntals are for Ma	ale and Fe	male Spo	rts)				
Athletic Director MS Asst.	0.147	\$6685	0.159	\$7231	0.170	\$7731	0.180	\$8186
Baseball - HS Head	0.118	\$5366	0.129	\$5866	0.139	\$6321	0.155	\$7049
Baseball - HS Asst.	0.075	\$3411	0.083	\$3775	0.093	\$4229	0.103	\$4684
Baseball - MS Head	0.075	\$3411	0.079	\$3593	0.083	\$3775	0.087	\$3956
Baseball - MS Asst.	0.050	\$2274	0.053	\$2410	0.055	\$2501	0.057	\$2592
Basketball - HS Head	0.159	\$7231	0.167	\$7594	0.177	\$8049	0.192	\$8731
Basketball - HS Asst.	0.106	\$4820	0.112	\$5093	0.117	\$5321	0.122	\$5548
Basketball - MS Head	0.106	\$4820	0.112	\$5093	0.117	\$5321	0.122	\$5548
Basketball - MS Asst.	0.071	\$3229	0.075	\$3411	0.078	\$3547	0.081	\$3684
Bowling - HS Head	0.152	\$6912	0.159	\$7231	0.172	\$7822	0.181	\$8231
Cross Country - HS Head	0.079	\$3593	0.087	\$3956	0.096	\$4366	0.109	\$4957
Cross Country - HS Asst.	0.056	\$2547	0.063	\$2865	0.067	\$3047	0.076	\$3456
Cross Country - MS Head	0.052	\$2365	0.058	\$2638	0.065	\$2956	0.070	\$3183
Cross Country - MS Asst.	0.042	\$1910	0.048	\$2183	0.054	\$2456	0.060	\$2729
Faculty Manager - HS	0.187	\$8504	0.196	\$8913	0.212	\$9641	0.227	\$10323
Faculty Manager - MS	0.103	\$4684	0.110	\$5002	0.117	\$5321	0.124	\$5639
Football - HS Head	0.190	\$8640	0.203	\$9232	0.215	\$9777	0.224	\$10187
Football - HS Asst.	0.130	\$5912	0.141	\$6412	0.152	\$6912	0.160	\$7276
Football - MS Head	0.120	\$5457	0.125	\$5685	0.130	\$5912	0.135	\$6139
Football - MS Asst.	0.075	\$3411	0.080	\$3638	0.088	\$4002	0.096	\$4366
Football Equip. Mgr HS	0.045	\$2046	0.050	\$2274	0.060	\$2729	0.070	\$3183
Gymnastics - Head	0.101	\$4593	0.112	\$5093	0.122	\$5548	0.132	\$6003
Gymnastics - Asst.	0.064	\$2910	0.074	\$3365	0.084	\$3820	0.094	\$4275
Golf - HS Head	0.075	\$3411	0.083	\$3775	0.092	\$4184	0.106	\$4820
Golf - HS Asst.	0.050	\$2274	0.053	\$2410	0.055	\$2501	0.057	\$2592
Hockey - HS Head	0.117	\$5321	0.125	\$5685	0.132	\$6003	0.145	\$6594
Hockey - HS Asst.	0.078	\$3547	0.085	\$3865	0.092	\$4184	0.099	\$4502

Soccer - HS Head	0.097	\$4411	0.102	\$4639	0.116	\$5275	0.120	\$5457
Soccer - HS Asst.	0.068	\$3092	0.071	\$3229	0.075	\$3411	0.082	\$3729
30ccei - 113 Asst.	0.000	φ3092	0.071	Φ3229	0.075	φ3 4 11	0.002	Φ3129
Softball - HS Head	0.118	\$5366	0.129	\$5866	0.139	\$6321	0.155	\$7049
Softball - HS Asst.	0.075	\$3411	0.083	\$3775	0.093	\$4229	0.103	\$4684
Softball - MS Head	0.075	\$3411	0.081	\$3684	0.088	\$4002	0.092	\$4184
Softball - MS Asst.	0.050	\$2274	0.053	\$2410	0.055	\$2501	0.057	\$2592
Solibali - MS Asst.	0.000	ΨΖΖΙ Τ	0.000	Ψ2410	0.000	Ψ2301	0.037	ΨΖΟΘΖ
0 : : !!0!!	0.450	Φ0040	0.450	Φ 7 004	0.470	Φ7000	0.404	00004
Swimming - HS Head	0.152	\$6912	0.159	\$7231	0.172	\$7822	0.181	\$8231
Swimming - HS Asst.	0.096	\$4366	0.108	\$4911	0.119	\$5412	0.124	\$5639
Swimming - HS Diving	0.081	\$3684	0.093	\$4229	0.104	\$4730	0.113	\$5139
Swimming - MS Head	0.096	\$4366	0.108	\$4911	0.119	\$5412	0.124	\$5639
Swimming - MS Assistant	0.059	\$2683	0.062	\$2820	0.069	\$3138	0.076	\$3456
Swimming - WS Assistant	0.009	Ψ2003	0.002	ΨΖΟΖΟ	0.003	ψυτυσ	0.070	ψυτου
Tannia UC Haad	0.070	ቀ ንደብን	0.005	\$206 E	0.005	¢ 4220	0.407	\$4066
Tennis - HS Head	0.079	\$3593	0.085	\$3865	0.095	\$4320	0.107	\$4866
Tennis - HS Asst.	0.052	\$2365	0.060	\$2729	0.069	\$3138	0.075	\$3411
Tennis - MS Head	0.052	\$2365	0.056	\$2547	0.065	\$2956	0.070	\$3183
Track - Spring - HS Head	0.114	\$5184	0.125	\$5685	0.135	\$6139	0.150	\$6821
Track - Spring - HS Asst.	0.075	\$3411	0.083	\$3775	0.093	\$4229	0.103	\$4684
Track - MS Head	0.075	\$3411	0.081	\$3684	0.088	\$4002	0.092	\$4184
Track - MS Asst.	0.050	\$2274	0.055	\$2501	0.062	\$2820	0.066	\$3001
Track - Winter - HS Head	0.070	\$3183	0.074	\$3365	0.077	\$3502	0.080	\$3638
Track - Winter - HS Asst.	0.051	\$2319	0.054	\$2456	0.056	\$2547	0.058	\$2638
Volleyball - HS Head	0.099	\$4502	0.109	\$4957	0.118	\$5366	0.129	\$5866
Volleyball - HS Asst.	0.064	\$2910	0.074	\$3365	0.082	\$3729	0.094	\$4275
Volleyball - MS Head	0.063	\$2865	0.070	\$3183	0.072	\$3274	0.077	\$3502
Volleyball - MS Asst.	0.045	\$2046	0.049	\$2228	0.055	\$2501	0.060	\$2729
Volleyball - IVIS ASSI.	0.045	φ 2 0 4 0	0.049	\$ 2220	0.055	φ 2 50 i	0.000	ΦΖ1Ζ9
Maratica a 110 Harat	0.440	Ф0000	0.450	Ф 7004	0.470	# 7000	0.404	#0004
Wrestling - HS Head	0.146	\$6639	0.159	\$7231	0.172	\$7822	0.181	\$8231
Wrestling - HS Asst.	0.096	\$4366	0.108	\$4911	0.119	\$5412	0.124	\$5639
Wrestling - MS Head	0.093	\$4229	0.097	\$4411	0.102	\$4639	0.107	\$4866
Wrestling - MS Asst.	0.059	\$2683	0.062	\$2820	0.069	\$3138	0.076	\$3456
DEPARTMENT CHAIRPERSON								
V o								
K-8	0.040	M4040	0.045	# 00.40	0.050	# 007.4	0.055	#0504
(Art/PE/Music/Technology)	0.040	\$1819	0.045	\$2046	0.050	\$2274	0.055	\$2501
* Size 2-4	0.043	\$1955	0.048	\$2183	0.053	\$2410	0.060	\$2729
* Size 5-14	0.058	\$2638	0.063	\$2865	0.068	\$3092	0.080	\$3638
* Size over 15	0.073	\$3320	0.078	\$3547	0.083	\$3775	0.090	\$4093
** Team Leader/MS	0.050	\$2274	0.055	\$2501	0.060	\$2729	0.065	\$2956
I Calli LCauci/IVIO	0.000	ΨΖΖ <i>Ι </i> 4	0.000	ΨΖΟΟΙ	0.000	Ψ ∠ 1 ∠ 3	0.000	ΨΖЭΟΟ

Department chairpersons are evaluated by the principal. One year of service is service as the department chairperson for at least 120 days in the school year. Each step in the supplemental salary index (i.e., steps A-D) represents one year of service as the department chairperson for a given department. Initial placement on the supplemental salary index shall give credit for prior years of service as the department chairperson.

Overnight Compensation - Forty dollars (\$40.00) per night.

Supplemental contracts for counselors, home and school counselors, and psychologists shall be paid on the basis of .046 of annual salary payable to the member of the bargaining unit under the teachers' salary schedule during the school year.

MUSIC

All-District Honors Choir Dir. (grades 3-	0.050	\$2274						
6)		0.500						
All-District Honors Choir Asst. (grades 3-6)	0.035	\$1592						
All-District Honors Choir Accomp. (gr. 3-6)	0.020	\$910						
Career-Technical and Post Secondary Students Coordinator	0.037	\$1683						
Elementary Instrumental	0.023	\$1046	0.025	\$1137	0.027	\$1228	0.029	\$1319
Elementary Vocal	0.036	\$1637	0.038	\$1728	0.040	\$1819	0.044	\$2001
Elementary Vocal/Asst.	0.015	\$682	0.000	Ψ1720	0.010	φισισ	0.011	Ψ2001
HS - Choir	0.026	\$1182	0.028	\$1273	0.030	\$1364	0.034	\$1546
HS - Choir Asst.	0.015	\$682	0.020	Ψ1270	0.000	φισσι	0.001	ψισισ
HS - Concert Band	0.066	\$3001	0.070	\$3183	0.073	\$3320	0.076	\$3456
HS - Concert Band Asst.	0.059	\$2683	0.063	\$2865	0.066	\$3001	0.069	\$3138
HS Forte Choir	0.039	\$1182	0.003	\$1273	0.030	\$1364	0.009	\$1592
HS - Marching Band	0.020	\$5457	0.026	\$5730	0.030	\$5957	0.033	\$6185
•		•						•
HS - Marching Band Asst.	0.084	\$3820	0.088	\$4002	0.091	\$4138	0.096	\$4366
HS - Marching Band Percussionist (Summer)	0.030	\$1364						
HS - Marching Band Percussionist (Fall)	0.030	\$1364						
HS - Orchestra Director	0.066	\$3001	0.070	\$3183	0.073	\$3320	0.076	\$3456
HS - Pep Band	0.024	\$1091	0.026	\$1182	0.028	\$1273	0.030	\$1364
HS - Stage Band (Jazz)	0.034	\$1546	0.036	\$1637	0.038	\$1728	0.042	\$1910
HS - V.C. Choreographer	0.045	\$2046	0.050	\$2274	0.055	\$2501	0.060	\$2729
HS - Varsity Chorale	0.120	\$5457	0.126	\$5730	0.131	\$5957	0.136	\$6185
HS - Varsity Chorale Asst.	0.069	\$3138	0.073	\$3320	0.076	\$3456	0.079	\$3593
MS - Band Director	0.044	\$2001	0.046	\$2092	0.048	\$2183	0.050	\$2274
MS - Band Director Asst.	0.022	\$1000	0.024	\$1091	0.026	\$1182	0.030	\$1364
MS - Choir Director	0.040	\$1819	0.042	\$1910	0.044	\$2001	0.046	\$2092
MS - Jazz Band Director	0.016	\$728	- '		-			,
MS - Orchestra Director	0.030	\$1364	0.032	\$1455	0.034	\$1546	0.038	\$1728
		T		,		Ŧ - · •		

^{*} Includes vocational

^{**} For 6th and 7th grade only, unless 8th grade using team model

8th Grade Elite (JVC) 0.040 \$1819 0.042 \$1910 0.044 \$2001 0.046 \$2092

If a bargaining unit member is required to direct instrumental or vocal performances at more than two schools, compensation will be one and one-half (1-1/2) times the above index.

EXTRA-DUTY

African American Achievement (EL, MS, HS) Male	0.023	\$1046						
African American Achievement (EL, MS, HS) Female	0.023	\$1046						
Assistant Building Test Coordinator	0.0255	\$1160						
Building Climate Committee	0.0150	\$682						
Building Test Member	0.0051	\$232						
Career Awareness	0.0227	\$1032						
Drug Free/Kids of Block Coordinator	0.120	\$5457						
Drug Free/Kids of Block Trainer	0.044	\$2001						
EPDC Chairperson	0.0875	\$3979						
EPDC Members	0.0725	\$3297						
Facilitator - Noncore Monitoring/	0.0256	\$1164						
Grading		•						
Library Coordinator (districtwide)	0.084	\$3820	0.088	\$4002	0.091	\$4138	0.096	\$4366
Praxis	0.034	\$1546						
Proficiency Night	Yellow	Card						
Saturday School Supervsn. (EL/MS)(HS)	0.033	\$1501						
School Leadership Team Members	0.015	\$682						
Technology Staff Development Coordinator (systemwide)	0.070	\$3183						
Web Site Manager K-8	0.033	\$1501						
Web Site Manager - HS	0.048	\$2183						
Web Site Manager - Fordyce	0.048	\$2183						
Web Master (districtwide)	0.070	\$3183						
Elem - Activity Coordinator	0.150	\$6821						
Elem - After School Instructional	0.0007	\$32	per					
Program	0.000.	4 0-	hour					
Elem - After School Recreation	0.040	\$1819						
Elem - Bus Duty (each person)	0.030	\$1364						
Elem - Detention Duty-Before/After School (1 day/week)	0.013	\$591						
Elem - Detention Duty-Lunchtime (1 lunch period/week)	0.013	\$591						
Elem-Lunch Duty-Lunchtime half-hour increments per school day; supervision of lunch room and recess, annual supplemental	0.049	\$2228						
Elem - Parking Lot Duty	0.040	\$1819						

Elem - Quiz Bowl	0.023	\$1046
Elem - Safety Patrol	0.040	\$1819 \$1501
Elem - School Media News (TV)	0.033	•
Elem - School Newspaper	0.033	\$1501
Elem - Student Council	0.040	\$1819
Elem - Student Mediation/Drug Free	0.033	\$1501
Elem - Subject Matter Competition	0.026	\$1182
Elem - Support Group	0.0026	\$118
Elem - Yearbook	0.023	\$1046
HS - Academic Competition	0.060	\$2729
HS- After School Credit Recovery	0.00056	\$26
110 46 01 174	2	0.155.
HS- After School Tutoring	0.0341	\$1551
HS - American Field Service	0.033	\$1501
HS - Art Club	0.033	\$1501
HS - Auxiliary Unit 1	0.075	\$3411
HS - Auxiliary Unit 2	0.075	\$3411
HS - Big Show Accompanist	0.048	\$2183
HS - Big Show Assistant (1)	0.054	\$2456
HS - Big Show Billboard	0.010	\$455
HS - Big Show Choreographer	0.048	\$2183
HS - Big Show Costumes	0.040	\$1819
HS - Big Show Director	0.079	\$3593
HS - Big Show Orchestra	0.048	\$2183
HS - Big Show Publicity	0.014	\$637
HS - Class Cabinet - 9th Grade Advisor	0.0101	\$459
HS - Class Cabinet - 10th Grade	0.019	\$864
Advisor		
HS - Class Cabinet - 11th Grade	0.0278	\$1264
Advisor	0.0455	Фосос
HS - Class Cabinet - 12th Grade	0.0455	\$2069
Advisor HS - Cheerleading 8/9	0.043	\$1955
HS - Cheerleading Asst.	0.066	\$3001
HS - Cheerleading/ Varsity & JV	0.160	\$7276
HS - Chess Club	0.033	\$1501
HS - Culinary Arts Competition	0.033	\$3488
HS - Culinary Arts Service Activities	0.0767	\$2110
HS - Cultural Club	0.0404	\$1046
HS - Dance Club	0.033	\$1501
HS - Drill Team	0.060	\$2729
HS - Educators Rising	0.023	\$1046
HS - Eroom Supervision	0.150	\$6821
HS - Film and Theatre Club	0.033	\$1501
HS - Foreign Language Club	0.033	\$1501
HS - Future Business Leaders	0.023	\$1046
HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO	0.060	\$2729
Advisor		

HS - Literary Magazine EUCUYO Asst.	0.023	\$1046	
HS - National Honor Society	0.044	\$2001	
HS - Newspaper/Business	0.042	\$1910	
HS - Newspaper/Editorial	0.150	\$6821	
HS - Panther Academy Grading	0.0256	\$1164	
(content area)			
HS - Panther Academy Tutoring	0.0767	\$3488	
(content area)			
HS - Play Coach	0.042	\$1910	
HS - Poetry Club	0.023	\$1046	
HS - Political Affairs Club	0.010	\$455	
HS - Publicity News	0.0345	\$1569	
HS - Recycle Club (SAVE)	0.023	\$1046	
HS - Robotics	0.033	\$1501	
HS - SADD Chapter (Stand Up)	0.023	\$1046	
HS - Scenery Des./Big Show	0.033	\$1501	
HS - Scenery Design/Play	0.033	\$1501	
HS - School Media News (TV)	0.033	\$1501	
HS - Ski Club	0.010	\$455	
HS - Speech/Debate Activities	0.042	\$1910	
HS - Student Academic Mentorship	0.030	\$1364	
HS - Student Council	0.070	\$3183	
HS - Student Mediation/Drug Free	0.033	\$1501	
HS - Subject Matter Competition	0.014	\$637	
HS - Talent Show Director	0.042	\$1910	
HS - Voices of New Life Director	0.042	\$1910	
HS - Voices of New Life Assistant	0.033	\$1501	
HS - Weight Room Supervisor	0.173	\$7867	
HS - Yearbook/Business	0.0336	\$1528	
HS - Yearbook/Editorial	0.120	\$5457	
HS - Yearbook/Video	0.070	\$3183	
MS - AV Club	0.023	\$1046	
MS - Activity Coordinator	0.150	\$6821	
MS - After School Recreation	0.040	\$1819	
MS - Cheerleading	0.043	\$1955	
MS - Chess Club	0.023	\$1046	
MS - 6th Grade ClassTrip Coord.	0.020	\$910	
MS - 7th Grade Class Trip Coord.	0.020	\$910	
MS - 8th Grade Class Trip Coord.	0.020	\$910	
MS - Computer Club	0.023	\$1046	
MS - Dramatics	0.023	\$1046	
MS - Enrichment Instruction	0.0007	\$32	per
MS - Intramural Director	0.033	\$1501	hou
	0.033	\$1819	
MS - Literary Magazine MS - Media School News	0.040	\$1819 \$1501	
MS - National Junior Honor Society	0.022	\$1000	

0.033	\$1501						
0.040	\$1819						
0.023	\$1046						
0.040	\$1819						
0.033	\$1501						
0.014	\$637						
0.033	\$1501						
0.045	\$2,046	0.045	\$2046	0.040	\$1819	0.040	\$1819
0.0227	\$1,032						
	0.040 0.023 0.040 0.033 0.014 0.033 0.045	0.040 \$1819 0.023 \$1046 0.040 \$1819 0.033 \$1501 0.014 \$637 0.033 \$1501 0.045 \$2,046	0.040 \$1819 0.023 \$1046 0.040 \$1819 0.033 \$1501 0.014 \$637 0.033 \$1501 0.045 \$2,046 0.045	0.040 \$1819 0.023 \$1046 0.040 \$1819 0.033 \$1501 0.014 \$637 0.033 \$1501 0.045 \$2,046 0.045 \$2046	0.040 \$1819 0.023 \$1046 0.040 \$1819 0.033 \$1501 0.014 \$637 0.033 \$1501 0.045 \$2,046 0.045 \$2046 0.040	0.040 \$1819 0.023 \$1046 0.040 \$1819 0.033 \$1501 0.014 \$637 0.033 \$1501 0.045 \$2,046 0.045 \$2046 0.040 \$1819	0.040 \$1819 0.023 \$1046 0.040 \$1819 0.033 \$1501 0.014 \$637 0.033 \$1501 0.045 \$2,046 0.045 \$2046 0.040 \$1819 0.040

Activity Sponsors are evaluated by the principal and are recommended to the Superintendent on a yearly basis for a supplemental contract.

When after school/evening activities involve supplemental duties such as ticking-taking or student supervision, they shall be compensated on the ratio of .00042 of the BA Base.

APPENDIX C

EUCLID TEACHERS ASSOCIATION GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

STEP ONE

GRIEVANT	BUILDING
INFORMAL	
INFORMAL (Administrator)	(Date of Informal Hearing)
STEP ONE (Administrator)	
I. STATEMENT OF GRIEVANCE	
II. BASIS OF GRIEVANCE	
III. <u>ACTION REQUESTED</u>	
Grievant	

APPENDIX D OBSERVATION/EVALUATION OF BUILDING SUBSTITUTE TEACHERS

Evaluation is the means by which the quality of a teacher's performance is appraised, and is conducted primarily to commend where commendation is warranted and to suggest means of improvement. The building substitute's teaching performance will be evaluated by the building principal.

EUCLID CITY SCHOOL BUILDING SUBSTITUTE TEACHER EVALUATION

Building Substitute's Name:					
School: Appraisal by Administrator:	Exceeds	Meets	Needs		
Exhibits a positive attitude in rela-	Expectations	Expectations	Improvement		
tionships with students and staff.					
Assumes other duties outside the classroom normally assigned to the teacher.					
3. Maintains routine discipline.					
4. Made an effort to learn school rules and regulations.					
5. Follows through on administrative directives.					
6. Follows the building time schedule.					
OVERALL RATING OF BUILDING SUBS 1. Exceeded Expectations 2. Meets Expectations 3. Needs Improvement Comments:					
Observation #1 completed onObservation #2 completed on					
s employee recommended for rehire?					
Employee's Signature		Date			
Administrator's Signature		Date			

This form is filled out by the Principal and returned to the Assistant Superintendent's Office for each Building Substitute.

APPENDIX E

EUCLID BOARD OF EDUCATION RELIGIOUS HOLIDAY RELEASE FORM

		Date Filed _			
Teacher		School			
Pursuant to Section 9.6 the Euclid Teachers As from my duties on the fo	sociation, I hereby in	nform the Euclid	Board of Educ	cation that I shall be abs	
Month	Date(s)		19	AM PM	
I understand that by tak up work day(s) through and responsibilities. T assignment.	my building principa	l. This work will	not be a part of	of my current job descrip	otion
Employee's Signature		- Principal's S	ignature		
		Central Office	ce Administrato	<u> </u>	

169

This form must be completed and approved at least 48 hours prior to the religious holiday.

Rev. 5/18/95-nrd

FORM E1

EUCLID BOARD OF EDUCATION

RELIGIOUS HOLIDAY MAKE-UP FORM

Date(s) absent
Pursuant to Section 9.6, Paragraph 3, I was under obligation to make up time I missed due to the observance of a religious holiday, and have done so on the following date(s): The work completed was not a part of my current job responsibilities and was completed in my building of assignment.
Make-up day(s) worked:
Hours and explanation of work:
Activities:
 Tutoring during lunch, prep time, or after school Use of prep time to substitute in uncovered class Assist any supplemental without compensation (i.e., student council, bus duty) Assist with evening performances, dances, etc. Assist with athletic events Assist with production of any performance—stage design, costumes, etc. Assist in Adult Education classes Using area of expertise to benefit staff and/or building by conducting staff in-service Leading Professional Development Training Other – if mutually agreed
Employee's Signature Principal's Signature
(Forward completed form to the Central Office.)

Rev. 6/28/01 sp

Euclid City Schools Request for Professional Development Training Compensation Submit by May 21, 2018

The following was negotiated between the Euclid Board of Education and the Euclid Teachers' Association

Teachers shall have the opportunity to attend professional development training in return for compensation. For each five (5) hours attended, up to a maximum of twenty-five (25) hours per year, the teacher shall be paid at the rate set out in the current collective bargaining agreement. Teachers who qualify for such compensation shall be paid with the final check in June. The EPDC will review the Request for Professional Development Training Compensation form at the request of the Superintendent's Designee or the ETA President.

All professional development activities need documentation for verification.

All Professional Development Hours must be outside of work hours. Certificates must be attached.

A course applied to salary advancement cannot be submitted for compensation.

Name	Building	
(Principal/Ac	dministrative Signature at the bottom)	
<u>Training Session</u>		Number of Hours
Grant writing (attach copy of grant)		
Inservice (attach certificate of completion)		
Courses for Licensure (attach transcript)		
National Board Certification/Master Teacher (atta Non-paid Mentors (attach log of services)		
Unpaid Workshops (attach copy of workshop pa	rticipation/attendance verification)	
Unpaid Presentations at National conferences (at	ttach conference brochures)	
Unpaid Community Work Linking School with C (attach description of community work)		
Professional Study Groups (attach description and	d log of participation/attendance)	
Resident Educator yr. 1 & 2 (verification log)		
Other (must be pre-approved and verified with a	form of documentation)	
	TOTAL HOURS	
Reviewed and approved for hours		
Principal/Administrato	or	
Reviewed and approved for hours		
Superintendent's Desig	gnee	

Please return to Superintendent's Administrative Assistant NO LATER THAN MAY 21, 2018

(Rev. 2021)

APPENDIX G

EUCLID CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT SUMMARY OF MENTORING ACTIVITIES

Mentor	Beginning Teacher	

Date Time Spent Activity			
	Date	Time Spent	Activity ¹

 $^{^{\}rm 1}$ e.g., observation, feedback, reviewing materials, watching videotaping, preparing for assessment.

Continuing Contract Profile

Teacher's Name: Date Submitted:	School: Grade/Subject:
	Grade/Gubject.
I. <u>Tenure Qualifications</u> :	
Please see attached qualifications form. Indicate	te the category (A or B) in which you quality
2. Teaching/positions held in the district during yo	ur total employment:
3. Please indicate the total days of absence, include	ding personal days (excluding assignment
days), during the past three years (comments rela	tive to attendance may be helpful in providing
clarity). This information can be found in AESC	P or in Self-Service.
2020	bsence
2020 Total days a	
2020 Total days a	bsence
Comments:	
4. Have you been involved in any disciplinary hea	rings or administrative meetings with any
administrator related to your performance or behave	viors during your employment with the district?
(Comments relative to discipline are optional) (Thi	s section to be verified by HR)
YesNo	

II. Professional Information (Please be thorough in your responses):
1. District or building:
List committees and year in which you have served:
List and explain additional services (and year) provided to the district, such as supplemental appointments, coaching, tutoring or others. (What do you do outside of the classroom to support your students and the district):
2. Do you have a Master's Degree? If so, when was it conferred? If no, please explain. If you received your Master's Degree more than 3 years ago, state the activities you have participated in that demonstrate professional growth (i.e., workshop attendance, college coursework, best practices, conferences.):
3. Describe formal or informal leadership opportunities and/or roles you have held that demonstrate teacher leadership:
List any special honors or awards that have been presented to you as it relates to education:
5. List and explain any Euclid parent/community/professional organizations in which you are an active member: (Please identify the organization and your role in the organization.)

III. Final Directives:

- 1. Please attach your **last three** teacher evaluations. Provide the final summative evaluation for the last three **evaluations**; **make note if gap in years you were not on the evaluation cycle** (or combination of Form C and OTES evaluations for the last three **evaluations**). **You may include any additional OTES documentation**, **but it is not required**.
- 2. Please submit this form, along with the principal's recommendation* (**confidential, sealed under separate cover**) to the Human Resources office by March 1 of the school year. This information will be forwarded to a committee comprised of 2 ETA members and 3 building principals who will review the application and make a final recommendation regarding tenure to the Superintendent.

Administrative Use Only IV. Committee Member's Comments:					
	Final Recommendation of Committee:				
	Recommended for Continuing Contract				
[Recommended for Application Delay				
Superi	ntendent's Decision:				
[Approved for Continuing Contract				
[Continuing Contract Application Delayed				
[Not Recommended for Continuing Contract				
Superi	ntendent's Approval	Date			

^{*}Please note that the ETA members on the committee are there for input. The final recommendation will be made by the administrators.

^{*}Principal's Recommendation Sheet attached.

Print your name on the line provided and give this	s sneet to your principal.
I	request my principal to
provide a confidential recommendation for	my candidacy for a Continuing
Contract with the Euclid City Schools.	

Principal's (or Principal's Designee) Recommendation: It is required that this be a confidential recommendation and submitted in a sealed envelope and given to the teacher to include with their application materials.

Please provide the following information in your letter of recommendation for tenure for the eligible teacher.

- Classroom management
- Lesson plans
- Instructional practices and strategies
- Collaboration
- · Relationships with students, parents and staff
- Use of data
- Leadership

Principal: If you do not feel the teacher has reached the performance level that you can provide a positive letter of support for the candidate's recommendation for Tenure, please meet with the teacher to inform him/her that your letter will not be a recommendation of support. It would be up to the teacher at that point whether they would want to pursue the application.

TENURE QUALIFICATIONS

To determine your eligibility for Tenure, first find if you fall into category A or B based on the issuance of your initial license:

- A. Teacher's Certificate or Educator License issued prior to January 1, 2011
 - 3 years of teaching within the last five years. 2 years of teaching if tenure was held with a previous district; and
 - Hold the appropriate certificate or license (see below):
 - o Any teacher holding a professional, permanent, or life teacher's certificate;

OR

- The teacher holds a professional educator license issued under section 3319.22 or 3319.222 or form section 3319.22 of the revise code or a senior professional educator license or lead professional educator license issued under section of 3319.22 of the Revised Code.

 AND
- Has completed one of the following:
 - If the teacher did not hold a master's degree at the time of initially receiving a teacher's certificate under former law or an educator license, thirty semester hours of coursework in the area of licensure or in a area related to the teaching field since the initial issuance of such certificate or license, as specified in rules which the state board of education shall adopt;
 - If the teacher held a master's degree at the time of initially receiving a teacher's certificate under former law or an educator license, six semester hours of graduate coursework in the area of licensure or in an area related to the teaching field since the initial issuance of such certificate or license, as specified in rules which the state board shall adopt.
- B. Teacher never held a teacher's certificate and was initially **issued an educator license on or after**January 1, 2011
 - Teacher has held an educator license for at least seven year AND
 - Teacher holds a professional educator license, senior professional educator license, or lead professional educator license issued under section 3319.22 of the Revised Code **AND**
 - Has completed one of the following:
 - If the teacher did not hold a master's degree at the time of initially receiving an educator license, thirty semester hours of coursework in the area of license or in an area related to the teaching field since the initial issuance of that license, as specified in rules which the state board shall adopt;
 - If the teacher held a master's degree at the time of initially receiving an educator license, six semester hours of graduate coursework in the area of licensure or in an area related to the teaching field since the initial issuance of that license, as specified in rules which the state board shall adopt ORC 3319.08 & 3319.11

Nothing herein shall be construed to void or otherwise affect a continuing contract entered into prior to October 16, 2009.

In addition, those professional staff members who, having attained continuing contract status elsewhere, have served two (2) years in the District, are eligible for continuing contract with the District. However, the Board, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, may at the time of employment or at any time within such two (2) year period, declare any of the latter teachers eligible.

Nothing herein shall be construed to require the Superintendent to recommend continuing service status to eligible teachers or to require the Board to grant continuing service status to eligible teachers.

#Eacl	h C :h	ildC)11r F	unfann	-
" Lac.			/ 444		

Professional Growth Plan

The Professional Growth Plan helps the teacher identify areas of professional development that will enable the teacher to enhance practice. The teacher is accountable for implementing and completing the plan. The plan must align to any district and/or building improvement plan(s). The Professional Growth Plan is developed annually. It is to be reviewed regularly and updated as necessary based on collaborative conversations between the evaluator and the teacher.

The Professional Growth Plan should reflect the evidence available and focus on the most recent evaluation and observations. The Professional Growth Plan should be individualized to the needs of the teacher. The school or district should provide for professional development opportunities and support the teacher by providing resources (e.g., time, financial). The Professional Growth Plan must be clear and comprehensive. It is aligned to the most recent evaluation results and proposes a sequence of appropriate activities leading to progress toward the goals.

Teacher Name:	Evaluator N	ame:	Self-Directed	☐Jointly Developed	Evalu	uator Guided
			(Accomplished)	(Skilled)	(De	eveloping)
Choose the Domain(s) aligne	ed to the goal	(8).				
☐Focus for Learning ☐Knowledge of Students ☐Lesson Delivery			Classroom En	f Student Learning		
Goal Statement(s) Demoi Performance on Ohio Standi Teaching Profession	ards for the	Action Steps & Resources to Achie Goal(s)	Qual ve Me	litative or Quantitative easurable Indicators: cating Progress on the G	oal(s)	Dates Discussed
Describe the alignment to dis	trict and/or bu	ilding improvement plan(s):	•			
Comments:						
-						
Teacher's Signature:			Date:		_	
Evaluator's Signature:		es the proper procedures as detailed	Date:		_	



Assessment of Teacher Performance

Ohio Teacher Evaluation System

Teacher Performance Evaluation Rubric

The **Teacher Performance Evaluation Rubric** is to be scored holistically. This means evaluators will assess which level provides the best *overall* description of the teacher. The rating process is to occur on completion of each 30-minute observation and post-conference. To determine the rating for each 30-minute observation, the evaluator is to consider evidence gathered during the pre-conference, observation, post-conference and classroom walkthroughs, if applicable. Note that when completing the performance rubric, evaluators are not expected to gather evidence on all *indicators* for each observation cycle. Likewise, teachers may, but are not required to, bring additional pieces of evidence to address all *indicators*. The professionalism section of the rubric may use evidence collected during the pre-conferences and post-conferences as well as information from the Professional Growth and/or Improvement Plan, if applicable.

ORGANIZATIONAL	ORGANIZATIONAL AREA: INSTRUCTIONAL PLANNING							
Domains	Components							
		Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished			
FOCUS FOR LEARNING (Standard 1: Students, Standard 2: Content, Standard 3: Assessment, Standard 4: Instruction) Possible Sources of Evidence: pre-conference, artifacts, portfolios, analysis of student	Use of High- Quality Student Data Element 1.1 Element 1.2 Element 1.3 Element 3.3	The teacher does not use high-quality student data to develop measurable and developmentally appropriate student growth goal(s).	The teacher uses one source of high-quality student data and attempts to analyze patterns to develop measurable and developmentally appropriate student growth goal(s). The analysis may be incomplete or inaccurate.	The teacher thoroughly and correctly analyzes patterns in at least two sources of high-quality student data to develop measurable and developmentally appropriate student growth goal(s) and monitors student progress toward goal(s).	The teacher thoroughly and correctly analyzes trends and patterns in at least two sources of high-quality student data to develop measurable and developmentally appropriate student growth goal(s) and monitors student progress toward goal(s). The teacher plans for the facilitation of developmentally appropriate student data collection and strategies to assist in student goal setting and progress monitoring.			
analysis of student data, lesson plans, student surveys, common assessments	Evidence Connections to prior and future learning Element 1.2 Element 2.1 Element 2.2 Element 2.4 Element 2.5	The teacher plans lessons that demonstrate no connections to student prior learning or future learning.	The teacher plans lessons that attempt to make connections with student prior learning or future learning. These connections are not clear.	The teacher plans lessons that intentionally make clear and coherent connections with student prior learning and future learning and includes strategies that communicate the connections to students.	The teacher plans lessons that intentionally make clear and coherent connections with student prior and future learning and includes strategies that communicate the connections to students - among lesson content, other disciplines and/or real-world experiences. The teacher plans lessons that use the input and contributions of families, colleagues and/or other professionals to			



ORGANIZATIONAL AREA: INSTRUCTIONAL PLANNING						
Domains	Components					
		Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished	
					understand each student's prior knowledge while supporting the student's development.	
	Evidence					
	Connections to state standards and district priorities Element 2.3 Element 4.1 Element 4.7	The teacher's instructional plan does not reference Ohio's Learning Standards.	The teacher's instructional plan references Ohio's Learning Standards, but goals and activities do not align with student needs, school and district priorities or the standards.	The teacher's instructional plan incorporates activities, assessments and resources, including available technology, that align with student needs, school and district priorities, and Ohio's Learning Standards.	The teacher's instructional plan incorporates activities, assessments and resources, including available technology, that align with student needs, school and district priorities, and Ohio's Learning Standards. The teacher participates in studying and evaluating advances in content and/or provides input on school and district curriculum.	
KNOWLEDGE OF STUDENTS (Standard 1: Students,	Planning instruction for the whole child	The teacher's instructional plan makes no connections to and the teacher is not the state of the	The teacher's instructional plan makes minimal connections to student experiences, culture,	The teacher's instructional plan reflects connections to student experiences, culture and developmental	The teacher's instructional plan reflects consistent connections to student experiences, culture and	
Standard 4: Instruction, Standard 6: Collaboration and Communication)	Element 1.2 Element 1.4 Element 1.5 Element 4.2 Element 4.4	familiar with student experiences, culture, developmental characteristics or backgrounds.	developmental characteristics or student backgrounds.	characteristics. These may include prior learning, abilities, strengths, needs, talents, backgrounds, skills, language proficiency and interests.	developmental characteristics. These may include prior learning, abilities, strengths, needs, individual talents, backgrounds, skills, language proficiency and interests. The	



ORGANIZATIONAL	ORGANIZATIONAL AREA: INSTRUCTIONAL PLANNING							
Domains	Components							
		Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished			
Possible Sources of Evidence: analysis of student	Element 6.4				instructional plan draws upon input from school professionals and outside resources.			
data, pre-conference, artifacts, student surveys	Evidence							

ORGANIZATIONAL AREA: INSTRUCTION AND ASSESSMENT						
Domains	Components					
		Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished	
LESSON DELIVERY (Standard 2: Content, Standard 3: Assessment, Standard 4: Instruction, Standard 5: Learning Environment, Standard 6:	Element 2.2 Element 4.3 Element 4.6 Element 6.1	The teacher does not communicate learning goals and expectations for mastery and does not model exemplary performance to students. Students cannot discern learning goals. Differentiated learning goals are not used.	The teacher inconsistently communicates learning goals, expectations for mastery and models of exemplary performance to students. There is limited use of differentiated learning goals.	The teacher is consistent and effective in communicating appropriate, needs-based, differentiated learning goals, expectations for mastery and models of exemplary performance to students.	The teacher is consistent and effective in communicating differentiated learning goals (such as needs based, interest based, strength based), expectations for mastery and models of exemplary performance to students through multiple communication techniques.	
Collaboration and Communication) Possible Sources of Evidence: pre-conference, post-conference, formal observation, classroom walk-throughs/informal observations, peer review		The teacher does not demonstrate content knowledge by using content-specific, developmentally appropriate language or content-specific strategies. There is no student engagement.	The teacher demonstrates some content knowledge by using limited content-specific, developmentally appropriate language and limited content-specific strategies. Students demonstrate little engagement in the lesson.	The teacher consistently demonstrates content knowledge by using content-specific, developmentally appropriate language and content-specific strategies to engage students. The teacher's communication strategies and questioning techniques check for understanding and encourage higher-level thinking.	The teacher consistently demonstrates content knowledge by using content-specific, developmentally appropriate language and content-specific strategies to engage students. The teacher's communication strategies and questioning techniques engage students in higher-level and creative thinking and stimulate student-to-student interactions.	
		The teacher does not give students feedback.	Feedback to students is general, occasional or	The teacher gives students substantive, specific and	The teacher gives students substantive, specific and timely feedback to support individual	



omains (Components				
	•	Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished
		monosaro	limited and may not always support student learning.	timely feedback to support their learning.	student learning. The teache gives students opportunities engage in self-assessment, provide feedback to each oth and reflect on their own strengths and challenges.
	Evidence				
	Monitoring student understanding Element 3.2 Element 3.3	The teacher fails to monitor and address student confusion and misconceptions.	The teacher inconsistently monitors or incorrectly addresses student confusion and misconceptions.	The teacher consistently monitors and addresses common student confusion and misconceptions by presenting information in multiple formats and clarifying content as he or she sees challenges.	The teacher consistently monitors, addresses, articula and anticipates individual student confusion or misconceptions by presentin information in multiple forma and clarifying content as he she sees challenges.
	Evidence				
LESSON DELIVERY (continued)	Student- centered learning Element 3.5 Element 4.5 Element 4.6 Element 5.3 Element 5.4	Learning is entirely teacher directed. Students are not participating in learning activities.	Learning is primarily teacher directed. Students participate in whole class learning activities.	Learning is a balance between teacher-directed instruction and student-directed interaction as students apply their knowledge and skills as developmentally appropriate. The teacher effectively combines collaborative and whole class learning opportunities to maximize student learning.	Learning is primarily self- directed with the teacher in to role of facilitator encouraging students to apply their knowledge and skills as developmentally appropriate. The teacher encourages students to persist in the learning tasks. The teacher effectively combines independent, collaborative a whole class learning opportunities to maximize student learning.
		There are no opportunities for student choice about what will be learned and how learning will be demonstrated. There is no evidence of differentiated	There are few opportunities for student choice about what will be learned and how learning will be demonstrated. The teacher uses limited differentiated instructional strategies or resources.	Teacher gives opportunities for student choice about student learning paths or ways to demonstrate their learning. Teacher uses differentiated instructional strategies and resources for groups of students.	Teacher routinely promotes opportunities for students to actively take part in develop goals toward mastery, and students are responsible for deciding how to demonstrat their learning. Instructional strategies, pacing and resources are differentiated



ORGANIZATIONAL	ORGANIZATIONAL AREA: INSTRUCTION AND ASSESSMENT						
Domains	Components						
		Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished		
		instructional strategies or resources.			make the lesson accessible and challenging for all students, while supporting the various learning needs of individual students.		
	Evidence						

ORGANIZATIONAL AREA: INSTRUCTION AND ASSESSMENT						
DOMAINS	Components					
		Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished	
CLASSROOM	Classroom	The teacher has not	The teacher establishes	The teacher consistently	The teacher and students have	
ENVIRONMENT	routines and	established routines and	routines and procedures but	uses routines, procedures	collaboratively established	
(Standard 1:	procedures	procedures. Effective	uses them inconsistently.	and transitions that	consistent use of routines,	
Students,		transitions are not	Transitions are sometimes	effectively maximize	procedures and transitions that	
Standard 5:	Element 5.5	evident, resulting in a	ineffective, resulting in a loss	instructional time. On-task	are effective in maximizing	
Learning		significant loss of	of instructional time. Off-task	behavior is evident.	instructional time. On-task	
Environment)		instructional time and	behavior is sometimes	Students assume	behavior is evident and ensured	
D:t-1- C		frequent off-task	evident. The teacher makes	appropriate levels of	by students. Students initiate	
Possible Sources of Evidence:		behavior.	decisions about classroom operations.	responsibility for effective operation of the	responsibility for effective operation of the classroom.	
pre-conference,			operations.	classroom.	operation of the classroom.	
post-conference,				classicom.		
formal	Evidence					
observation.	Classroom	There is no evidence of	There is some evidence of	There is consistent	The teacher intentionally creates	
classroom walk-	climate and	rapport or expectations	rapport and expectations for	evidence of rapport and	a classroom environment that	
throughs/informal	cultural	for respectful, supportive	respectful, supportive and	expectations for respectful.	shows consistent evidence of	
observations,	competency	and caring interactions	caring interactions with and	supportive and caring	rapport and expectations for	
peer review,	'	with and among	among students and the	interactions with and	respectful, supportive and caring	
student surveys	Element 1.4	students and the	teacher.	among students and the	interactions with and among	
	Element 5.1	teacher.		teacher.	students and the teacher.	
	Element 5.2					
		There is no				
		demonstration of regard	There is inconsistent		There is demonstration of regard	
		for student perspectives,	demonstration of regard for	There is demonstration of	for student perspectives,	
		experiences and culture.	student perspectives,	regard for student	experiences and culture. The	
		The teacher does not	experiences and culture.	perspectives, experiences	teacher models expectations	
		address needs related to	The teacher is aware of	and culture. The teacher	and behaviors that create a	
		student sense of well-	needs related to student	models expectations and behaviors that create a	positive climate of openness, respect and care. The teacher	
		being.		penaviors that create a	respect and care. The teacher	



DOMAINS	Components				
		Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished
			sense of well-being but does not address them effectively.	positive climate of openness, respect and care. The teacher anticipates and effectively addresses needs related to student sense of wellbeing.	anticipates and effectively addresses needs related to student sense of well-being. The teacher seeks and is receptive the thoughts and opinions of individual students and the class. When appropriate, the teacher includes other school professionals and/or communitative recognized and valued.
	Evidence				
ASSESSMENT OF STUDENT LEARNING (Standard 1: Students, Standard 3: Assessment) Possible Sources of Evidence:	Use of assessments Element 3.1 Element 3.2 Element 3.3 Element 3.4	The teacher does not use varied assessments. The teacher fails to	The teacher makes limited use of varied assessments.	The teacher selects, develops and uses multiple assessments, including routine use of various diagnostic, formative and summative assessments.	The teacher intentionally and strategically selects, develops and uses multiple assessment including routine use of various diagnostic, formative and summative assessments. The teacher offers differentiated assessment choices to meet the full range of student needs.
pre-conference, formal observation, classroom walk- throughs/informal observations, assessments, student portfolios, post-conference		analyze data and makes little or no attempt to modify instruction to meet student needs. The teacher does not share evidence of student learning with	The teacher attempts to analyze data and modify instruction, though the modifications do not meet student needs. The teacher shares	The teacher analyzes patterns to measure targeted student learning, anticipate learning obstacles, modify instruction and differentiate to meet the needs of groups of	The teacher analyzes data trends and patterns to measur targeted student learning, anticipate learning obstacles, modify instruction and differentiate to meet individual student needs.
		students.	evidence of student learning with students.	students. The teacher shares evidence of student learning with parents and students to plan instruction to meet student needs.	The teacher shares evidence student learning with colleague parents and students to collaboratively plan instruction meet individual student needs

Ohio Department of Education

ORGANIZATIONAL AREA: INSTRUCTION AND ASSESSMENT						
DOMAINS	Components					
		Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished	
	Evidence of student learning Element 1.3	The teacher's assessment data demonstrates no evidence of growth and/or achievement over time for most students.	The teacher uses one source of high-quality student data to demonstrate clear evidence of appropriate growth and/or achievement over time for some students.	The teacher uses at least two sources of high-quality student data to demonstrate growth and/or achievement over time, showing clear evidence of expected growth and/or achievement for most students.	The teacher uses at least two sources of high-quality student data to demonstrate growth and/or achievement over time, showing clear evidence of above expected growth and/or achievement for most students.	
	Evidence					

RESPONSIBILITIES (Standard 6: Collaboration and Communication, Standard 7: Professional Responsibility and Growth) Possible Sources of Evidence: Professional Growth Plan or Improvement Plan, pre-conference, post-conference, artifacts, self-assessment, peer review and Communication with families Element 6.1 Element 6.2 Communicate with students and families. Communicate with students and families. Element 6.1 Element 6.2 Communication and engagement strategies with students and families. These do not contribute adequately to student learning, well-being and development. Evidence Communication and engagement strategies with students and families. These do not contribute adequately to student learning, well-being and development. Evidence Communication and engagement strategies with students and families. These do not contribute adequately to student learning, well-being and development. The teacher does not communicates and/or collaborate with colleagues, resulting in limited improvement of professional practice. The teacher inconsistently or unsuccessfully uses communicates and families. The teacher inconsistently or unsuccessfully uses communicates and families. The teacher inconsistently or communicates and/or collaborates with colleagues, resulting in limited improvement of professional practice. The teacher inconsistently or unsuccessfully uses communicates and families. The teacher of professional professional practice.	ORGANIZATIONAL AREA: PROFESSIONALISM						
PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES (Standard 6: Collaboration and Communication and Communication, Standard 7: Professional Responsibility and Growth) Possible Sources of Evidence: Professional Growth Plan or Improvement Plan, pre-conference, artifacts, self-assessment, peer review The teacher does not communicate with students and families. The teacher does not communication and engagement strategies with students and families. Element 6.1 Element 6.2 The teacher inconsistently or unsuccessfully uses communication and engagement strategies with students and families. These do not contribute adequately to student learning, well-being and development. Evidence Professional Growth Plan or Improvement Plan, pre-conference, artifacts, self-assessment, peer review The teacher inconsistently or unsuccessfully uses communication and engagement strategies with students and families. The teacher inconsistently or unsuccessfully uses communication and engagement strategies with students and families. The teacher inconsistently or unsuccessfully uses communication and engagement strategies with students and families. The teacher inconsistently or unsuccessfully or unsuccessfully communicates and or communicate and/or collaborate with colleagues, resulting in limited improvement of professional practice. The teacher inconsistently or unsuccessfully or unsuccessfully communicates and or communicate and/or collaborates with colleagues, resulting in limited improvement of professional practice.	Domains	Components					
RESPONSIBILITIES (Standard 6: Collaboration and Communication, Standard 7: Professional Responsibility and Growth) Possible Sources of Evidence: Professional Growth Plan or Improvement Plan, pre-conference, artifacts, self-assessment, peer review and collaboration with families and collaboration with families communicate with students and families. communicate with students and families. communication and engagement strategies with students and families. These do not contribute adequately to student learning, well-being and development. Element 6.1 Element 6.2 Evidence Communication and engagement strategies with students and families. The teacher does not communicate and/or collaborate with colleagues. Element 6.3 The teacher inconsistently or unsuccessfully communicates and/or collaborates with colleagues, resulting in limited instructional practice analyze patterns in stuwork and student data identify and implement targeted strategies for improving professional practice.			Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished	
practice.	RESPONSIBILITIES (Standard 6: Collaboration and Communication, Standard 7: Professional Responsibility and Growth) Possible Sources of Evidence: Professional Growth Plan or Improvement Plan, pre-conference, post-conference, artifacts, self- assessment,	and collaboration with families Element 6.1 Element 6.2 Evidence Communication and collaboration with colleagues	The teacher does not communicate with students and families. The teacher does not communicate and/or collaborate with	The teacher inconsistently or unsuccessfully uses communication and engagement strategies with students and families. These do not contribute adequately to student learning, well-being and development. The teacher inconsistently or unsuccessfully communicates and/or collaborates with colleagues, resulting in limited improvement of professional	The teacher uses effective and appropriate communication and engagement strategies with students and families, resulting in partnerships that contribute to student learning, well-being and development. The teacher effectively communicates and collaborates with colleagues to examine instructional practice and analyze patterns in student work and student data to identify and implement targeted strategies for	Accomplished The teacher uses multiple effective and appropriate communication and engagement strategies with individual students and families. These ongoing strategies promote two-way communication, active participation and partnerships that contribute to each student's learning, well-being and development. The teacher initiates effective communication and collaboration with colleagues outside the classroom, resulting in improvements in student learning, individual practice, school practice and/or the teaching profession.	
Evidence		Evidence			improving professional practice.		



ORGANIZATIONAL AREA: PROFESSIONALISM						
Domains	Components					
		Ineffective	Developing	Skilled	Accomplished	
	District policies and professional responsibilities Element 7.1	The teacher demonstrates a lack of understanding and regard for district policies, state and federal regulations, and the Licensure Code of Professional Conduct for Ohio Educators.	The teacher demonstrates minimal understanding of district policies, state and federal regulations, and the Licensure Code of Professional Conduct for Ohio Educators.	The teacher demonstrates understanding by following district policies, state and federal regulations, and the Licensure Code of Professional Conduct for Ohio Educators.	The teacher demonstrates understanding by following district policies, state and federal regulations, and the Licensure Code of Professional Conduct for Ohio Educators.	
		Onio Educatoro.			The teacher exemplifies effective leadership characteristics beyond the classroom. The teacher helps shape policy at the school, district or state level.	
	Evidence					
	Professional learning Element 7.2 Element 7.3	The teacher sets short- term and long-term professional goals but fails to monitor progress or take action to meet the goals.	The teacher sets and monitors short-term and long-term professional goals but fails to take appropriate action to meet the goals.	The teacher sets short- term and long-term professional goals and monitors progress in meeting them based on self-reflection and data analysis. The teacher takes appropriate action to meet the goals.	The teacher consistently pursues best practices and sets, monitors and reflects on progress toward meeting short-term and long-term professional goals based on data analysis to improve student learning. The teacher takes appropriate action to meet the goals. The teacher collaborates with colleagues and others to share best practices.	
	Evidence					



Walkthroughs/Informal Observations Ohio Teacher Evaluation System 2.0

Walkthrough: General Form

	. =					
Teacher Name:	Grade(s)/Su	ubject Area(s):	Date:			
Evaluator Name:	Time Wal	kthrough Begins:	Time Walkthrough E	nds:		
Directions: This form serves as a record of a walkthrough by the teacher's evaluator. The evaluator will likely not observe all the teaching elements listed below in any one informal observation, nor is this an exhaustive list of evidence that may be observed. This record, along with records of additional informal observations, will be used to inform the holistic evaluation of the teacher.						
	EVALUATO	R OBSERVATIONS				
☐ Teacher is consistent and effective in communicating appropriate, needs-budifferentiated learning goals		☐ Communication stracheck for understanding	ategies and questioning ng and encourage high	techniques er-level		
☐ Instructional time is used effectively		☐ Information is prese	ented in multiple formats			
☐ Teacher combines collaborative and class learning opportunities	whole	☐ Routines, procedure effective and maximize		consistent,		
☐ Rapport and expectations for respect supportive and caring interactions with among students and the teacher are	ith and	☐ Feedback is substa student learning	ntive, specific, timely and	supports		
☐ Lesson makes clear and coherent connections with student prior learning	ng and	☐ Teacher selects, de assessments	velops and uses multiple			
☐ Teacher demonstrates content know and uses content-specific language s strategies to engage students	_	☐ Teacher uses differ and resources for grou		strategies		
☐ Other:		□ Other:				
Identified Focus Area(s) and Aligned	Evidence, if	Applicable:				
Evaluator Summary Comments:						
Evaluator Signature:		_	☐ Photocopy to Tea	acher		

FINAL March 27, 2020

Walkthroughs/Informal Observations Ohio Teacher Evaluation System 2.0

Walkthrough: Open-Ended Form					
Teacher Name:	Grade(s)/Subject Area(s):	Date:			
Evaluator Name:	Time Walkthrough Begins:	Time Walkthrough Ends:			
	OBSERVATIONS				
Evaluator Summary Com	ments:				
Evaluator Signature:		☐ Photocopy to Teacher			

#Each	ChildOurFuture

Final Holistic Rating of Teacher Effectiveness—Accomplished or Skilled Carry Forward

Professional Growth Plan Goal(s) Alignment:	Dates:					
Mark Domain Area(s): □Focus for Learning	Date of Observatio	n:				
☐Knowledge of Students	Date of Conference	2:				
Lesson Delivery Classroom Environment	Comments:					
Assessment of Student Learning Professional Responsibilities						
Focus Area(s) Comments:						
Professional Growth Plan Goal(s):	(Goal(s) prepopula	te from previous entry)				
	Progress Made		☐Insufficient Progr	ress Made		
Progress on Professional Growth Plan Goal:		ox, the teacher will continue	(By checking this box, the teacher will			
	with rating as per s evaluation cycle.)	chedule until time for a full	automatically be placed on a full evaluation cycle the following school year.)			
Evaluator Comments:						
Teacher Comments:						
Final Holistic (Overall) Rating: Pre-Populated in OhioES Portal	INEFFECTIVE	DEVELOPING	SKILLED	ACCOMPLISHED		
Carry forward from previous rating						
☐End of Cycle (Full evaluation required in the next schoo	l vear)					
Check here if Improvement Plan has been recommende	ed.					
Teacher Signature			Date			
Evaluator Signature	Date					

Final March 27, 2020

Ohio Department of Education

Each C l	hildC)ur F u	ıture

Improvement Plan

-									
Teacher Name:					Grade	e Level/ Subj	ect:		
School year:	Building:					Date of Improvement Plan Conference:			
A written Improvement Pl teacher on an Improvement placed on an Improvement agreement.	ent Plan at any time	e based	on defici	iencies in any ir	ndividual component	of the evalu	ation system. The	notice re	equirements for being
The purpose of the Improv If the teacher does not ta continue working under th	ke corrective action e plan.	ns in the	e timeline	specified in the	e Improvement Plan	, the evaluat	or may recommend	the tead	cher be dismissed of
Section 1: Improvement documentation.	Statement—List s	pecilic a	rea(s) ioi	improvement r	elated to the Onio S	tandards fol	r the Teaching Pro	ression.	Attach
Performance Standard(s) Addressed in this Plan		Date(s)	Improvement A Obse	Area(s) or Concern(s rved	3)	Specific Statement of the Concern(s): Area(s) of Improvement			
Section 2: Desired Level	of Performance	-List spe	ecific goa	l(s) to improve p	performance. Indicat	te what will b	e measured for eac	h goal.	
List Goal Statement(s) Indicating Performance on <i>Ohio Standards for the Teaching Profession</i>		Beginning Date		Ending Date	Level of Performance: Specifically Describe Successful Improvement Targ		arget(s)		
				•	•				
							Ohi		Department of Education

#EachChildOurFuture

Section 3: Specific Plan of Action—Describe in detail specific actions the teacher must take to improve performance. Indicate the sources of evidence the evaluator will use to document the completion of the Improvement Plan. Qualitative or Quantitative Measurable Indicators: Evidence Indicating Progress on Actions to be Taken the Goal(s) Section 4: Assistance and Professional Development—Describe in detail specific supports that will be provided as well as opportunities for professional development. Section 5: Alignment to District and/or Building Improvement Plan(s)— Describe the alignment to district and/or building improvement plan(s). Comments: Date for Improvement Plan to be evaluated: Teacher's Signature: Evaluator's Signature: Date: The evaluator's signature on this form verifies the proper procedures as detailed in the local contract have been followed.



	#Each Child Our Future
Improvement Plan: Evaluation of Plan	
Teacher Name:	Grade Level/ Subject:
School year: Building:	Date of Evaluation:
The Improvement Plan will be evaluated at the end of t	he time specified in the plan. Outcomes from the Improvement Plan will be one of the following.
Improvement is demonstrated and period The Improvement Plan should continue Dismissal is recommended.	formance standards are met to a satisfactory level of performance. e for time specified:
Comments: Provide justification for recommendation i	indicated above and attach evidence to support the recommended action.
I have reviewed this evaluation and discussed it with mimply I agree with this evaluation.	y evaluator. My signature indicates I have been advised of my performance status; it does not necessarily
Teacher's Signature:	Date:
Evaluator's Signature: The evaluator's signature on this form verifies the prop	Date:er procedures as detailed in the local contract have been followed.
	Ohio Department of Education

CRITERIA FOR HQSD

- Align to learning standards
- Measure what is intended to be measured
- Not offend or be driven by bias
- Be attributable to the specific teacher for course(s) and grade level(s) taught
- Demonstrate evidence of student learning (achievement and/or academic growth)
- Follow protocols for administration and scoring
- Provide trustworthy results

ATHLETIC COACH EVALUATION FORM APPENDIX J

Coach	Employee	ID#		
School	Date			
Sport/Level	Years Expe	erience in S	Sport	
Standard 1 – Coaches are committed to their student-athletes a	nd to their teams			
Please check the appropriate category. Comments must be provided for unsatisf	sfactory evaluations.	Satisfactory Ir	Needs mprovement U	Jnsatisfactory
 Recruits and encourages participation among students in the school. Is cognizant of the academic performance of student-athletes. Promotes positive character and citizenship in student-athletes. Develops and implements clear expectations and standards for strong process. Applies a comprehensive knowledge of health and safety guideline. 	udent-athletes.			
Comments:				
Standard 2 – Coaches are knowledgeable in the sport and effect Please check the appropriate category. Comments must be provided for unsatisfied.			Needs	
 Implements ECS and OHSAA guidelines and regulations. Exhibits knowledge of the sport, including skills and strategies. 				
3. Ensures that all student-athletes and parents are informed of experiencedures.4. Provides appropriate guidance and support to student-athletes du recruiting process.				
procedures. 4. Provides appropriate guidance and support to student-athletes du				
procedures.4. Provides appropriate guidance and support to student-athletes du recruiting process.	ring the college			
procedures.4. Provides appropriate guidance and support to student-athletes du recruiting process.Comments:	ring the college	□ ationships	□ □ with stakel	nolders.
procedures. 4. Provides appropriate guidance and support to student-athletes du recruiting process. Comments: Standard 3 – Coaches effectively manage their program and est	ring the college ablish positive rel sfactory evaluations. s and staff.	□ ationships	□ □ with stakel	nolders.

Comments:

results, and make appropriate accommodations to improve individual and team achievement. Needs Please check the appropriate category. Comments must be provided for unsatisfactory evaluations. Satisfactory Improvement Unsatisfactory 1. Plans and prepares for practices and contests throughout the season. 2. Develops strategies to promote the highest level of success for the team and. individual student-athletes 3. Maintains appropriate team statistics and records. П П П П 4. Provides feedback of team and individual performance before, during, and П after the season. Comments: Standard 5 - Coaches are committed to continuous improvement and professional development. Needs Please check the appropriate category. Comments must be provided for unsatisfactory evaluations. Satisfactory Improvement Unsatisfactory 1. Promotes and models a high level of sportsmanship. Maintains current certification standards. Engages in professional development activities. П П П (i.e., clinics, conferences, certifications, courses). 4. Attends school preseason and postseason coaches meetings. П П П П 5. Compiles and maintains an accurate inventory and collection of П П equipment, uniforms, and supplies. Comments: Standard 6 - Coaches exhibit a high degree of professionalism. Needs Please check the appropriate category. Comments must be provided for unsatisfactory evaluations. Satisfactory Improvement Unsatisfactory 1. Exhibits appropriate appearance and behavior. 2. Interacts appropriately with head coach, assistant coach(es), and/or. П П П Volunteer coach(es). 3. Ensures that all necessary paperwork and forms are accurate and complete. П П П prior to deadlines. 4. Implements school procedures and guidelines for procurement and fundraising. П П Comments: **Overall Performance Evaluation:** ☐ Needs Improvement □ Unsatisfactory □ Satisfactory **Comments/Season Accomplishments:** Signature, Principal Signature, Athletic Director Date Date Coach's Comments:

Standard 4 - Coaches continuously assess the progress of their student-athletes and teams, analyze

Date

(My signing this evaluation does not necessarily indicate

that I agree with the content)

Signature, Coach

APPENDIX J

Supplemental Evaluation (For Clubs and Organizations)

Evalu	uator School Year
Num	ber of years as advisor
Scale	e:
N/O 1 2 3	Not Observed Does not meet expectations Meets expectations Exceed Expectations
1.	PROFESSIONAL AND PUBLIC RELATIONS Communicates effectively with students, parents and staff. Exhibits professional behavior and conduct when in advisory positions. Promotes the overall club or organization positively to school.
0	DRGANIZATIONAL SKILLS
5. 6.	Coordinates activities and events for club or organization. Has scheduled meeting times with members. Involves students with decisions and responsibilities of the organization. Follows procedures and guidelines for procurement and fundraising.
s	SUBJECT KNOWLEDGE
8.	Demonstrates ability to lead students in this activity.
G	GENERAL EFFECTIVENESS
	Effectively supervises students. 0 Cares for and maintains school equipment when applicable.

Evaluator's Comments: (Comments must be provided for any ratings of 1)				
Advisor's Comments:				
A conference was held onevaluation.	at	to discuss this		
Evaluator	Advisor (My signing this exwith the content)	valuation does not necessarily indicate that I agree		
 Date	 Date			

LEGACY AGENCY FEE

In accordance with Article 13.14 of the 2017-2021 negotiated agreement, the parties agree to maintain as a Legacy Document in this Appendix [TBD] the Agency Fee provisions contained in the negotiated agreement immediately prior to the U.S. Supreme Court decision in *Janus v. American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees, Council 31.* The parties agree to maintain this Legacy Document in the event there is a change in law that will allow for this language to be placed back into the contract and be implemented.

In the event there is such a change in law, the parties shall negotiate to agreement, any necessary changes to this legacy document prior to the document being placed back into the negotiated agreement.

13.14 Agency Fee

13.14.1 Payroll Deduction of Agency Fee

The Employer shall deduct from the pay of members of the bargaining unit who elect not to become or to remain members of the Association, an agency fee for the Association's representation of such nonmembers during the term of this contract. No nonmember filing a timely demand shall be required to subsidize partisan political or ideological causes not germane to the Association's work in the realm of collective bargaining.

13.14.2 Notification of the Amount of Agency Fee

Notice of the amount of the annual agency fee, which shall not be more than one hundred percent (100%) of the unified dues of the Association, shall be transmitted by the Association to the Treasurer of the Board on or about September 15 of each year during the term of this Contract for the purpose of determining amounts to be payroll-deducted, and the Employer agrees to promptly transmit all amounts deducted to the Association.

13.14.3 Schedule of Agency Fee Payors

13.14.3.1 All Agency Fee Payors

Payroll deduction of such annual agency fees shall commence on the first pay date which occurs on or after January 15th annually. In the case of unit employees newly hired after the beginning of the school year, the payroll deduction shall commence on the first pay date on or after the

later of: (1) sixty (60) days employment in a bargaining unit position which shall be the required probationary period or (2) January 15. The ETA President or designee shall advise the Board treasurer of those bargaining unit members who are agency fee payors.

13.14.3.2 Upon Termination of Membership during the Membership Year

The Treasurer of the Board shall, upon notification from the Association that a member has terminated membership, commence the deduction of the agency fee with respect to the former member, and the amount of the fee yet to be deducted shall be the annual agency fee less the amount previously paid through payroll deduction. The deduction of said amount shall commence on the first pay date occurring on or after forty-five (45) days from the termination of membership.

13.14.4 Transmittal of Deductions

The Employer further agrees to accompany each such transmittal with a list of the names of the bargaining unit members for whom all such agency fee deductions were made, the period covered, and the amounts deducted for each.

13.14.5 Procedure for Rebate

The Association represents to the Employer that an internal rebate procedure has been established in accordance with Section 4117.09(C) of the Ohio Revised Code and that a procedure for challenging the amount of the representation fee has been established and will be given to each member of the bargaining unit who does not join the Association and that such procedure and notice shall be in compliance with all applicable state and federal laws and the Constitutions of the United States and the State of Ohio.

13.14.6 Entitlement to Rebate

Upon timely demand, nonmembers may apply to the Association for an advance reduction/rebate of the agency fee pursuant to the internal procedure adopted by the Association.

13.14.7 Indemnification of Employer

The Association on behalf of itself and the OEA and NEA agrees to defend and indemnify the Employer, including the Board, its officers, members, agents, and employee(s) who implements the deduction, for any cost or liability incurred as a result of the implementation and enforcement of this provision provided that:

- **13.14.7.1** When possible, the Association shall be given a ten (10) day written notice of any claim made or action filed against the Employer by a nonmember for which indemnification may be claimed;
- **13.14.7.2** The Association shall reserve the right to designate counsel to represent and defend the Employer;
- **13.14.7.3** The Employer agrees to (1) give full and complete cooperation and assistance to the Association and its counsel at all levels of the proceeding, (2) permit the Association or its affiliates to intervene as a party if it so desires, and/or (3) to not oppose the Association or its affiliates' application to file briefs amicus curiae in the action;
- 13.14.7.4 The Employer acted in good faith compliance with the agency fee provision of this Contract; however, there shall be no indemnification of the Employer if the Employer intentionally or willfully fails to apply (except due to court order) or misapplies such agency fee provision herein.